/\ King County

Housing
Authority

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

February 26, 2018 at 8:30 a.m.

King County Housing Authority
Snoqualmie Conference Room
700 Andover Park W
Tukwila, WA 98188

AGENDA

I. Callto Order
I1. RollcCall
I11. PublicComment

IV. Approval of Minutes

A. Board Meeting Minutes — December 18, 2017
B. Board Retreat Minutes - January 25 and 26, 2018

V. Approval of Agenda
V1. Consent Agenda

A. Voucher Certification Report for November 2017

B. Voucher Certification Report December 2017
VII. Resolutions for Discussion & Possible Action

A. Resolution No. 5584 Evidencing the intent to operate Friendly Villagg

Mobile Home Park as housing for persons 55 years of age or older under
the terms of the Housing for Older Persons Act (HOPA)
B. Resolution No. 5585: Authorizing the transfer of the Highland Villags

Apartments to Somerset Garden Apartments LLLP; authorizing the

execution and delivery of all documents relating to the acquisition,




KCHA Board of Commissioners’ Agenda
February 26, 2018 Special Board Meeting
Page 2 of 2

VIII.

XI.

XI1I.

XII1.

XIV.

rehabilitation, construction, and financing of the Highland Village Project;
and determining related matters.
C. Resolution No. 5586: Authorizing the Executive Director to amend,

rescind, restructure and/or enter into new agreements with HomeSigﬂ

related to the HomeSight Phase 111 affordable homeownership project

located adjacent to the Greenbridge community

D. Resolution No. 5587: Acceptance of Washington State Auditor’s Office
Report on Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit (No. 1020005)
and the Accountability Audit Report (No. 1020479), both for the Period
Ended December 31, 2016

Briefings & Reports

A. 2017 Year End Investment Report
B. FEourth Quarter 2017 Procurement Report

C. Eourth Quarter 2017 Summary Write-off Report
Debrief Board Retreat Discussion

Executive Session
A. To review the performance of a public employee (RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g9))

Executive Director Report

KCHA in the News

Commissioner Comments

Adjournment

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or
assistance at the meeting are requested to notify the Board Coordinator, Jessica

Olives, in writing at 600 Andover Park West, Seattle, WA 98188 or by calling
206-574-1194 prior to the meeting date.

10

11



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

—



II.

I11.

MEETING MINUTES
OF THE
KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Monday, December 18, 2017

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the King County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners was
held on Monday, December 18, 2017 at King County Housing Authority, 600
Andover Park West, WA. There being a quorum, the meeting was called to order
by Chair Doug Barnes at 8:30 a.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner Doug Barnes (Chair), Commissioner Michael Brown
(Vice-Chair), Commissioner Susan Palmer, Commissioner
TerryLynn Stewart and Commissioner John Welch

Public Comment
Resident, Lillie Clinton provided public comment.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Board Meeting Minutes — November 20, 2017

On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Brown,
the Board unanimously approved the November 20, 2017 Board of
Commissioners’ Meeting Minutes.

B. Special Board Meeting Minutes — December 7, 2017

On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Brown,
the Board unanimously approved the December 7, 2017 Board of
Commissioners’ Meeting Minutes.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

On motion by Commissioner Brown and seconded by Commissioner Stewart, the
Board unanimously approved the December 18, 2017 Board of Commissioners’
meeting agenda.



KCHA Board of Commissioners’
December 18, 2017 Meeting Minutes
Page 2 of 4

VI. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Voucher Certification Reports for October 2017

GENERAL PROPERTIES
Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 7,094,769.72
Subtotal 7,094,769.72
Accounts Payable Vouchers
Key Bank Checks #312208 - #312787 8,733,807.95
Tenant Accounting Checks #10475 - #10489 14,561.09
Commerce Bank Direct Payment 49,819.96
Subtotal 8,798,189.00
Payroll Vouchers
Checks - #90644 - # 90673 30,001.08
Direct Deposit 1,353,659.14
Subtotal 1,383,660.22
Section 8 Program Vouchers
Checks - #619400 - #619697 272,970.68
ACH - #396271-#399020 12,534,960.37
Subtotal 12,534,960.37
Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal 219,046.41
Subtotal 252,011.24
GRAND

TOTAL 30,030,625.72

BOND PROPERTIES
Bond Properties Total (31 different properties) $3,487,311.63

VII. RESOLUTONS FOR DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION

A. Resolution No. 5582: Approval of the Authority’s Comprehensive Operating
and Capital Budgets for the Calendar Year beginning January 1, 2018.

Craig Violante, Director of Finance presented the proposed 2018
Comprehensive Operating and Capital Budgets including personnel service
costs and cash balances. Mr. Violante stated that the budgeting process was
guided by the Board-directed strategic plan for the Agency.



KCHA Board of Commissioners’
December 18, 2017 Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 4

VIII.

IX.

Mr. Violante discussed key aspects of the budget and noted the strength of
KCHA'’s Balance Sheet, the continued operations of core programs such as
Resident Services and Homeless Housing as well as planned expansion of
households served across all programs and portfolios.

Funding sources have been identified for all expenditures reflected in the 2018
Budget

On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Brown,
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5582.

. Resolution No. 5583: Commitment of CY 2017 excess savings from the

Authority’s Energy Performance Contract

Connie Davis, Deputy Executive Director presented Resolution No. 5583. The
Authority’s Energy Performance Contract (EPC) may have excess savings in CY
2017; Resolution No. 5583 will commit these savings to elevator repairs and
replacement in one or more of the Authority’s senior mid-rise buildings as an
eligible energy savings measure under HUD’s EPC program.

On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Palmer,
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5583.

BRIEFINGS AND REPORTS

A. New Bank Accounts
Craig Violante, Director of Finance, reported that KCHA opened eleven new

business bank accounts for Colonial Gardens, Ballinger Commons,
Timberwood, Woodland North, Cottonwood, Cove East and the Corinthian
properties.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Stephen Norman, Executive Director, discussed intended outcomes and topics
for discussion, in preparation of the upcoming Board retreat.

Mr. Norman provided an update on federal legislative budget activities; the
completed acquisition of Ballinger Common; closings on two other LIHTC
transactions; and, announced a ‘clean’ financial and accountability audit
conducted by the State Auditors’ Office.



KCHA Board of Commissioners’
December 18, 2017 Meeting Minutes

Page 4 of 4

X. KCHA IN THE NEWS
None.

XI. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
None.

XII. ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Commissioner Stewart and second by Commissioner Palmer,
Chair Barnes adjourned the meeting at 10:28 a.m.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair
Board of Commissioners

STEPHEN J. NORMAN
Secretary



V.

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY

January 25 and 26, 2018
CALL TO ORDER

The special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the King County Housing
Authority was called to order by Commissioner Doug Barnes at 6:31 p.m. on
Thursday, January 25, 2018, at Palace Kitchen, located at 2030 5t Avenue,
Seattle, WA 98121 and reconvened the morning of Friday, January 26, 2018 at
the University of Washington Center for Urban Horticulture, located at 3501
NE 41st Street, Seattle, WA.

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner Doug Barnes (Chair), Commissioner Michael Brown,
Commissioner Richard Mitchell, Commissioner Susan Palmer, and
Commissioner TerryLynn Stewart

DISCUSSION

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) Board of Commissioners and
senior staff participated in a retreat, which began the evening of Thursday,
January 25, 2018 and all day on Friday, January 26, 2018. The discussions
focused on five strategic goals, prioritized from a set of eleven long-term goals
and objectives that were established by the Board at the last retreat, in 2014.
The 2018 retreat agenda and conversation topics were developed in
collaboration with Commissioners and executive team members through
various planning meetings prior to the retreat.

No action was taken at the meeting.
ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Commissioner Stewart, seconded by Commissioner Mitchell,
which motion was duly carried by unanimous vote, the Board adjourned the
special meeting at 3:30 p.m. on Friday, January 26, 2018.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair
Board of Commissioners

STEPHEN J. NORMAN
Secretary



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

Q\



King County
Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Linda Riley, Controller
Date: December 28, 2017

Re: VOUCHER CERTIFICATION FOR NOVEMBER 2017

I, Linda Riley, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the services
rendered or the labor performed as described herein, and that the claims represented by the vouchers listed
below were just obligations of the Housing Authority of the County of King, and that | am authorized to
authenticate and certify said claims. .

]

i
Linda Riley
Controller U
December 28, 2017

Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 6,606,078.79 .
Subtotal 6,606,078.79

Accounts Payable Vouchers

Key Bank Checks - #312788-#313218 5,505,203.56
Tenant Accounting Checks - #10490-#10501 2,297.15
Commerce Bank Direct Payment 92,838.37

Subtotal 5,600,339.08

Payroll Vouchers
Checks - #90674-#90702 28,791.09 .
Direct Deposit 1,368,984.73
Subtotal 1,397,775.82 .

Section 8 Program Vouchers
Checks - #619698-#620004 264,108.82
ACH - #399021-#401731 12,317,062.55 :
Subtotal  12,581,171.37

Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal 209,978.65
Subtotal 209,978.65

GRAND TOTAL  26,395,343.71




FROM: Wen Xu

TO: THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

SUBJECT: VOUCHER CERTIFICATION FOR DECEMBER 2017

1, Wen Xu, do hereby certify under penally of perjury lhat lhe claims represented by the transactions below were just, due, and unpaid obligations against the Housing Authority,
and thal |, and my designees, are authorized to authenticale and certify said claims

Wi

/7
/7

Wen Xu
Direclor of Asset Management
January 22,2018
Property Wired to Operating Account(s) for Obligations of Prope Notes:
Dec-17 Date Clalm
|Bellepark East 12/712017 $ 23,648.17 A/P & Payroll
121132017 |8 7.448.57 AP
12/20/2017 $ 16,945.48 A/P & Payroll
Colonial Gardens 12/7/2017 3 16,600.97 A/P & Payroll
12132017 | 8 12,664.21 AP
12/20/2017 $ 14,486.83 A/P & Payroll
Cottonwood 121712017 $ 77,900.23 A/P & Payroll
12/13/2017 $ 6,227.56 AP
12/20/2017 $ 4,985.31 A/P & Payroll
Cove East 121712017 $ 34,397.84 AP & Payroll
12/13/2017 $ 2,782.78 AP
12/20/2017 $ 74,250 41 A/P & Payroll
Landmark 12/7/2017 $ 30,741.25 AJP & Payroll
12/13/2017 $ 5,366.43 AP
12/20/2017 $ 67,229.51 A/P & Payroll
Timberwood 1217/2017 $ 22,903.59 A/P & Payroll
12/12/2017 13 11,000.00 Payroll
12/13/2017 3 52,992 29 AIP
12/20/2017 .$ 66,859.06 A/P & Payroll
Woodland North 12/7/2017 $ 20,128.72 | AP & Payroll
12/13/2017 $ 33,186.32 AP
12/20/2017 $ 192,399 50 A/P & Payroll
12/21/2017 $ 8,811.86 AIP
Woodside East 12/7/2017 3 30,527.50 AP & Payroll
12/13/2017 $ 26,971.01 AIP
12/20/2017 $ 61,184.64 A/P & Payroll
Alpine Ridge 12/14/2017 $ 50,072.88 AP & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 15,257.72
Arbor Heights 12/14/2017 $ 33,988.52 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 3 23,310.53
Aspen Ridge 12/14/2017 $ 26,402.62 A/P & Payroll
1212812017 | § 10,868.85 '
Auburn Sgquare 12114/2017 $ 36,063.28 AIP & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 25,681.81
Carriage House 12/14/2017 $ 46,299 45 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 28,175.36 )
Cascadian 12/7/2017 $ 156,618.47 AP
12/14/2017 $ 37,933.96 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 26,774.85 )
airwood 12/712017 $ 23,047.69 AIP
12/14/2017 $ 41,878.40 AP & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 36,494.09
Heritage Park 12/14/2017 $ 47,213.90 AP & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 34,724.06
Laurelwood 12/14/2017 $ 32,234.41 A/P & Payroll
1212812017 | $ 27,309.25 ]
Meadows 12114/2017 $ 32,321.57 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 17,841.16
Newporter 12/14/2017 $ 64,690.39 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 42,166.16
Overlake TOD 12/712017 J 3 146,807.93 A/P & Debt Svc
12/14/2017 $ 64,898.48
Parkwood 1211412017 $ 28,360 99 AJP & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 15,584.12
Somerset East 12/14/2017 $ 28,423.02 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 14,805.99
|Somerset West 127/2017 $ 18,600.00 AP
12/14/2017 $ 33,651 33 A/P & Payrall
12/28/2017 $ 16,338.05
|Southwood Square 12/14/2017 3 23,861.11 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 17,933,47
Walnut Park 12/14/2017 | $ 54,917.22 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 35,224,14




Windsor Helahts 12/7/2017 $ 11,194.90 AlP
12/14/2017 .$ 95,981.28 A/P & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 44,754.98

Woadridge Park 12/14/2017 | § 55,904.63 AIP & Payroll
12/28/2017 $ 43,242.67

Ballinger Commons 12/28/2017 ] 8,032.10 Payroll & Buffer

Gitman Square 12/13/2017 $ 30,216.77) A/P & Payroll
12/27/12017 $ 54,056 69 AJP & Payroll

Meadowbrook 12/13/2017 $ 32,501.71 AJP & Payroll
12/27/2017 $ 23,990.42 AP & Payroll
12/29/2017 $ 232,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA

Villages at South Station 12/13/2017 3 60,687 52 A/P & Payroll
1212712017 $ 52,143.15 A/P & Payroll

Rainier View | 121712017 $ 27,078.32 AIP
12{14/2017 $ 10,169.76 AIP
12/21/2017 3 4.693:68 AP

Rainier View Il 121712017 $ 21,096.60 | AIP
12/14/2017 $ 5,855.52 AlP
12/21/2017 $ 3,794.01 AlP

Sl View 121712017 $ 8,716.45 AP
12/14/2017 $ 2,769.67 AP
12/21/2017 $ 15,998 94 AlP

Abboy Ridge 12/14/2017 $ 36,990.74 AJP & Payroll
12/21/12017 $ 6,235.00 AIP
12/28/2017 $ 29,255.59 AlP & Payroll

Highland Village 12/14/2017 $ 32,963.12 A/P & Payrall
12/28/2017 3 8,891.60 A/P & Payroll

Vashon Terrace 12/14/2017 $ 6,792.09 AlP

Portfolio Total:| $ 3,164,301.28




= << 0

Z D > 0 W

o



King County
Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Linda Riley, Controller

Date: January 31, 2018

Re: VOUCHER CERTIFICATION FOR DECEMBER 2017

[, Linda Riley, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the services
rendered or the labor performed as described herein, and that the claims represented by the vouchers listed
below were just obligations of the Housing Authority of the County of King, and that | am authorized to
authenticate and certify said claims.

Linda Riley
Controller
January 31, 2018

Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals

Subtotal  22,902,308.06
Accounts Payable Vouchers
Key Bank Checks - #313219-#313869 8,490,829.27 -
Tenant Accounting Checks - #10502-#10521 3,057.19
Commerce Bank Direct Payment 63,262.43
Subtotal 8,557,148.89
Payroll Vouchers
Checks - #90703-#90742 45,120.88
Direct Deposit 2,146,215.12
Subtotal 2,191,336.00
Section 8 Program Vouchers
Checks - #620005-#620303 255,562.14
ACH - #401732-#404505 12,511,042.44
Subtotal . 12,766,604.58
Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal ; 260,890.55
Subtotal 260,890.55

GRAND TOTAL

22,902,308.06

46,678,288.08




TO: THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

FROM: Wen Xu

SUBJECT: VOUCHER CERTIFICATION FOR NOVEMBER 2017

|, Wen Xu, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury lhal the claims repr
and that I, and my desi

by the ir I below were just, due, and unpaid obligations against the Housing Authority,

and cerlify said claims.

Wen Xu

i R

Director of Asset Management
December 18,2017

P;z_g.n%y w:;::.letu Op g A 2 (s} for Ohllgnilon::;fi:'mpady Notes:
Bellepark East 111112017 $3,662.86 AP
111812017 $25,6822.08 A/P & Payroll
11/156/12017 $11,715.21 A/P
11/17/12017 $110,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $26,398.21 AIP & Payroll
11/29/2017 $5,740.15 AfP
Colonial Gardens 11/1/2017 $1,948.89 AlP
11/8/2017 $13,343.14 A/P & Payroll
11/15/2017 $8,414.05 AP
11/17/2017 $90,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $4,618.26 A/P & Payroll
11/28/2017 $6,969.77 AIP
Cottonwood 11/1/2017 $2,149.71 AP
11/8/2017 $9,011.18 A/P & Payroll
11/15/2017 $4,712.36 AP
111712017 $42,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $10,534 14 A/P & Payroll
11/28/2017 $12,972 40 AP
Cove East 111112017 $5,931.03 AP
11/8/2017 $25,955.29 AP & Payroll
11/15/12017 $8,535.28 AP
11/17/2017 $150,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $11,842.31 A/P & Payroll
11/29/2017 $17,005.64 AlP
Landmark 11112017 $4,952.84 AlP
11/812017 $23,116.58 AP & Payroll
11/16/12017 $34,970.95 AP
11/17/2017 $425,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $60,120.53 A/P & Payroll
11/29/2017 $65,490.70 AIP
Timberwood 11/1/2017 $47,059.50 A/P
11/8/2017 $47,040.57 A/P & Payroll
11/15/2017 $27,408.68 AIP
11/17/2017 $256,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/12017 $52,3680.24 A/P & Payroll
11/29/2017 $42,121.50 AP
Woodland North 11/1/2017 $119,653 64 AP
11/8/2017 $12,808.78 A/P & Payroll
11/15/2017 $1,796.34 AP
1111712017 $120,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $9,294.24 AP & Payroll
11/29/2017 $11,513.82 AP
Woaodside East 11/1/2017 $24,891.52 AP
1132017 | $3,400.00 AP
11/8/2017 $26,571.18 AP & Payroll
11/15/2017 $18,506.46 AP & Payroll
11/16/2017 $1,004.00 Correction
111712017 $270,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $63,926.90 A/P & Payroll
11/29/2017 $13,318.64 AP
Alpine Ridge 11/212017 $2,183.92 |- Payroll
11/9/2017 $6,766.79 |~ AP
11/16/2017 $2,691.98 |~ Payroll
14/17/2017 $127,000.00 |~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $13,362.77 |-~ A/P & Payroll
Arbor Heights 11/2/2017 $5,426.86 Payroll
11/8/2017 $19,065.50 i AP
11/16/2017 $5,623.06 Payroll
1111772017 $38,37200 |  Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $24,740.31 A/P & Payroll




Aspon Rldao 11/2/2017 $5,647.19 |~ Payrall
11/9/2017 $24,851.55 |- AP
11/16/2017 $6,800.14 |~ Payroll
11/17/2017 $100,000.00 |-~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $33,427.05 |- AP & Payroll
Auburn Sguare 11/2/2017 $6,882.35 | Payroll
111812017 $63,387.78 AP
11/16/2017 $8,549.94 Payrolt
11/17/2017 $300,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $38,163.76 AJP & Payroll
arrlage House 111212017 $11,351.55 |~ Payroll
11/9/2017 $61,212.99 A/P
1111612017 $11,581.69 Payroll
111712017 $350,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $41,904.10 A/P & Payroll
Cascadian 111212017 $11,200.90 Payroll
11/9/2017 $79,320.32 AP
11/16/2017 $11,516.25 Payroll
11/17/2017 $490,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $60,006.26 AfP & Payroll
Fairwood 111212017 $9,258.05 |~ Payroll
11/9/2017 $36,035.06 |~ AP
11/16/2017 $9,085.09 |~ Payroll
1111712017 $160,000.00 |~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $40,320,57 | ~ A/P & Payroll
Heritage Park 11/212017 $4,204.12 |~ Payroll
11/912017 $8,825.50 |~ AP
11/16/2017 $5,002.01 |~ Payroll
11/17/2017 $205,000.00 |~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $10,837.04 | - A/P & Payroll
Lauraiwood 114212017 $7,671.68 Payroll
11/9/2017 $24,978.68 AP
11/16/2017 $7,241.93 Payroll
11/17/2017 $130,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $31,993.51 A/P & Payroll
|Meadows 11/212017 $6,277.42 | - Payroll
11/8/2017 $9,229.39 |~ AIP
11/16/2017 $5,722.56 |~ Payrolt
11/17/2017 $18,000.00 |~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $25,066.03 |~ AP & Payroll
|Nowportar 11/2/2017 $8,587.37 |~ Payroll
111912017 $31,587.74 |~ AP
11/16/2017 $6,969 12 Payroll
11/17/2017 $100,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $35,436 44 AP & Payroll
Overlake TOD 11/2/2017 $15,101.46 Payroll
11/9/2017 $133,109 15 A/P & Debl Service
11/16/2017 $15,827.99 Payroll
11/30/2017 $49,361.21 A/P & Payroll
Parkwood 14/2/2017 $4,995.92 Payroll
11/9/2017 $18,908.31 A/P
11/16/2017 $4,924 60 Payroll
1111712017 $200,000.00 |  Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $14,627.07 A/P & Payroll
|Somerset East 11/2/2017 $4,443.84 Payroll
11/8/2017 $19,293.47 AP
11/16/2017 $6,066.36 Payroll
11/30/2017 $9,821.85 A/P & Payroll
|Somerset West 111212017 $5,569.25 Payroll
11/9/2017 $54,544.53 AP
11/16/2017 $3,994.97 Payroll
11/30/2017 $20,184.24 A/P & Payrall
Southwood Sguare 11/2/2017 $6,444.13 Payroll
11/9/2017 $15,664.58 A/P
11116/2017 $6,350.19 Payroll
11/17/2017 $50,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $17,189.64 A/P & Payroll
Walnut Park 11/2/2017 $10,988 66 Payroll
11/9/2017 $72,671.44 AP
11/16/2017 $7,602 80 Payroll
11/17/2017 $350,000.00 Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $40,980 30 A/P & Payroll




Windsor Helahts 11/2/2017 $17,294.89 | Payroll
11/9/2017 $37,422.88 |~ AP
11/16/2017 $17,240.49 | Payroll
1111712017 $639,000.00 [~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $51,031.93 |~ AIP & Payroll
Woodridge Park 11/2/2017 $11,230567 |~ Payroll
11/8/2017 $44,866.91 [ AIP
11/16/2017 $11,646.10 |- Payroll
11/17/2017 $23,000.00 | ~ Excess Cash to KCHA
11/21/2017 $10,580.47 |- AIP
11/30/2017 $74,625.47 |~ AP & Payroll
Gilman Square 11112017 $39,407 41 AP & Payroll
11/15/2017 $17,220.16 A/P & Payroll
11117/2017 $350,000.00|  Excess Cash to KCHA
11/29/2017 $26,005.95 AIP & Payroll
Meadowbrook 11/1/2017 $49,677.80 A/P 8 Payroll
11/15/2017 $27,227.19 AIP & Payroll
11/29/2017 $16,218.53 A/P & Payroll
Villages at South Station 11/1/2017 $36,766.69 A/P & Payroll
1111512017 $35,088.07 AP & Payroll
1111712017 $200,000.00 |  Excess Cash to KCHA
11/20/2017 $63,592.41 AP & Payroll
Ralnler View | 1112/2017 $2,864.64 AP
11/9/2017 $9,572.66 AIP
11/16/2017 $12,128 67 AIP
Rainier View Il 11/2/2017 $1,935.71 AP
11/0/2017 $8,393.35 AIP
11/16/2017 $6.242.33 AP
Si View 11/9/2017 $3,578.41 AP
11116/2017 $3,320.53 AP
11/21/2017 $3,901.55 AIP
Abbey Ridge 11/2/2017 $38,281.24 AP & Payroll
11/16/2017 $58,992.76 AIP & Payroll
11/17/2017 $200,000.00 |  Excess Cash to KCHA
11/30/2017 $61,396.18 AP & Payroll
i d Village 1112/2017 $7,801.49 A/P & Payroll
11116/2017 $19,655.99 AJP & Payroll
11/30/2017 $6,389,57 AP & Payroll
Vashon Terrace 11/8/2017 $5,359.22 AP
11117/2017 $15,000.00 | Excess Cash to KCHA
11/29/2017 $6,706.02 AP
Portfollo Total:| $8,615,147.38




= << 0

Z D > 0 W

4



/\ King County

Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Connie Davis, Deputy Executive Director

Date February 20, 2018

Re: Resolution No. 5584: Evidencing the intent to operate Friendly

Village Mobile Home Park as housing for persons 55 years of age or older
under the terms of the Housing for Older Persons Act (HOPA)

Executive Summary
This resolution confirms the King County Housing Authority (KCHA’s) on-going

intent to operate Friendly Village Mobile Home Park as housing for persons 55 years
of age or older under the terms of the Housing for Older Persons Act (HOPA). The
resolution authorizes KCHA officers to take the actions, described in the Resolution,
to ensure the development conforms to the HOPA exemption regarding familial
discrimination under the Fair Housing Act.

Background

On November 1, 2017, KCHA purchased Friendly Village Mobile Home Park, a
manufactured housing community for seniors located in Redmond, which had been
operated by the prior owner as a 55+ community.

HOPA sets forth the ‘safe harbor’ guidelines under the Fair Housing Act that, if
followed, allow owners of multi-family developments to rent units only to seniors and
to exclude families and children. Since acquiring the site, KCHA has continued to
ensure that at least 80% of the occupied units have at least one household member
over the age of 55. KCHA has consistently marketed the site as senior housing and
has published and will adhere to policies that are consistent with this intent. Passing
this resolution will serve as additional evidence of KCHA’s intent to operate this
development as housing for persons 55 years of age or older.

Moving forward, KCHA will fill all vacancies at Friendly Village Mobile Home Park
with residents over the age of 55. KCHA’s internal policy, in place at KCHA’s other
manufactured housing properties, is to target 100% senior occupancy. This rental
approach is intended to bring the occupancy at Friendly Village Mobile Home Park
into conformance with that policy.

Staff Recommendation:
Passage of Resolution No. 5584 is recommended.




HOPA Confirmation

This will confirm to the Commissioners of the Housing Authority of King County that
Friendly Village Mobile Home Park qualifies for exemption from familial discrimination
under the Housing for Older Persons Act (HOPA) and that the Authority intends to
continue operating the property as housing primarily for persons aged 55 and older
pursuant to HOPA requirements.

Stephen J. Norman
Executive Director

February 26, 2018

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting Executive Director of the
Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) and keeper of the records of
the Authority, CERTIFY:

1. That the attached Resolution No. 5584 (the “Resolution”) is a true and correct
copy of the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority, as adopted
at a special meeting of the Authority held on February 26, 2018, and duly
recorded in the minute books of the Authority.

2. That such meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with
law; that a quorum was present throughout the meeting and a majority of the
members of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority present at the meeting
voted in the proper manner for the adoption of the Resolution; that all other
requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption of the Resolution
have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed, and that I am
authorized to execute this Certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this February 26, 2018.

Stephen J. Norman
Executive Director of the Authority



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

RESOLUTION NO. 5584

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING EVIDENCING THE INTENT OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY TO OPERATE FRIENDLY VILLAGE
MOBILE HOME PARK AS HOUSING FOR OCCUPANCY BY
PERSONS AGE 55 OR OLDER

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”)
seeks to encourage the provision of long-term housing for low-income persons,
including seniors, residing within King County, Washington; and,

WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.070(2) provides that a housing authority may “prepare,
carry out, acquire, lease and operate housing projects. . .”; and,

WHEREAS, in November 2017, the Authority acquired Friendly Village Mobile
Home Park, 18425 NE 95T™ Street, Redmond, WA which is occupied entirely or
primarily by senior residents; and,

WHEREAS, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended (the “Fair
Housing Act”) prohibits discrimination against persons because of race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, handicap and family status in the provision of housing and housing-related
services, with certain exemptions from the ban against discrimination based on familial
status for housing that is intended and operated for occupancy by persons age 55 or older if
the housing satisfies criteria under the Housing for Older Persons Act (“HOPA”™); and,

WHEREAS,; in order to claim exemption from the familial status provision of the
Fair Housing Act for housing intended and operated for occupancy by persons 55 years of
age or older, a housing program must meet the following requirements: (i) at least 80

percent of the occupied units are occupied by at least one person who is 55 years of age or



Resolution No. 5584 HOPA Friendly Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 2 0f 3
older (24 CFR 100.305); (ii) the housing facility must publish and adhere to policies and
procedures that demonstrate [such] intent (24 CFR 100.306); and (iii) the housing facility
must comply with rules issued by the Secretary [of HUD] for verification of occupancy (24
CFR 100.307); and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF
KING; THAT:

Section 1: Intent to Operate Properties as Housing for Older Persons. KCHA

intends to continue operating Friendly Village Mobile Home Park for occupancy by
persons 55 years of age or older, and otherwise in the fullest practical conformance with
the provisions of the HOPA. In that regard, the Authority shall continue to:

i) maintain an up-to-date database containing the name, address and date
of birth of all owners/occupants in the residential units, with the age of each
owner/occupant to be verified by driver’s license, passport, birth certificate, military
record or other allowable document;

ii) conduct a biannual age verification of all owners/occupants based on
information contained in the resident file and retain a written report accurately
representing the number and percentage of owners/occupants conforming to the
Authority’s age restriction criteria;

iii) ensure that no less than 80 percent of the occupied residential units
are occupied by one or more persons 55 years of age or older. KCHA’s policy moving
forward at Friendly Village is to reach and maintain 100% occupancy by persons aged 55

and older;



Resolution No. 5584 HOPA Friendly Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page3of 3
iv) publish and adhere to policies that demonstrate the Authority’s intent
to primarily provide housing for persons 55 years of age or older; and
v) ensure that these properties are represented, through signage and

internal and external communications, as housing primarily for older persons.

Section 2. Governmental Filings: Other Agreements. The Executive Director is

further authorized to execute, deliver and, if applicable, file (or cause to be executed,
delivered and, if applicable, filed), on behalf of the Authority, any government forms,
affidavits, certificates, letters, documents, agreements and instruments that he
determines to be necessary or advisable to give effect to this resolution and to
consummate the transactions contemplated herein,. He is further authorized to take
such other actions as may be necessary or advisable to give effect to these resolutions.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from

and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING AT AN OPEN PUBLIC SPECIAL
MEETING THIS 26t DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2018.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING

By:

Douglas J. Barnes, Chair

ATTEST:

Stephen J. Norman, Secretary



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

LO



/\ King County

Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners
From: Dan Landes, Senior Development Manager
Date February 20, 2018

Re: Resolution No. 5585: A Resolution authorizing the transfer of the
Highland Village Apartments to Somerset Garden Apartments LLLP;
authorizing the execution and delivery of all documents relating to the
acquisition, rehabilitation, construction, and financing of the Highland
Village Project; and determining related matters

Executive Summary
Resolution No. 5585 makes changes to Resolutions 5577 and 5578 to enable the

Authority to move forward with the Highland Village and Somerset Gardens
developments as one project. Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP will be the
partnership for this combined project, and this resolution changes the Highland
Village tax credit partnership from Highland Village Apartments LLLP to Somerset
Gardens Apartments LLLP.

Background

At the December 7, 2017 Board Meeting the Board of Commissioners adopted
resolutions No. 5577 and 5578, authorizing the Authority to proceed with the
developments of Highland Village Apartments and Somerset Gardens Apartments,
including the forming of tax credit partnerships with tax credit investors and securing
other financing as necessary to complete the developments. As authorized by those
resolutions, on December 15, 2017, the Authority closed on tax-exempt bond
financing with Bank of America in the amount of $25,000,000 for Highland Village
and $20,000,000 for Somerset Gardens.

At the time of the December 2017 Board meeting, staff envisioned developing
Highland Village and Somerset Gardens as two separate projects, and we formed two
partnerships, Highland Village Apartments LLLP and Somerset Gardens Apartments
LLLP. The bond loan agreements authorized the Authority to loan the Highland
Village bond proceeds to Highland Village Apartments LLLP and the Somerset
Gardens proceeds to Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP. After a competitive
solicitation of proposals, we selected RBC Capital as the tax credit investor for both
projects and began negotiating the deal with them. RBC has requested that the two
projects be combined into one partnership for both administrative and technical tax
credit related reasons.

Staff Recommendation
Passage of Resolution No. 5585 is recommended.




52957031.2

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5585

(Highland Village and Somerset Gardens)

A RESOLUTION authorizing the transfer of the Highland Village
Apartments to Somerset Garden Apartments LLLP; authorizing the execution and
delivery of all documents relating to the acquisition, rehabilitation, construction, and
financing of the Highland Village Project; and determining related matters.

ADOPTED: February 26, 2018

This document was prepared by:

FOSTER PEPPER PLLC
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 3000
Seattle, Washington 98101
(206) 447-4400



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5585
(Highland Village and Somerset Gardens)
A RESOLUTION authorizing the transfer of the Highland Village

Apartments to Somerset Garden Apartments LLLP; authorizing the execution and

delivery of all documents relating to the acquisition, rehabilitation, construction, and

financing of the Highland Village Project; and determining related matters.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 5577 of the Authority adopted December 7, 2017,
the Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) formed Highland Village
Apartments LLLP, a Washington limited liability limited partnership of which the Authority is the
sole general partner, and authorized the Authority to seek and select a tax credit investor to serve as
limited partner of Highland Village Apartments LLLP; to lease the real property and improvements
located at 600 146™ Avenue NE, Bellevue, Washington, known as the Highland Village Apartments
(the “Highland Village Project”, which currently contain 76 units of low income housing, and which
after rehabilitation and construction is expected to include an additional 24 additional units of low
income housing), to Highland Village Apartments LLLP; to obtain construction, permanent,
subordinate and seller financing to finance the acquisition, rehabilitation and construction of the
Highland Village Project; and to take such other actions necessary or desirable in connection with
the transactions described in Resolution No. 5577 of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 5578 of the Authority adopted December 7, 2017,
the Authority authorized the issuance of its Revenue Note, 2017 (Highland Village Project), in a
principal amount not to exceed $25,000,000 (the “Highland Village Note™) the proceeds of which
were authorized to be used to make a loan to Highland Village Apartments LLLP, to pay the costs

of acquiring, constructing and rehabilitating the Highland Village Project; and

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 2 of 10

WHEREAS, the Highland Village Note was issued on December 15, 2017, and sold to
Bank of America, N.A., with certain additional terms provided in a Term Loan Agreement
(Highland Village) dated December 15, 2018 (the “Highland Village Term Loan Agreement”),
between the Authority and Bank of America, N.A.; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 5579 of the Authority adopted December 7, 2017,
the Authority formed Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP, a Washington limited liability limited
partnership of which the Authority is the sole general partner, and authorized the Authority to seek
and select a tax credit investor to serve as limited partner of Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP;
to lease the real property and improvements located at 14700 NE 29" Place, Bellevue, Washington
(the “Somerset Gardens Project,” which includes 198 units of low income housing), known as the
Somerset Garden Apartments, to Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP; to obtain construction,
permanent, subordinate and seller financing to finance the acquisition and rehabilitation of the
Somerset Gardens Project; and to take such other actions necessary or desirable in connection with
the transactions described in Resolution No. 5579 of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 5580 of the Authority adopted December 7, 2017,
the Authority authorized the issuance of its Revenue Note, 2017 (Somerset Gardens Project), in a
principal amount not to exceed $20,000,000 (the “Somerset Gardens Note™) the proceeds of which
were authorized to be used to make a loan to Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP, to pay the costs
of acquiring and rehabilitating the Somerset Gardens Project; and

WHEREAS, the Somerset Gardens Note was issued on December 15, 2017, and sold to
Bank of America, N.A., with certain additional terms provided in a Term Loan Agreement
(Somerset Gardens) dated December 15, 2018 (the “Somerset Gardens Term Loan Agreement”),

between the Authority and Bank of America, N.A.; and

-2-

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 3 of 10

WHEREAS, in the process of seeking tax credit investor limited partners for each of
Highland Village Apartments LLLP and Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP, the Authority has
concluded that more favorable terms are available if the Highland Village Project and Somerset
Gardens Project are owned by a single partnership; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Authority wishes to authorize the lease of
the Highland Village Project to Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP, to authorize Somerset
Gardens Apartments LLLP to obtain construction, permanent, subordinate and seller financing to
finance the acquisition, rehabilitation and construction of the Highland Village Project, to authorize
the proceeds the Highland Village Note to be used to make a loan to Somerset Gardens Apartments
LLLP to pay the costs of acquiring, constructing and rehabilitating the Highland Village Project,
and to authorize such other actions necessary or desirable in connection with the transactions
described in Resolution No. 5577 and Resolution No. 5578 of the Authority and herein; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Authority wishes to authorize the
assignment by Highland Village Apartments LLLP to Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP of all
contracts entered into and all work product undertaken by or on behalf of Highland Village
Apartments LLLP with respect to the Highland Village Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Authority wishes to authorize the
assumption by Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP from Highland Village Apartments LLLP of
all contracts entered into and all work product undertaken by or on behalf of Highland Village
Apartments LLLP with respect to the Highland Village Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Authority has determined that it is in the

best interest of the Authority to provide supplemental authority to permit the acquisition,

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 4 of 10

construction, rehabilitation and financing of both the Highland Village Project and Somerset
Gardens Project by Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING as follows:

Section 1. Lease and Financing of Highland Village Apartments by Somerset

Gardens Apartments LLLP. The Authority is authorized to enter into a long term lease of the

Highland Village Project with Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP for a term of up to 99 years,
pursuant to which Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP will acquire (for federal tax purposes)
ownership of the Highland Village Project. Such lease may be combined with or in a separate
instrument from the long term lease of the Somerset Gardens Project to Somerset Gardens
Apartments LLLP authorized by Resolution No. 5579 of the Authority. The authorization and
direction provided by Sections 2 through 10 (inclusive) of Resolution No. 5577 of the Authority
including, without limitation, authorization with respect to the Tax Exempt Loan, the Permanent
Financing, the Subordinate Loan, the Deferred Developer Fee and the Soft Loans (each as
defined in Resolution No. 5577 of the Authority), shall be amended to change the definition of
“Partnership” to refer to Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP. Further, the authorizations
included in Resolution No. 5577, Resolution No. 5578, Resolution No. 5579 and/or Resolution
No. 5580 of the Authority shall each be expanded to permit any instrument authorized by any
such resolution to be combined with an instrument authorized by another such resolution or this
resolution, at the discretion of the Executive Director.

Section 2. Loan of Proceeds of Highland Village Note to Somerset Gardens

Apartments LLLP; Amendments to Term Loan Agreements. In recognition that both the

Somerset Gardens Project and Highland Village Project will be owned (for federal tax purposes)

-4-

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 5 of 10

by Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP, all references in Resolution No. 5577 and Resolution
No. 5578 of the Authority to “Highland Village Apartments LLLP” or the “Partnership” shall be
amended to refer to “Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP.” In furtherance of, and not in
limitation of the foregoing, all proceeds of the Highland Village Note will be lent to Somerset
Gardens Apartments LLLP to pay costs of the acquisition, construction and rehabilitation of the
Highland Village Project, Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP will enter into a Regulatory
Agreement with respect to the Highland Village Project, and the Loan Agreement (as defined in
Resolution No. 5578 of the Authority) will be between the Authority and Somerset Gardens
Apartments LLLP. The Authorized Officers (as defined in Resolution No. 5578), and each of
them acting alone, are authorized to negotiate, execute and deliver one or more amendments to
the Highland Village Term Loan Agreement, Somerset Gardens Term Loan Agreement, and other
instruments pertaining to the Somerset Garden Note and Highland Village Note as may be
necessary or desirable to give effect to this resolution.

Section 3. Assignment and Assumption. The Executive Director and any Deputy

Executive Director of the Authority (collectively, the “Authorized Officers”), and each of them
acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority (acting on its own behalf or as general
partner of Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP or Highland Village Apartments LLLP) to
negotiate, execute and deliver one or more amendments, assignments or assumptions as may be
necessary for the assignment by Highland Village Apartments LLLP to and the assumption by
Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP of all contracts entered into and all work product undertaken

by or on behalf of Highland Village Apartments LLLP with respect to the Highland Village Project.

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 6 of 10

Section 4. No Other Changes. Except as modified by this resolution, all other

provisions of Resolution No. 5577, Resolution No. 5578, Resolution No. 5579, and Resolution
No. 5580 of the Authority shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5. Supplemental Authorization. The Authorized Officers, and each of them

acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority (acting on its own behalf or as general
partner of Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP or Highland Village Apartments LLLP) to
execute and deliver and, if applicable, file (or cause to be delivered and/or filed) any government
forms, affidavits, certificates, letters, documents, agreements and instruments that such officer
determines to be necessary or advisable to give effect to this resolution and to consummate the
transactions contemplated herein and/or further the acquisition, development, financing,
construction, rehabilitation, and leasing of the Somerset Gardens Project and/or the Highland
Village Project. The Board authorizes and directs the Authority’s Executive Director to cause
the Authority (whether acting on its own behalf or in its capacity as general partner Somerset
Gardens Apartments LLLP, as applicable) to fulfill the Authority’s duties and obligations, and
cause Somerset Gardens Apartments LLLP to fulfill such partnership’s duties and obligations
under the various transaction documents.

Section 6. Acting Officers Authorized. Any action authorized by this resolution to

be taken by the Executive Director of the Authority, may in his absence be taken by a duly
authorized Deputy Executive Director of the Authority. Any action authorized by this resolution
to be taken by a Deputy Executive Director of the Authority, may in his or her absence be taken
by a duly authorized acting Deputy Executive Director of the Authority.

Section 7. Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of the Authority or its officers

prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution, including execution of

-6-

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 7 of 10

any agreements pertaining to the construction and/or rehabilitation of the Highland Village
Project and/or Somerset Gardens Project, are ratified and confirmed.

Section 8. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and

after its adoption and approval.
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of
King at an open public special meeting thereof, of which due notice was given as provided by law,
this 26™ day of February 2018.
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OGF
KIN

By

Douglas J. Barnes, Chair
ATTEST:

Stephen J. Norman, Secretary

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 8 of 10

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting Secretary and Executive
Director of the Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) and keeper of the
records of the Authority, CERTIFY:

1. That the attached copy of Resolution No. 5585 (the “Resolution”) is a full, true and
correct copy of the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority, as adopted at a
meeting of the Authority held on February 26, 2018, and duly recorded in the minute books of the
Authority;

2 That written notice specifying the time and place of the special meeting and noting
the business to be transacted was given to all members of the Board of Commissioners by mail, fax,
electronic mail or personal delivery at least 24 hours prior to the special meeting, a true and
complete copy of which notice is attached hereto as Appendix I;

3. That the written notice described above was also posted on the Authority’s website
and prominently displayed at the main entrance of the Authority’s administrative office at 600
Andover Park W., Tukwila, Washington 98188 and at the meeting site, if different, at least 24
hours prior to the special meeting;

4. That the written notice described above was given to each local radio or television
station and to each newspaper of general circulation that has on file with the Authority a written
request to be notified of special meetings and to any others to which such notices are customarily
given by the Authority; and

5. That such meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with
law; that a quorum was present throughout the meeting and a majority of the members of the
Board of Commissioners of the Authority present at the meeting voted in the proper manner for
the adoption of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings incident to the proper
adoption of the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed, and that
I am authorized to execute this Certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hdnd this 26™ day of February, 2018.

I—

Stephen Norman, Secretary and Executive Director
of the Aythority

CERTIFICATE

52957031.2



Resolution No. 5585 LIHTC Partnership for Somerset/Highland Village
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 9 of 10

APPENDIX |

52957031.2



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

O



/\ King County

Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: John Eliason, Development Director

Date February 20, 2018

Re: Resolution No. 5586: Authorizing the Executive Director to amend,
rescind, restructure and/or enter into new agreements with HomeSight

related to HomeSight Phase III affordable homeownership project
located adjacent to the Greenbridge community

Executive Summary

Resolution No. 5586 authorizes the Executive Director to amend, rescind, restructure
and/or enter into new agreements with HomeSight to facilitate the construction of up
to three homes for low-income homebuyers and to reacquire from HomeSight a
minimum of two and potentially up to all five lots previously sold to HomeSight in
August, 2016.

Background

In August 2016, KCHA entered into a land sale contract and a loan agreement with
HomeSight for the construction of 5 single family homes that would be sold to low-
income households. Since that time, increasing costs of construction and a lack of
interest by homebuilders in constructing the homes has impacted the financial
feasibility of the project. In addition, given the size and proximity of two of the lots to
White Center Elementary and the retail core of Greenbridge, KCHA has determined
these two lots would be better suited for a non-residential use that would support
educational or other community based programs.

The purpose of Resolution No. 5586 is to authorize the Executive Director to
restructure the proposed project with HomeSight including reacquiring from
HomeSight a minimum of two but potentially all five of the original lots, reselling to
HomeSight a portion of the lots on terms that would allow KCHA to carry back
additional financing and amending or entering into a new loan agreement with
HomeSight for the construction of the homes if it is determined that the homes could
be built and sold at a cost affordable to low-income buyers. This restructuring would
likely require HomeSight and KCHA to increase the amount of down payment
assistance, in the form of deferred low or no interest loans, to ensure the mortgage
payments would be affordable to low-income buyers.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends passage of Resolution No. 5586.




THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

RESOLUTION NO. 5586
(Greenbridge HomeSight Phase I11)

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO AMEND,
RESCIND, RESTRUCTURE AND/OR ENTER INTO NEW AGREEMENTS
WITH HOMESIGHT RELATED TO HOMESIGHT PHASE III AFFORDABLE
HOMEOWNERSHIP PROJECT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE
GREENBRIDGE

WHEREAS, King County Housing Authority (KCHA) previously adopted
Resolution No. 5536 on April 18, 2016 wherein, among other things, the KCHA Board
authorized the sale of a certain 5 lots and a related financial assistance loan to
HomeSight, for the development of single-family homes and low income home
ownership opportunities regarding those homes (the “HomeSight III Project”); and

WHEREAS, KCHA and HomeSight thereafter entered into certain agreements
whereby, among other things, a loan agreement was executed on August 23, 2016, to be
secured by the properties subsequently sold to HomeSight, and the aforementioned 5
lots were sold pursuant to a deed recorded under King County Recording No.
20170306000856 (the “Lots”); and

WHEREAS, given the size and proximity of the two lots located on 8t Avenue
SW to the White Center Elementary and the retail core of Greenbridge, KCHA has
determined these two lots would be better suited for a non-residential use that would
support educational or other community based programs; and

WHEREAS, home prices and construction costs have increased significantly

from the original financial projections; and



Resolution No. 5586 HomeSight Phase 111
February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting
Page 2 0f 3

WHEREAS, KCHA and HomeSight have further agreed to work together to

identify additional down payment assistance opportunities for the remaining 3 Lots to

make them available to qualified low-income homebuyers; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF

KING as follows:

1.

2.

The Executive Director, or his designee, is authorized to execute new and
revised documents and agreements as may be needed to improve the
feasibility of the HomeSight III project, and as may be consistent with the goal
of creating affordable homeownership at Greenbridge.

New and revised documents and agreements may include but are not limited
to a rescission agreement(s), and a new sales price of the land, land note,
construction loan, deed of trust, deferred loans, down payment assistance,
first right of refusal and deferred loans and amounts. The new agreements
may include a purchase-back from HomeSight concerning all of the Lots, or
any portion of the total Lots, and then a re-sale of them to HomeSight under

terms consistent with the purposes set forth in Section 1.

3. Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of KCHA or its officers taken prior

4.

to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are hereby
ratified and confirmed.
Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective from and after the date of its

adoption and approval.



Resolution No. 5586 HomeSight Phase 111

February 26, 2018 KCHA Special Board Meeting

Page3of 3

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF
KING AT AN OPEN PUBLIC SPECIAL MEETING THIS 26TH DAY OF

FEBRUARY, 2018.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair
Board of Commissioners

STEPHEN J. NORMAN
Secretary



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

Ne



/\ King County

Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
Date: February 20, 2018

Re: Resolution No. 5587: Acceptance of Washington State Auditor’s Office
Report on Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit (No. 1020005) and
the Accountability Audit Report (No. 1020479), both for the Period Ended
December 31, 2016

Background

On September 29, 2017 the Washington State Auditor’s Office (SAO) issued Financial
and Single Audit Report Number 1020005, and on January 4, 2018 the SAO issued
Accountability Audit Report Number 1020479. Both reports relate to KCHA'’s fiscal year
which ended on December 31, 2016.

Report No. 1020005 covers the Authority’s financial statements and related disclosures
along with the Federal “Single Audit” for the period January 1, 2016 through December
31, 2016. Report No. 1020479 is a separate “Accountability Audit Report” for the period
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, which reports on KCHA’s compliance with
State laws and regulations and its own policies and procedures.

There were no findings in this year’s Financial Audit report or Accountability Audit
Report, and there were no management letter items.

An exit conference with the SAO took place on December 15, 2017 and was attended by
Commissioner Stewart along with several KCHA staff members. The SAO expressed
their appreciation for the responsiveness of KCHA staff toward the SAO audit staff.

Staff Recommendation
Resolution No. 5587 is a required element to KCHA’s audit. Board passage is
recommended.



Office of the Washington State Auditor

Pat McCarthy

Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit
Report

Housing Authority of the County of
King
(King County Housing Authority)

For the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Published September 29, 2017
Report No. 1020005




Pat McCarthy

September 29, 2017

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

Report on Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit

Please find attached our report on the King County Housing Authority’s financial statements and
compliance with federal laws and regulations.

We are issuing this report in order to provide information on the Housing Authority’s financial
condition.

Sincerely,

o

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 * Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 « (360) 902-0370 « Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule Of Findings And QUESLIONEA COSES........ccueruiiiriiiieieieie et 4

Independent Auditor’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ...........cccoveiveiiiieieeie e 6
Independent Auditor’s Report On Compliance For Each Major Federal Program And Report

On Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With The Uniform Guidance.................... 9
Independent Auditor’s Report On Financial Statements ...........cocoveviiiiinininieicee e 12
FINANCIAL SECTION......eiiti ittt bbbttt sttt beene e 16
About The State AUditor’s OFfICE......cciuiiiiiiiiiie e 122

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 3



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

King County Housing Authority
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

The results of our audit of the King County Housing Authority are summarized below in
accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements of the
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
Housing Authority.

Federal Awards

Internal Control over Major Programs:

¢ Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We issued an unmodified opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance with requirements
applicable to each of its major federal programs.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 4



We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Identification of Major Federal Programs:

The following programs were selected as major programs in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.

CEDA No. Program or Cluster Title

14.871 Housing Voucher Cluster — Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.879 Housing Voucher Cluster — Mainstream Vouchers

14.881 Moving to Work Demonstration Program

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $3,000,000.

The Housing Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

None reported.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 5



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

King County Housing Authority
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the King County
Housing Authority, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2017.

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the
Corinthian TOD LLLP, Eastbridge Apartments LLC, Egis Housing Limited Partnership, Fairwind
Apartments LLLP, Green River Homes LLC, Green River Homes 2 LLC, KCHA — Southwood
Square Limited Partnership, Nia Apartments LLC, Salmon Creek Housing LLC, Seola Crossing
LLC, Sixth Place Apartments LLLP, Soosette Creek LLC, Spiritwood Manor LLLP, Vantage
Point Apartments LLC, and Zephyr Apartments LLLP (the partnerships), as described in our report
on the Housing Authority’s financial statements. This report includes our consideration of the
results of the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and other matters that are reported on separately by those other auditors. However, this report,
insofar as it relates to the results of the other auditors, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors. The financial statements of the partnerships were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and accordingly this report does not include reporting on internal
control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated with these
partnerships.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 6



procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Housing Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Housing Authority's financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Housing Authority’s
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Housing Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Housing
Authority’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 7



limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens
assess government operations.

%t

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 26, 2017

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 8



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

King County Housing Authority
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM

We have audited the compliance of the King County Housing Authority, King County,
Washington, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Housing Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended December
31,2016. The Housing Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 9



An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Housing Authority’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Housing Authority’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing
Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 10



that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It
also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

%t

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 26, 2017

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 11



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
King County Housing Authority
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
aggregate discretely presented component units of the King County Housing Authority,
Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements as
listed on page 16.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the Corinthian TOD LLLP, Eastbridge Apartments LLC, Egis
Housing Limited Partnership, Fairwind Apartments LLLP, Green River Homes LLC, Green River
Homes 2 LLC, KCHA - Southwood Square Limited Partnership, Nia Apartments LLC, Salmon
Creek Housing LLC, Seola Crossing LLC, Sixth Place Apartments LLLP, Soosette Creek LLC,
Spiritwood Manor LLLP, Vantage Point Apartments LLC, and Zephyr Apartments LLLP (the
partnerships) which represent 100 percent of the assets and the assets and net position, and 100 percent
of the revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those statements were audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for these partnerships, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 12



We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the
partnerships were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Housing Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-
type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the King County Housing
Authority, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 16
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 13



management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
The accompanying Financial Data Schedule and HUD form are supplementary information
required by HUD. These schedules are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 26, 2017 on our consideration of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 14



report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%t

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 26, 2017

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 15



FINANCIAL SECTION

King County Housing Authority
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — 2016

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position — 2016

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — 2016
Statement of Cash Flows — 2016

Notes to Financial Statements — 2016

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability — PERS 1, PERS 2/3 — 2016
Schedule of Employer Contributions — PERS 1, PERS 2/3 — 2016

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Notes — 2016
Financial Data Schedule — 2016

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate — WA19P002501-12
Actual Modernization Cost Certificate - WA19R002501-12

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 16



Housing Authority of the County of King

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This first section of the annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of King County
Housing Authority’s (KCHA) financial performance during the year ended December 31, 2016. It
should be read in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements, which immediately follow this
section.

In its entirety, KCHA administers a broad range of federally and locally financed housing programs
serving an area of over 2,134 square miles, covering all of King County outside of the cities of Seattle
and Renton. The King County Housing Authority owns or manages 9,590 units of housing and
provides rental subsidies to over 7,400 additional households. The majority of KCHA’s program
participants have incomes below 20 percent of area median income. KCHA'’s inventory includes 2,361
units of public housing in King County and in the city of Olympia, which lies outside of King County.
In addition, KCHA manages two public housing sites with 80 units via contract in the City of Sedro-
Woolley.

The financial performance discussed in the following analyses does not include tax credit partnerships.
The tax credit partnerships, with 22 sites and 1,808 units, are owned by separate limited
partnerships/corporations with the Authority acting as general partner/managing member. The tax
credit properties are fee managed by outside private property management firms with the exception
of Birch Creek, Egis sites, Fairwind, Green River Homes, Spiritwood Manor, Valley Park, Vantage
Point, and Zephyr, which are managed by KCHA'’s Housing Management department. Because they
are legally separate entities, their operations are not carried directly on the books of the Authority but
are listed as component units on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position. As a result, neither these units, nor their financial data, are included in
the analysis and financial reports that follow. More information about the component units can be found
in Notes 1 and 9.

2016 Financial Highlights

e KCHA's participation in HUD’s Moving to Work (MTW) program gives the Authority the ability
to receive most of its Housing Choice Voucher revenue as a block grant and gives KCHA
flexibility in how the funds can be spent.

o Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2016 by $523.1 million.

e The change in net position for 2016 was an increase of $60.4 million and includes
approximately $2.3 million in capital grant contributions.

e Operating expenses were $227.5 million and include $124.6 million in housing assistance
payments made to landlords, or 55 percent of operating expenses.

o MTW reserves continued to serve the low and very-low income populace through an array of
innovative programs and the rehabilitation and construction of affordable housing.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 17



Authority-wide Financial Statements

These Authority-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position. This statement reports
all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The Statement of Net Position is presented in the
format where assets, plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, less deferred inflows of
resources, equals net position. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are
classified as “current” (generally, those assets convertible into cash within one year), and “non-
current”.

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in a statement of financial position.
Itis reported in three broad categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets: This component of net position consists of all capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted: This component of net position consists of restricted assets when constraints are
placed on the asset by external forces such as creditors (e.g. debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, laws, regulations, etc., net of any offsetting, associated liabilities and/or deferred
inflows of resources. Restrictions on assets imposed voluntarily by KCHA do not result in a
restricted net position.

Unrestricted: This component of net position consists of assets, deferred outflow of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of “Net
Investment in Capital Assets” or “Restricted”.

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position (similar to an income statement). This statement includes operating
revenues, such as rental income, operating expenses such as administrative, utilities, and
maintenance, and non-operating revenue and expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income
and interest expense. The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position is the “Change in Net Position” which is similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for
operating activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and
investing activities.

Financial Analysis of the Authority

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Table A-1 presents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2016
and 2015. The purpose of the statement is to provide a snapshot of the financial condition of the
Authority at a certain point in time. Presented are the assets, liabilities, and net position of the Authority
at the end of the year. Supplementary information is provided in the accompanying notes that further
explain and support the data presented in table A-1.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 18



Table A-1, Condensed Statement of Net Position (1

)

2016 2015
Assets:
Current and other assets 484,244 172 $418,501,995
Capital assets 482,102,582 411,679,492
Total Assets 966,346,754 830,181,487
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred charge for defeasance of debt 878,792 960,540
Related to pensions 4,625,712 2,329,839
5,504,504 3,290,379
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 64,782,330 61,028,555
Long-term debt, net of current 383,585,594 309,672,042
Total Liabilities 448,367,924 370,700,597
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - 1,467,000
Related to pensions 435,762 2,927,456
435,762 4,394,456
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 189,150,173 187,844,170
Restricted 36,282,926 25,166,439
Unrestricted 297,614,473 245,366,204
Total Net Position $ 523,047,572 $ 458,376,813

(1) Component units are not included.

Current and other assets, excluding capital assets, for the year ended December 31, 2016 total $484.2
million and are comprised of $179.7 million in cash, cash equivalents, and investments and $302.9
million in accounts, interest, notes and financing lease receivables, and $1.6 million of other assets.
The $65.8 million increase from the prior year is primarily due a $47.7 million increase in cash, cash
equivalents, and investments and an $18.1 million increase in accounts, notes, and financing leases
receivable. The increase in receivables was mainly attributable to an additional $62.1 million of notes
and lease receivables due from the new Spiritwood Manor and Corinthian Apartments tax credit
partnerships as well as a $2.3 million increase in interest and other receivables. These additions were
offset by the elimination of $25.4 million of notes receivable as part of the blending of the Overlake
TOD Housing Partnership with the Authority’s financial statements (See Note 1), $14 million received
on note receivables related to the development of the Vantage Point tax credit partnership properties,
and the $3.4 million and $3.5 million payment of note and lease receivables upon termination of the
KCHA - Cones and Harrison House tax credit partnerships; respectively, in 2016.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 19



Capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2016 are $482.1 million. Included in this category are
land and improvements, buildings and improvements, personal property, and construction-in-
progress. Capital asset additions of $139.6 million include the acquisition of assets from Harrison
House Limited Partnership ($5.6 million) and KCHA — Cones Limited Partnership ($4.9 million), the
purchase of Abbey Ridge ($21.9 million), the purchase of Highland Village ($19.8 million) and
additions related to the blending of Overlake Partnership assets ($42.7 million) in the Authority’s
financial statements (See Note 1). $24.2 million of additions were also attributable to the increase in
construction-in-process while another $20.5 million of additions was the result of upgrades and
rehabilitation at various properties.

Capital asset disposals of $43.0 million include $20 million related to the disposition of land and
buildings resulting from the following transactions: the sale of Charter House to the Bremerton Housing
Authority ($1.6 million), the sales of Spiritwood Manor ($8.2 million) and Corinthian Apartments ($10.2
million) to tax credit partnerships. Capital Assets disposition of $20.8 million represents capitalized
building upgrades reclassified from construction-in-progress and $2 million represents lot sales to
private builders for the construction of market-rate for-sale homes while $200,000 represents the
disposal of equipment.

Total liabilities, excluding the non-current portion of long-term debt, totaled $64.8 million at December
31, 2016, an increase of $3.7 million from 2015. Notable increases to current liabilities were $8.2
million of unearned HAP revenue, $1.6 million of accrued payables related to the Energy Performance
Contract, and a $5.1 million increase in Net Pension Liability. The decrease in the current portion of
long-term debt is mainly attributable to a $3.6 million payment of Somerset Gardens bonds and the
two-year extension of a Bank of America line-of-credit of which $2.9 million had been due in 2016. A
$4.7 million liability reported in 2015 resulting primarily from a classification issue related to the
Authority’s Financial Data Schedule had been resolved in 2016.

The Authority’s current ratio reflects the relationship between current assets and current liabilities and
is a measure of the Authority’s ability to pay short-term obligations. At December 31, 2016, the
Authority’s current ratio was 5.29:1 an increase from the previous year’s current ratio of 4.16:1. This
means that for every dollar in current liabilities there is $5.29 in current assets.

Total net position increased by $64.7 million during 2016. Net position represents the Authority’s
equity, a portion of which is restricted for certain uses. Restricted Net Position increased $11.1 million
from 2015 primarily due to $10.4 million of proceeds from bonds issued to fund capital work related to
the Energy Performance Contract. $1.9 million was also included in relation to the blending of Overlake
TOD Housing Partnership with the Authority’s financial statements (See Note 1). Unrestricted net
position increased 21.3% from $245.4 million to $297.6 million primarily due to additional notes and
financing leases receivable from new tax credit partnerships and increases in non-operating revenues.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The purpose of the “Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position” is
to present the revenues earned by the Authority (both operating and non-operating) and the expenses
incurred (operating and non-operating), and any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received
or spent by the Authority.

Table A-2 represents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position for 2016 and 2015. Due to a change in policy (see Note 1) Housing Choice Voucher
program revenue from HUD is reported as Operating Revenue instead of Nonoperating Revenue
beginning in 2016. 2015 data reported in Table A-2 reports Housing Choice Voucher program revenue
similarly for consistent comparison.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 20



Table A-2, Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expense, and Changes in Net Position )

016 2015

Operating Revenues $ 255,656,919 $ 223,896,878
Nonoperating revenues 40,283,248 14,222 759

Total Revenues 295,940,167 238,119,637
Operating expenses 227,512,503 205,213,160
Nonoperating expenses 10,331,948 9,915,021

Total Expenses 237,844,451 215,128,181
Excess or deficiency before contributions 58,095,716 22,991,456
Capital grant contributions 2,341,655 7,021,315
Special item - (39,117,550)
Change in Net Position 60,437,371 (9,104,779)
Beginning Net Position 458,376,813 488,544,990
Change in Reporting Entity 4,233,388 -
Change in Accounting Principle - (21,063,398)
Ending Net Position $ 523,047,572 $ 458,376,813

(1) Component units are not included.

Revenues are classified as operating, non-operating or capital grant contributions. Table A-3 shows
the sources of revenues for 2016 and 2015 as a percentage of all revenues. The overall contribution
for each revenue type remained relatively constant from 2015 to 2016 with Tenant Rental Revenue
increasing due to the addition of new properties in 2016.

Table A-3, Revenue Sources
Percentage by Categor
00 ( ge by Category)
50.00%
40.00%
2015
000 = 2016
20.00%
10.00%
0.00% | [ | [ ,
Investment Income Capital & Other Grants HUD Subsidies Tenant Rental Revenue

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 21



Operating expenses are amounts paid for providing housing services to the Authority’s tenants and
for administering the various programs. Total operating expenses for 2016 were $210.8 million
(excluding depreciation), a 9.1 percent increase from 2015. Each category remained relatively
constant from 2015 to 2016.

Table A-4, Operating Expenses
(Percentage by Category)

70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

2015
30.00% = 2016
20.00%
- =

0.00% . - . . -
Administrative Tenant Services Maintenance Utilities Housing Assistance
Payments

Net Capital Assets

During 2016, net capital assets increased by $42.9 million. This net increase is primarily attributable
to $80.2 million in capital asset additions (net of accumulated depreciation) offset by $37.3 million of
disposals (net of accumulated depreciation.)

Capital asset additions include:
e $21.9 million related to the purchase of Abbey Ridge,
$19.8 million related to the purchase of Highland Village,
$10.5 million related to the acquisition of assets from tax credit partnerships,
$24.2 million of construction-in-process,
$20.5 million related to building upgrades at various properties.

Capital asset disposals include:
e $20.8 million of construction-in-process representing capitalized work related to construction
projects completed in 2016,
e $18.2 million related assets sold to tax credit partnerships,
e $1.6 million related to the sale of Charter House,
e $2 million in lot sales to private builders for the construction of market-rate for-sale homes.

Information about the Authority’s capital assets is further presented in the financial statements Note 6
— Capital Assets.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 22



Table A-5, Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation

2016 2015
Land $ 129,401,526 $ 115,649,106
Buildings and improvements 500,988,725 465,439,240
Furniture, equipment & machinery 8,054,312 6,022,831
Construction in progress 26,709,001 24,107,786
665,153,564 611,218,963
Total accumulated depreciation
and amortization (183,050,982) (171,977,090)
Net Capital Assets $ 482,102,582 $ 439,241,873

Long-term Debt

The Authority has issued various forms of debt for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects
located throughout King County. At year-end, the Authority had $383.6 million in net long-term bonds
and notes outstanding (as shown in table A-6) which represents a $73.9 million increase over the prior
year-end balance. For more information on the Authority’s long-term debt, please see Note 7.

Table A-6, Long Term Debt

2016 2015
Long-term, net of current portion $ 383,685,594 $ 309,672,042

Additions to long-term debt include $49.3 million drawn on two KeyBank lines of credit to purchase
Highland Village Apartments, Abbey Ridge Apartments, and pay down the Somerset Apartments’
Rasmussen Note and bonds. $27.4 million was also drawn on a Bank of America line of credit to
finance the rehabilitation of Spiritwood Manor Apartments and Corinthian Apartments. $10.5 million of
Qualified Energy Performance Conservation Bonds were issued to support the Energy Performance
Contract. Finally, $7 million of revenue bonds were issued to fund the Corinthian Apartments
rehabilitation.

The Authority’s debt service coverage ratio is a measure of the cash flow available to pay current debt
obligations. As of December 31, 2016, the Authority had a debt service coverage ratio of 2.534 which
exceeds the minimum requirements of certain loan agreements.

Economic Factors Affecting the Authority’s Future

The Authority receives the bulk of its operational funding from the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) which, like all federal agencies, depends upon congressional
appropriations. At the time of this writing it appears as though the current administration will be placing
a lower priority on providing federal funding for social services. Though the President’s proposed
budget for 2018 cuts funding for HUD by $6 billion, it is uncertain at this time how much congress will
appropriate.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 23



In December 2016, the Seattle Times reported that rents in King and Snohomish counties increased
7.9 percent throughout the year. Though this is a rate lower than the double-digit increases seen in
each of the prior four years, rent increases in the Seattle area were still among the nation’s highest.

As renters have sought to escape ever-increasing rents over the past five years, demand for houses
in King County has surged with no sign of slowing. As of March 2017, the single-family median home
price was $600,000 in King County; an increase of about $60,000 over the prior twelve months.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the Housing Authority’s finances and to demonstrate KCHA'’s
accountability for its resources. Any questions about this report, or requests for additional information,
should be directed to the Director of Finance of the King County Housing Authority.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 24



Housing Authority of the County of King
Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2016

ASSETS:
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Notes and leases receivable - current portion
Investments
Restricted investments
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted investments

Land, buildings and equipment, net
Nondepreciable
Depreciable

Intangible assets, net

Interest receivable

Notes and leases receivable

Other noncurrent assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred charge for defeasance of debt
Related to pensions
Total Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Tenant security deposits
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest rate swaps - fair value
Long-term debt, net of current
Net pension liability
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

AUTHORITY

$ 91,175,438
25,925,042
8,652,662
8,436,399
49,021,162
11,891,459
1,221,952

196,324,114

1,178,015
504,517

122,593,066
359,509,516

18,143,762
267,693,699
400,065
770,022,640

966,346,754

878,792
4,625,712

5,504,504

2,422,383
13,243,743
21,431,797

37,097,923

1,566,271
383,585,594
24,508,533

1,609,603

411,270,001

448,367,924

435,762
435,762

189,150,173
36,282,926
297,614,473

S 523.047572_

COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 8,112,935

4,564,470
180,216

364,490

230,799

13,452,910

20,326,040
342,814,862
1,453,025

364,593,927
378,046,837

374,392
491,891
20,584,500

21,450,783

257,850,267

12,662,868

270,513,135
291,963,918

115,973,744
4,190,078
(34,080,903)

586,082,019

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 25



Housing Authority of the County of King

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ended December 31, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
HUD subsidies and grant revenue
Tenant revenue
Other revenue
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative

Tenant services

Maintenance

Utilities

Housing assistance payments
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Other government grants
Investment income
Interest expense
Net gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) before contributions and special items

Capital grant contributions
Partner contributions (disbursements)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Beginning Net Position

Change in Reporting Entity M
Prior Period Adjustment

Ending Net Position

(1) Please see Footnote 1 for more information

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

AUTHORITY

$

136,468,751
69,709,267
49,478,901

255,656,919

39,586,056
8,208,682
26,061,146
9,649,874
124,625,634
16,745,750
2,635,361

227,512,503

28,144,416

7,148,965

9,416,288
(10,331,948)

23,717,995

29,951,300

58,095,716

2,341,655

60,437,371

458,376,813

4,233,388

523,047,572

COMPONENT

UNITS

18,768,286
237,621

19,005,907

3,732,268
614
2,389,887
2,630,521
11,668,748
1,152,431

21,574,469

(2,568,562)

191,616
(6,624,171)

(6,432,555)

(9,001,117)

15,364,625

6,363,508

86,896,292

(7,383,389)
206,508

86,082,919

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 26



Housing Authority of the County of King
Statement of Cash Flows
For the 12 Month Period Ended December 31, 2016

AUTHORITY
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from tenants $ 71,465,007
Receipts from HUD 142,562,924
Payments to employees (27,439,329)
Payments to suppliers of goods and services (58,054,308)
Payments to landlords (119,182,373)
Payments made to other housing authorities (6,425,946)
Payments received from other housing authorities 1,867,999
Other receipts (payments) 42,661,254
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 47,455,228
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from other governments 7,212,877
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 7,212,877
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grant contributions 2,341,655
Purchase of capital assets (93,252,666)
Net proceeds from capital asset disposal 63,112 a)
Equity transactions 4,233,388
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt 96,744,509
Principal payments on capital debt (29,459,392)
Interest paid on capital debt (10,345,770)
Other receipts (payments) (8,387,846)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities  (38,063,010)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Net sale (purchase) of investments (8,661,622)
Investment in notes and financing leases (52,458,063) b)
Payments received on notes and financing leases 76,149,604
Investment income -- notes and financing leases 5,872,137
Investment income -- other 1,917,543
Other receipts (payments) (431,160)
Net cash provided by investing activities 22,388,439
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 38,993,534
Cash and cash equivalents -- beginning of the year 79,284,961
Cash and cash equivalents -- end of the year $ 118,278,495

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 28,144,416

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash:

Depreciation and amortization expense 16,773,942

Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables and other assets (3,715,981)

Accounts and other payables 6,252,851
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 47,455,228

Non-cash transactions that would have been reported in the capital and investing sections if the transactions had involved a cash exchange.
a) Excludes $23.6 million and $243,070 of noncash proceeds from the lease of capital assets to the Spiritwood

and Corinthian tax credit partnerships; respectively.

b) Excludes $26.5 million and $10.3 million of financing leases acquired from the Spiritwood and Corinthian tax

credit partnerships; respectivley, in exchange for capital assets.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 27



Note 1 —Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

Primary Government

The Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) was created in 1939 as a municipal
corporation under the provisions of the State Housing Authorities Law (RCW 35.82) and the Housing
Cooperation Law (RCW 35.83) in response to the Federal Housing Act of 1937. The Act created the
United States Housing Authority, empowering it to make loans and annual contributions to local public
housing agencies to assist in the development, acquisition and administration of low rent projects. The
programs authorized under the Act, as amended, are now administered by the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). The Authority is not a component unit of King County.

The Authority operates in all of King County (except within the city of Seattle) and in the city of Olympia.
The Authority also serves as the management agent for the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-
Woolley in Skagit County. Of the State’s 39 counties, King County ranks eleventh in geographical
size and first in population. The County is the financial, economic and industrial center of the entire
Pacific Northwest region. The Authority’s jurisdiction encompasses an area of over 2,134 square miles
and a population estimated at 1.9 million representing almost 30 percent of the state’s total population.
The Authority has its central office in Tukwila. A five-member Board of Commissioners, appointed for
five-year terms by the Metropolitan-King County Council, governs the Authority. Commissioners serve
without pay.

Summary of Significant Programs

The Authority has been granted a broad range of powers to provide housing assistance to low-income
households. The nationally recognized definition of a low-income family is a household earning less
than 80 percent of the area’s median income, adjusted for family size. The Authority administers
federally and locally financed housing programs that serve a variety of housing needs including the
following:

Federally Assisted Housing Programs

Low Rent Public Housing —The Authority owns, operates or maintains 43 housing projects consisting
of 2,242 units of public housing of which 1,183 units are for the low-income elderly and disabled. The
properties were acquired through bonds and notes guaranteed by HUD and through grants from HUD.
Revenues consist of rents and other fees collected from tenants and an operating subsidy received
from HUD. Typically residents pay 28.3 percent of their adjusted income in rents. Two thirds of public
housing residents earn less than 20 percent of the area median income, with almost 80 percent having
some form of entitlement payment as their main source of income. The Authority’s subsidy is received
under an Annual Contributions Contract to offset the cost of operating the units. HUD also provides
funds to maintain and improve the public housing projects under the Capital Fund Program.
Historically, all additions to land, structures and equipment of public housing are accomplished through
these capital grant funds.

Tenant Based Housing Choice Vouchers—The Authority provides rental assistance payments on
behalf of over 7,400 households who live in private rental housing. Funded by HUD pursuant to
Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act, this program allows participating families and individuals to choose
their own housing with the use of a housing voucher. Generally the participant pays no more than
28.3 percent of income towards rent and the Authority pays the remainder. The Authority targets this
program to the elderly, disabled households and families that are homeless or at the risk of
homelessness. Program participants average 15 percent of area median income.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 28



Project Based Section 8 Housing - The Authority owns several developments where some or all of the
units are subsidized under the Section 8 program. Under this program, subsidies attach to qualifying
housing units rather than to qualifying individuals or families. There are currently 1,569 units
subsidized under this program; 461 units owned by the Authority, 509 units leased to Moving King
County Residents Forward, and 600 units owned by tax credit partnerships.

Unassisted Locally Financed Housing Programs

Tax-Exempt Bond Financed - The Authority owns 33 apartment complexes totaling 4,241 units through
the issuance of tax-exempt bonds. These properties receive no operating subsidy from the Federal
government or any other State or local source. The Authority acquired the properties in order to place
selected housing developments within the public domain so that rents could be maintained as low as
possible over time. Typically these units have a broad mix of residents with the majority having income
below 80 percent of area median.

Homeownership - The Authority owns two mobile home parks located in South King County comprising
195 manufactured home sites. Under this program, the residents own their manufactured homes and
pay rent to the Authority for the land on which the home sits.

Tax Credit - In 1994, the Authority began partnering with limited partnerships and limited liability
corporations (hereafter referred to as “partnerships”) to acquire and develop additional affordable
housing. The Authority is general partner/managing member (hereafter referred to as “general
partner”) in 14 partnerships representing 23 housing complexes comprising 1,808 units.

Miscellaneous Local Programs - The Authority has an inventory of 15 different housing developments
comprising 144 units of housing. The units are generally leased to non-profit service providers for the
benefit of the economically disadvantaged, developmentally disabled, transitional, homeless and other
groups who have traditionally experienced barriers in finding housing.

Other Programs

Housing Repair and Weatherization - The Authority receives federal and state money to provide
housing rehabilitation loans and weatherization grants to low-income homeowners and renters. The
Authority has been administering these types of programs since 1975. In 2016, the Authority assisted
652 homes with structural upgrades, air quality improvements and energy efficiencies.

Social and Human Service Programs - The Authority serves a wide variety of people including families
with children as well as individuals with special needs such as the elderly, the physically and
developmentally disabled, the homeless and the mentally ill. The Authority’s programs and services
are designed around a commitment to support and partner with individuals and families served by the
Authority in ways that promote successful life outcomes with dignity and respect. Provided directly by
the Authority’s staff or through nearly 25 contracts with services providers, these services and
programs fall into the following four broad categories: Housing Stability; Quality of Life; Workforce
Development and Economic Independence; and Education Programs and Initiatives. For example,
Head Start classrooms operate at two sites, Boys and Girls Club programs operate at four sites, and
five career/computer centers are located in the Authority’s developments. Counseling, educational,
recreational, nutrition and transportation services are provided by community-based organizations like
the YWCA, Sound Generations, and Neighborhood House. These contracted services are partially
funded using federal and private grants, which the Authority receives in a competitive process for
periods of one to three years.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 29



Component Units

The governmental reporting entity consists of the Authority (the Primary Government) and its
component units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Board is financially
accountable, or other organizations whose nature and significant relationship with the Authority are
such that exclusion would cause the Authority’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s
board, and (i) either the Authority’s ability to impose its will on the organization or (ii) there is potential
for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the Authority.

The basic financial statements include both blended component units and discretely presented
component units. The blended component units are legally separate entities, and should be, in
substance, part of the Authority’s operations, and so data from these units are combined with data of
the primary government. The discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported
in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally
separate from the government.

Complete financial statements of individual component units can be obtained from the Finance
Department of the Authority. Although the limited partnerships, limited liability companies, and non-
profit corporations do not follow government accounting for presentation purposes, certain
transactions may be reflected differently in these financial statements than in the separately issued
information in order to conform to the presentation of the primary government.

Blended Component Unit

Moving King County Residents Forward (MKCRF) - A legally separate, 501(c)(3), non-profit
organization. During 2012, the Authority leased property to MKCRF through a 30-year capital lease
with lease payments of one dollar per year. As a result of this transaction, the Authority swapped
subsidy from the Public Housing program for subsidy from the Section 8 program. The increased
Section 8 subsidy was leveraged to complete $18 million of capital improvements at all 22 housing
locations. Due to the fact that the governing body of MKCREF is identical to the governing body of the
Authority and the management of the Authority has operational responsibility for MKCRF, MKCRF’s
balances and transactions are “blended” into the Authority’s financial statements.

Overlake TOD Housing Limited Partnership (Overlake)- A Washington State limited partnership
formed in July 2000 to construct and operate a 308-unit apartment complex known as The Village at
Overlake Station, and a “Park and Ride” facility in Redmond, Washington. The Authority serves as its
sole general partner. Prior to March 31, 2016, its Limited Partners were Columbia Housing/PNC
Institutional Fund V Limited Partnership (the Investment Limited Partner) and Columbia Housing SLP
Corporation (the Special Limited Partner). Effective March 31, 2016 both limited partners withdrew,
relinquishing their entire interest in the partnership, and were replaced by KCHA Initial Affiliate LLC, a
Washington Limited Liability Company (the substitute Limited Partner). Due to the fact that KCHA
Initial Affiliate LLC is 100% controlled by the Authority, the governing body of the Authority and the
partnership are substantively the same which in turn gives the Authority operational responsibility for
the Overlake partnership. Consequently, Overlake’s balances and transactions are “blended” into the
Authority’s financial statements.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 30



Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented component units are low income housing tax credit partnerships whose
limited partners or members have limited rights regarding the operations of the partnerships and the
Authority as General Partner or Managing Member controls the day-to-day operations of the
partnerships. As such, the Authority has certain rights and responsibilities which enable it to impose
its will on the partnerships due to its significant influence as the General Partner or Managing Member
and also its financial relationships with the partnerships. It is for this reason that they are discretely
presented on the Authority’s financial statements.

The partnerships are required to be operated in a manner necessary to qualify for federal low income
housing tax credits and to be in compliance with regulations for tax exempt bonds as provided under
Section 42 and 142 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Authority is allocated about .01 percent of all
profits, losses, and tax credits pursuant to the terms of the partnership or operating agreement with
the partnerships.

The following discretely presented component units have a December 31, 2016 year end:

e Corinthian TOD LLLP - A Washington State limited liability limited partnership formed in
December 2015 to acquire, rehabilitate, lease, maintain and operate a 95-unit apartment
complex in SeaTac, Washington, known as Corinthian Apartments. The Authority serves as
its sole Managing Member. Pursuant to the second amended and restated Operating
Agreement January 27t 2016, RBC-Corinthian, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as
the Investor Limited Partner and RBC Tax Credit Manager Il, Inc., a Delaware corporation, as
the Special Limited Partner, were admitted to the partnership.

o Eastbridge Apartments LLC — A Washington State limited liability company formed in March
2009 to construct and operate a 26-building, 91-unit housing project, known as Eastbridge
Apartments in unincorporated King County, Washington. The Authority serves as sole
Managing Member. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement dated
March 3, 2009, Bank of America, N.A. as the Investor Member and Banc of America CDC
Special Holding Company, Inc. as the Special Member were admitted to the company.

o Egis Housing Limited Partnership — A Washington State partnership that was formed in May
2007, to acquire, develop, rehabilitate, maintain and operate a 439-unit apartment project,
known as Egis Housing in King County and Thurston County, Washington. The project
consists of Paramount House (70 units), Munro Manor (60 units), Brittany Park (43 units),
Riverton Terrace (30 units), Mardi Gras (61 units), Plaza 17 (70 units), Casa Madrona (70
units), and Gustaves Manor (35 units). The Authority serves as the sole general partner, the
Limited Partner is Egis-Apollo Housing Capital, LLC and the Special Limited Partner is RBC
Tax Credit Manager I, Inc.

e Fairwind Apartments LLLP — A Washington State limited liability limited partnership that was
formed in March 2012 to construct and operate an 87-unit apartment project, known as
Fairwind Apartments in unincorporated King County, Washington. The Authority serves as its
sole General Partner. Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, BCP/Fairwind, LLC is the
Investment Limited Partner and BCCC, Inc. is the Special Limited Partner.

e Green River Homes LLC — A Washington State limited liability company which was formed
in June 2004 to acquire, rehabilitate and operate a 60-unit apartment project, known as Valley
Park East and Valley Park West in Auburn, Washington. The Authority serves as the sole
Managing Member. Its Investor Member is NEF Assignment Corporation.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 31



e Green River Homes 2 LLC - A Washington State limited liability company that was formed
on October 7, 2011 to acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, improve, maintain, operate,
and lease a 59-unit apartment complex, known as Green River Homes in Auburn, Washington.
The Authority serves as sole Managing Member. The Investor Member is RBC-Green River,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and the Special Investor Member is RBC Tax Credit
Manager Il, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

o Nia Apartments LLC — A Washington State limited liability company that was formed in March
2007 to construct and operate an 82-unit apartment project, known as Nia Apartments in the
unincorporated King County, Washington. The Authority serves as its sole managing member.
Pursuant to the Operating Agreement dated March 15, 2007, NIA-Apollo Housing Capital, LLC
as the Investor Member and Apollo Housing Manager I, Inc. as the Special Member, were
admitted to the company. Subsequently, Apollo Housing Manager Il, Inc. changed its name to
RBC Tax Credit Manager Il, Inc.

e Salmon Creek Housing LLC — Salmon Creek Housing LLC is a Washington State limited
liability company formed in March 2008, to construct and operate an 88-unit apartment project,
known as Salmon Creek Apartments in unincorporated King County, Washington. The
Authority serves as its sole managing member. Pursuant to the Operating Agreement dated
March 25, 2008, Salmon Creek-Apollo Housing Capital, LLC as the Investor Member and
Apollo Housing Manager I, Inc., (which changed its name to RBC Tax Credit Manager I, Inc.)
as the Special Member, were admitted to the company.

e Seola Crossing LLC — A Washington State limited liability company formed in November
2005 to construct and operate a 187-unit apartment project, known as Seola Crossing
Apartments in unincorporated King County, Washington. Phase | of the project includes 82
units and Phase Il includes 105 units. The Authority serves as the sole Managing Member.
Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement dated March 23, 2006, Boston
Financial Housing Investments VIII Limited Partnership as the Investor Member and BFIM
Special Limited Partner, Inc. as the Special Member were admitted to the company.

o Sixth Place Apartments LLLP — A Washington State limited liability limited partnership that
was formed in June 2010 to acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, improve, maintain,
operate, and lease a 24-unit apartment complex, known as Sixth Place Apartments in
unincorporated King County, Washington. The Authority serves as sole General Partner. The
Investment Limited Partner is Boston Capital Corporate Tax Credit Fund XXXIII, A Limited
Partnership, a Massachusetts limited partnership and the Special Limited Partner is BCCC,
Inc., a Massachusetts corporation.

e Soosette Creek LLC — A Washington State limited liability company formed in October 2007,
to lease, renovate, maintain and operate a 262-unit apartment complex in Kent, Washington,
known as Birch Creek Apartments (formerly Springwood Apartments). The Authority serves
as its sole Managing Member. Pursuant to the Operating Agreement dated April 1, 2008 and
amended September 1, 2008, Soosette Creek-Apollo Housing Capital, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company as the Investor Member and RBC Tax Credit Manager I, Inc., a
Delaware corporation as the Special Member were admitted to the company.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 32



e KCHA - Southwood Square Limited Partnership — A Washington State limited
partnership that was formed in March 2001, to acquire, rehabilitate, and operate a 104-unit
apartment project, known as Southwood Square Apartments in Kent, Washington. The
Authority serves as the sole General Partner. Its initial Limited Partner was Common
Ground, a Washington nonprofit corporation. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Limited
Partnership Agreement dated December 28, 2001, Common Ground withdrew from the
partnership and John Hancock Realty Management, Inc. (the Special Limited Partner) and
John Hancock Corporate Tax Credit Fund VI Limited Partnership (the Investor Limited
Partner) were admitted to the partnership.

e Spiritwood Manor LLLP - A Washington State limited liability limited partnership formed in
December 2015 to acquire, rehabilitate, lease, maintain and operate a 118-unit apartment
complex in Bellevue, Washington, known as Spiritwood Manor Apartments. The Authority
serves as its sole Managing Member. Pursuant to the second amended and restated
Operating Agreement dated January 27t 2016, RBC-Spiritwood, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, as the Investor Limited Partner and RBC Tax Credit Manager I, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, as the Special Limited Partner, were admitted to the partnership.

¢ Vantage Point Apartments LLC — A Washington State limited liability company formed in
March 2013, to construct, lease, maintain and operate a 77-unit apartment complex in Renton,
Washington, known as Vantage Point Apartments. The Authority serves as its sole Managing
Member. Pursuant to the Operating Agreement dated June 2, 2014 and amended September
1, 2014, RBC-Vantage Point, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company as the Investor
Member and RBC Tax Credit Manager I, Inc., a Delaware corporation as the Special Investor
Member were admitted to the company.

o Zephyr Apartments LLLP — A Washington State limited liability limited partnership that was
formed in January 29, 2010 to acquire, hold, invest in, secure financing for, construct,
rehabilitate, develop, improve, maintain, operate, and lease a 25-unit apartment complex,
known as Zephyr Apartments in unincorporated King County, Washington. Pursuant to the
partnership Agreement dated January 29, 2010, the Authority serves as sole General Partner.
The Investment Limited Partner is Boston Capital Corporate Tax Credit Fund XXXII, a Limited
Partnership, a Massachusetts limited partnership, and the Special Limited Partner is BCCC,
Inc., a Massachusetts corporation.

Change in Component Units
Changes to the Beginning Net Position on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position include:

e Adecrease of $3,150,001 due to the dissolution of Harrison House Apartments LLC and KCHA
— Cones Limited Partnership tax credit partnerships.

e On March 31, 2016, Columbia Housing/PNC Institutional Fund V Limited Partnership and
Columbia Housing SLP Corporation withdrew from the Overlake TOD Housing Limited
Partnership, relinquishing their entire interest, and were replaced by KCHA Initial Affiliate LLC.
Due to the fact that the new limited partner is also controlled 100% by the Authority, Overlake
Housing Limited Partnership no longer meets the criteria for a Discretely Presented
Component Unit and is now included in the Primary Government’s financial statements. The
change in classification results in a $4,233,388 decrease in Beginning Net Position in the
Component Units and an equal increase in the Primary Government’s Beginning Net Position.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 33



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described below.

Basis of Accounting

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to private
business enterprises. The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating expenses for KCHA are administrative and
maintenance expenses, depreciation, and Housing Choice Voucher program Housing Assistance
Payments to landlords. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are tenant revenues and
HUD operating subsidies for the Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher programs. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

This policy is a change from prior years where Housing Choice Voucher program revenue from HUD
was classified as Nonoperating Revenue.

The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned. Expenses are recorded when incurred. Revenue from operating subsidies
and grants is classified as non-operating revenue. Revenue from capital grants is classified as capital
grant contributions.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with original
maturities of less than three months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities
exceeding three months, and securities and other assets held by trustees.

Restricted Assets

In accordance with bond resolutions (and certain related agreements) separate restricted accounts
are required to be established. The assets held in these accounts are restricted for specific uses,
including construction, debt service and other special reserve requirements. Restricted resources at
December 31, 2016 include the following:

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 34



Restricted

Washington State Auditor's Office

Cash & Cash Equivalents Investments Total
Collateral Reserves $ - $ 11,651,696 $ 11,651,696
Project Reserves 10,325,564 - 10,325,564
Replacement Reserves 9,420,319 - 9,420,319
Tenant Security Deposits 2,422,397 - 2,422,397
Excess Cash Reserves 1,993,107 - 1,993,107
Debt Service Reserves 768,241 673,248 1,441,489
FSS Reserves 812,159 - 812,159
HAP Reserves 672,634 - 672,634
Residual Receipts 564,899 - 564,899
Other 123,737 71,032 194,769

$ 27,103,057 $ 12,395,976 $ 39,499,033

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of rents due from tenants, cost reimbursements due from grantors, and
loans and accrued interest due from the tax credit properties. Annually, tenant receivables are
analyzed and the allowance for doubtful accounts adjusted. Other receivable allowances are
established for uncertain collectibles. No allowances existed at December 31 other than the allowance
for tenant accounts receivable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts and at
appraised fair market value at date of receipt if contributed. The Authority defines capital assets as
tangible items with an initial individual cost of at least $5,000 if the item is equipment and $100,000 if
the item is real property or a capital improvement. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method with depreciation commencing in the acquisition year and ceasing in the disposal year.
Capital project costs clearly associated with the acquisition, development, and construction of a real
estate project, including indirect costs and interest, are capitalized as a cost of that project. See Note
6 for the capital asset components and balances at December 31, 2016 and fiscal year activity.

Depreciable lives for the capital asset categories follow:

Land No depreciation
Buildings 20 — 40 years
Improvements 15 years
Equipment 3 - 10 years

Construction-in-process No depreciation

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. At year-end some maintenance may
be capitalized in accordance with the Authority’s capital asset policy. Management reviews land,
structures, and equipment for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If there is an indication of impairment,
management prepares an estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset
and its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an
impairment loss is recognized to write down the asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of
estimated expected future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on management’s best
estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions.

Page 35



Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of all state sponsored pension plans and additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Washington State
Department of Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Tax Liability
The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments. Several
developments make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) based on contracts with local jurisdictions.

Compensated Absences

It is the Authority’s policy to pay 100 percent of accumulated annual leave when an employee
terminates employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not used at
year-end is accrued. Sick leave does not vest and a portion of sick leave is paid to those separating
from the Authority as retirees as defined by the state pension system. Because the amount of such
payments is difficult to estimate, an accrual is made only when an employee becomes eligible for
retirement.

Inter-fund Accounts

The Authority maintains a master paying and receiving account. All cash receipts and disbursements
flow through this master account, except for disbursements to landlords under the Section 8 Voucher
program, which flows through a separate checking account (Section 8 Fund). Inter-fund payables and
receivables (due to/from relationships) are created and used to account for ownership of the funds.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Transactions that result in the consumption or acquisition of net assets in one period that are
applicable to future periods are presented as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources, respectively, on the Statement of Net Position.

Derivative Financials Instruments

The fair value of interest rate swap agreements (See Note 8) is determined by dealer quote. These
values represent the estimated amount the Authority would receive or pay to terminate the agreements
taking into consideration current interest rates.

Commitments

The Authority has entered into various long-term contracts for the development of various housing
projects. As of December 31, 2016, the Authority was obligated under these contracts to purchase
approximately $3.8 million of goods and services.

Note 2 — Accounting and Reporting Changes

GASB Statement 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, is effective for the year ending
December 31, 2016 and establishes principles for measuring fair value and standards of accounting
and financial reporting for assets and liabilities measured at fair value. There was no impact to the
fair value measurements presented in the Statement of Net Position or Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position of the Authority as a result of implementing this Statement,
although Note 4 was updated to comply with the new Statement.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 36



Note 3 — Prior Period Adjustment

Prior to 2016, $206,508 of capitalized financing lease fees of discretely presented component units
were expensed in error during the implementation of GASB Statement 65 — Items Previously Reported
as Assets and Liabilities. GASB Statement 65 mandates the expensing of debt issuance costs but
does not apply to lease fees.

Note 4 — Cash Deposits and Investments

The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 35.82.070(6).
In general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Insurance and Collateralization

Deposits that are in excess of the $250,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully (100%)
secured. Collateral comprised of identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed by HUD are
pledged or set aside to secure these deposits. The Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State
of Washington set up a multiple financial institution collateral pool to insure public deposits. This
protection is in the form of securities pledged as collateral to the Public Deposit Protection Commission
(PDPC) by all qualified depositories. In 1994, the Authority received a waiver from HUD that enabled
it to make deposits in excess of $250,000 in a qualified public depository because HUD determined
that there were “adequate safeguards against the loss of Public Housing Authority funds.”

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy limits the maximum maturity of an investment to not greater than three years.
Exceptions may be made for collateralization of repurchase agreements using investments not
exceeding 30 years and for the investment of reserve funds, which can be invested up to 30 years if
matched to an anticipated future cash flow.

Credit Risk

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Washington State law, and the
Authority’s investment policy all limit the instruments in which the Authority may invest. Not all
Authority funds have the same restrictions. Following are some of the instruments in which any
Authority funds, including Federal funds, may be invested:

1) Direct obligations of the Federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
a) U.S. Treasury Bills.
b) U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds.
2) Obligations of Federal government agencies, such as:
a) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities.
b) GNMA participation securities.
c) Maritime Administration Bonds.
d) Small Business Administration Bonds.
3) Securities of Government Sponsored Agencies, such as:
a) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) notes and bonds.
b) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) notes and bonds.
c) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) notes and bonds.
d) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) notes and bonds.
e) Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) notes and bonds.
4) Demand and savings accounts.
5) Money Market Deposit accounts.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 37



6) Certain mutual funds.
In addition to the above, non-federal funds and federal funds subject to the Authority’s Moving To Work
Agreement with HUD may be invested in the following which are allowed by the State of Washington:

7) Banker’s acceptances purchased on the secondary market.

8) Commercial paper.

9) Bonds of the State of Washington or any local government of the State of Washington that have
one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

10) General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general obligation
bonds of a local government of a state other than the State of Washington that have one of the
three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

11) Utility revenues bonds or warrants of any city of town in the State of Washington.

12) Bonds or warrants of a local improvement district that is within the protection of the local
improvement guaranty fund law.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority diversifies its investments by security type and institution. The investment policy states:
“With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, investment agreements for trustee held funds, and
authorized pools, no more than 15% of the Authority's total investment portfolio will be invested in a
single security type or with a single financial institution.” There is no custodial credit risk for cash and
investments.

Other Information:
The Authority has established arrangements with Federal Home Loan Bank for safekeeping of
investments.

Valuation and Classification

Cash equivalents include deposits and investments that are readily convertible to cash. Instruments
with an original maturity date of over 3 months are classified as investments. Cash and investments
held for the future payment of long-term liabilities are classified as non-current assets. Cash and
investments legally or contractually restricted as to use are classified as restricted.

Cash equivalents include an investment in a Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool). The Pool
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but adheres to SEC Rule
2(a)(7) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 that requires portfolio diversification, divestiture
considerations and action if the market value of the portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from the
amortized costs. Government pools that adhere to the SEC rule can report their investments at
amortized costs if the remaining maturities of the debt securities are 90 days or less. As of December
31, 2016, the pool had an average days-to-maturity of 30 days and therefore is reported at cost.
Government securities are reported at fair value.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 38



A summary of cash and investments at December 31, 2016 follows:

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand $ 12,700 $ - $ 12,700
Depository 23,014,563 4,644,571 27,659,134
WA State Pool Investment 68,148,175 14,523,407 82,671,582
U.S. Treasury Money Market - 7,935,080 7,935,080
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 91,175,438 $ 27,103,057 $ 118,278,495
Investments:
Government-Sponsored Entities $ 48,153,117 $ 4,982,368 $ 53,135,485
Federal Home Loan Bank Zero Coupon 868,045 6,909,091 7,777,136
Certificates of Deposit - 348,357 348,357
Westdeutshe Landesbank Investment Agreement - 156,160 156,160
Total Investments $ 49,021,162 $ 12,395,976 $ 61,417,138
Total $ 140,196,600 $ 39,499,033 $ 179,695,633

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
As of December 31, 2016, the Authority held the following investments at amortized cost:

Investment's held by

KCHA's own the Authority as an
Type of Investment  Maturities investments agent for others Total
Nonnegotiable CD  8/31/2017 71,032 - 71,032
Nonnegotiable CD 5/1/2017 277,325 - 277,325
Total 348,357 - 348,357

Investments Measured at Fair Value

The Authority measures and reports investments at fair value using valuation input hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles, as follows:

e Level 1; Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: These are quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other quoted prices that
are not observable;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs for and asset or liability.

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservabel
Investments by Fair Value Level Total Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Federal Agency Securities 53,135,485 53,135,485 - -
FHLB Zero Coupon Bond 7,777,136 7,777,136
Westdeutsche Landesbank Investment Agreement 156,160 156,160 - -
61,068,781 61,068,781 - -

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 39



Note 5 - Notes and Financing Lease Receivables

The notes and financing leases held by the Authority are primarily the result of the Authority’s
transactions with the tax credit partnerships. At December 31, 2016, all of the developer fee notes, all
of the financing leases, and $206.8 million of the other notes were receivable from tax credit
partnerships. The notes are received for fees earned by the Authority from developing the rental
properties and for funds advanced to the partnerships to purchase and rehabilitate the properties. The
notes earn interest at varying rates up to 8.5 percent per annum. The Authority acquires financing
leases when it purchases or develops rental properties then transfers substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership to the partnerships under financing lease. See Note 9 — Component Units, for
further discussion of the Authority’s financial relationship with the partnerships.

A summary of the notes and direct financing leases receivable at December 31, 2016 follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Payments Balance Portion
Developer fee notes 873,109 $ 8,433,000 $ (873,109) 8,433,000 | $ 6,218,001
Other Notes
Real Estate:
Residential - - - - -
Multifamily 199,353,369 16,688,364 (49,096,705) 166,945,028 695,978
Construction - - - - -
Other 14,298,336 27,336,667 (22,630) 41,612,373 -
Total Notes 214,524,814 52,458,031 (49,992,444) 216,990,401 6,913,979
Financing Leases, net
Real Estate: Multifamily 48,481,825 36,780,032 (26,122,160) 59,139,697 1,522,420
Notes & Financing
Leases Receivable $ 263,006,639 $ 89,238,063 $ (76,114,604) $ 276,130,098 | $ 8,436,399
The maturity schedule for notes receivables is as follows:
FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST ** TOTAL
2017 6,913,979 1,735,833 8,649,812
2018 73,333,949 1,724,035 75,057,984
2019 711,893 1,706,792 2,418,685
2020 1,557,102 1,697,507 3,254,609
2021 767,835 1,672,162 2,439,997
2022-2026 41,858,847 7,691,008 49,549,855
2027-2031 22,713,583 4,891,971 27,605,554
2032-2036 6,116,015 3,131,129 9,247,144
2037-2041 8,190,266 1,698,981 9,889,247
2042-2046 4,463,453 587,785 5,051,238
2047-2051 9,313,916 126,242 9,440,158
2052-2056 8,184,541 494,434 8,678,975
2057-2061 32,865,022 961,544 33,826,566
NOTE RECEIVABLE BALANCE $ 216,990,401 $ 28,119,423 $ 245,109,824

** On amortizing notes.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 40



The maturity schedule for financing lease receivables is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST ** TOTAL
2017 1,622,420 1,070,733 2,593,153
2018 18,746,154 1,005,889 19,752,043
2019 1,363,250 191,288 1,554,538
2020 1,175,000 180,918 1,355,918
2021 1,190,000 169,785 1,359,785
2022-2026 6,130,000 653,480 6,783,480
2027-2031 21,711,619 245,675 21,957,294
2032-2036 3,346,254 - 3,346,254
2037-2041 - - -
2042-2046 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
2047-2051 - - -
2052-2056 955,000 - 955,000
FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLE BALANCE $ 59,139,697 $ 3,517,768 $ 62,657,465
** Unearned interest.
Note 6 — Capital Assets
Primary Government
The components and fiscal year activity of land, structures and equipment follow.
Beginning Additions and  Disposals and Ending
Balances Transfers-In Transfers Out Balances
NONDEPRECIABLE:
Land $ 85,099,399 $ 11,124,535 §  (3,088,167) $ 93,135,767
Land Improvements 2,774,972 - (26,673) 2,748,299
Construction-in-progress
Greenbridge Project 15,045,765 1,069,783 (2,035,650) 14,079,898
Energy Performance Contract - 4,777,354 - 4,777,354
Other 9,062,021 19,569,455 (20,779,727) 7,851,749
Total Nondepreciable 111,982,157 36,541,127 (25,930,217) 122,593,067
DEPRECIABLE:
Land Improvements 27,774,735 5,866,692 (123,967) 33,517,460
Buildings and Improvements 464,673,145 52,330,496 (16,781,011) 500,222,630
Personal Property and Equipment 6,022,831 2,199,856 (168,375) 8,054,312
Leasehold Improvements 766,095 - - 766,095
Total Depreciable 499,236,806 60,397,044 (17,073,353) 542,560,497
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 611,218,963 96,938,171 (43,003,570) 665,153,564
Accumulated Depreciation (171,504,587) (16,490,385) 5,671,858 (182,323,114)
Accumulated Amortization (472,503) (255,365) - (727,868)
Total accumulated depreciation and amortization (171,977,090) (16,745,750) 5,671,858 (183,050,982)
NET CAPITAL ASSETS $ 439,241,873 $ 80,192,421 $ (37,331,712) $ 482,102,582

Capital asset activity resulted primarily from the acquisition of assets from the KCHA — Harrison House
Limited Partnership, the purchase of Highland Village and Abbey Ridge Apartments, the sale of
Charter House to Bremerton Housing Authority and Corinthian and Spiritwood capital assets to Tax
Credit Partnerships as well as the blending of Overlake Partnership assets into the Authority’s financial
statements.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 41



Of the $96.9 million of additions to the capital assets, $52.2 million was related to the acquisition of
land and buildings resulting from the following transactions: the acquisition of assets from the Harrison
House Limited Partnership ($5.6 million), the acquisition of assets from the KCHA — Cones Limited
Partnership ($4.9 million), the purchase of Abbey Ridge ($21.9 million) and the purchase of Highland
Village ($19.8 million) while $24.2 million of additions was attributable to the increase in construction-
in-process. Another $20.5 million of additions was the result of upgrades and rehabilitation at various
properties.

Of the $43 million net capital asset dispositions, $20 million was related to the disposition of land and
buildings resulting from the following transactions: the sale of Charter House ($1.6 million), the sale of
Spiritwood ($8.2 million) and the sale of Corinthian Apartments ($10.2 million). Capital Assets
disposition of $20.8 million represents capitalized building upgrades reclassified from construction-in-
progress and $2 million represents lot sales to private builders for the construction of market-rate for-
sale homes.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Authority incurred no interest costs related to the
acquisition and construction of capital assets.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning Additions Disposals Ending

Balances Balances
NONDEPRECIABLE:
Land $ 18,865,179 $ 2,557,079 $ (1,846,980) $ 19,575,278
Construction-in-progress 235,332 515,430 - 750,762
Total Nondepreciable 19,100,511 3,072,509 (1,846,980) 20,326,040
DEPRECIABLE:
Land Improvements 23,371,716 - (1,456,043) 21,915,673
Buildings 383,190,660 60,850,087 (58,976,250) 385,064,497
Equipment 8,466,258 1,192,718 (1,815,739) 7,843,237
Off-site Work 9,837,141 - (383,939) 9,453,202
Total Depreciable 424,865,775 62,042,805 (62,631,971) 424,276,609
Intangible Assets 1,891,864 530,787 (101,089) 2,321,562
Total Capital Assets 445,858,150 65,646,101 (64,580,040) 446,924,211
Accumulated Depreciation (93,257,076) (11,536,646) 23,331,975 (81,461,747)
Accumulated Amortization (760,949) (154,762) 47,174 (868,537)

$ 351,840,125 $ 53,954,693 $ (41,200,891) $ 364,593,927

Additions to capital assets resulted primarily from the addition of Spiritwood Manor ($43.5 million),
Corinthian Apartments ($18.1 million) and rehabilitation work at various properties.

Disposals of capital assets resulted primarily from the dissolution of Harrison House Apartments LLC
and KCHA - Cones Limited Partnership. The assets belonging to the LLC and partnership were
acquired by the Primary Government.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 42



Note 7 — Long Term Debt Obligations

Changes to the Authority’s long-term obligations are as follows:

Revenue Bonds
Demand Bonds
Mortgage Notes
Financing Lease
Lines of Credit
Notes Payable

Beginning Retirements/ Current
Balance Additions Payments Ending Balance Portion
$ 64,040,225 $ 17,464,529 $ (11,863,889) $ 69,640,866 | $ 3,583,636
63,529,708 - (2,040,000) 61,489,708 1,425,728
1,016,893 - (35,789) 981,104 37,220
400,113 - (400,113) - -
56,325,841 76,680,339 (10,039,383) 122,966,796 3,000,000
144,196,439 2,599,641 (5,045,216) 141,750,863 5,197,160
$ 329,509,219 $ 96,744,509 $ (29,424,390) $ 396,829,337 | $ 13,243,743

Additional debt incurred in 2016 consists of the following:

$7 million of revenue bonds were issued to rehabilitate Corinthian Apartments. The bonds
have a 15-year maturity and interest rates ranging from 0.9 percent to 3.0 percent.

$10.5 million of Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds (QECB) were issued to support the
Energy Performance Contract (EPC). The bond issue matures in 2037 and has an interest
rate of 4.23 percent.

$27.4 million drawn on a Bank of America line of credit to finance the rehabilitation of
Spiritwood Manor Apartments and Corinthian Apartments. The line of credit matures on
August 1, 2018 and has an interest rate of 2.29 percent.

$49.3 million drawn on two KeyBank lines of credit to purchase Highland Village Apartments,
Abbey Ridge Apartments, and pay down the Somerset Apartments’ Rasmussen Note and
bonds. $43.7 was drawn on an $80 million line of credit that matures on June 30, 2018 and
has an interest rate of 1.20 percent while $5.6 million was drawn on an $11.5 million line of
credit that matures May 18, 2018 and has an interest rate of 2.29 percent.

A $750,000 note payable to King County was assumed when assets and liabilities of
Harrison House Apartments LLC were acquired from the tax credit partnership. This loan
matures in 2054 and has an interest rate of 1 percent.

A $300,000 note payable to A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) for rehabilitation and
preservation of senior housing at Bellevue Manor Apartments. The note has a 40 year
maturity. Interest of 1 percent begins to accrue only after the first 20 years.

A $775,000 note payable to King County was acquired from the KCHA — Cones Limited
Partnership. The note accrues interest at a rate of 1 percent per annum, compounded
annually. Payments of principal and interest shall be deferred until April 1, 2054, the maturity
date, at which time the full balance of principal and accrued interest shall be due and
payable.

A $775,000 note payable to Washington State Department of Commerce was acquired from
the KCHA — Cones Limited Partnership. The note matures in 2045 and accrues interest at a
rate of 1 percent per annum, compounded quarterly.

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 43



Fiscal Year Amount Interest Fiscal Year Amount Current

Issued Issued Rates Maturity Outstanding Portion

Revenue Bonds:

Tax Credit:

Southwood Square 2001 $ 5,000,000 2.25-6.00% 2032 $ 3,485,000 $ 150,000

Greenbridge - Nia 2006 3,000,000 5.41-5.87% 2037 2,755,000 40,000

Seola Crossing 1 2006 1,650,000 6.38% 2047 1,595,821 18,470

Seola Crossing 2 2006 5,050,000 6.38% 2047 4,884,179 56,530

Soosette Creek 2008 37,500,000 0.00-0.65% 2058 24,445,000 2,120,000

Eastbridge Apts. 2008 7,120,000 5.65% 2029 6,790,000 75,000

Green River Homes Il 2011 9,500,000 75 2% 2021 6,909,091 863,636

Corinthian 2016 7,000,000 .90 -3% 2031 7,000,000 180,000
Total tax credit $ 75,820,000 $ 57,864,091 $ 3,503,636

Other:

Rural Housing 1997 $ 2,230,000 4.50-5.75% 2028 $ 1,312,246 $ 80,000

EPC - Hannon Armstrong QECB 2016 10,464,529 4.23% 2037 10,464,529 -
Total other $ 12,694,529 $ 11,776,775 $ 80,000
Total revenue bonds $ 88,514,529 $ 69,640,866 $ 3,583,636

Demand Bonds:

Tax Credit:

Overlake 2000 $ 23,725,000 0.05-2.61% 2040 $ 22,905,000 $ 125,000

Salmon Creek 2008 4,250,000 0.05-2.61% 2047 3,940,000 60,000
Total tax credit $ 27,975,000 $ 26,845,000 $ 185,000

Other:

2005 Pool 2005 $ 46,290,000 0.05% 2035 $ 34,644,708 1,240,728
Total other $ 46,290,000 $ 34,644,708 $ 1,240,728
Total demand bonds $ 74,265,000 $ 61,489,708 $§ 1,425,728

Mortgage Notes:

Rural Housing 1998 $ 1,350,949 7.25% 2033 $ 981,104 $ 37,220
Total mortgage notes $ 1,350,949 $ 981,104 $ 37,220

Lines of Credit:

Tax Credit:

Vantage Point 2015 $ 3,000,000 2.66% 2017 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000

Spiritwood Manor 2015 24,000,000 2.29% 2018 24,000,000 -

Corinthian Apartments 2015 5,500,000 2.29% 2018 3,336,667 -
Total tax credit $ 32,500,000 $ 30,336,667 $ 3,000,000

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 44



Fiscal Year Amount Interest Fiscal Year Amount Current

Issued Issued Rates Maturity Outstanding Portion
Other:
Bank of America 2013 $ 1,559,623 2018 $ 1,559,623
Chaussee 1.93% 19,823 -
Vashon Terrace 1.93% 1,539,800 -
KeyBank 2011 11,500,000 2020 11,389,066
New Market Tax Credit 3.00% 5,751,792
Highland Village 2.45% 2,841,564
Somerset 2.45% 2,795,711
KeyBank 2015 80,000,000 2018 79,681,440 -
Villages at South Station 1.20% 28,409,176
Corinthian 1.56% 3,076,377
Somerset 1.20% 4,826,012
Woodcreek Lane 1.20% 4,489,491
Highland Village 1.20% 16,965,721
Abbey Ridge 1.20% 21,914,664
Total Other $ 93,059,623 $ 92,630,129 $ -
Total lines of credit $ 125,559,623 $ 122,966,796 $ 3,000,000
Notes Payable:
Tax Credit:
Somerset - Bellevue 2000 $ 700,000 1.00% 2030 $ 612,592 $ 44,361
Somerset 2000 400,000 1.00% 2032 341,032 11,310
Overlake - 4 2001 1,500,000 1.00% 2050 1,500,000 -
Overlake - 5 2001 500,000 1.00% 2050 500,000 -
Southwood Square 2001 380,000 1.00% 2053 380,000 -
Greenbridge - Nia 2008 328,000 4.75% 2058 328,000 -
Seola Crossing |l 2007 250,000 4.75% 2058 250,000 -
Soosette Creek 2010 1,950,000 0.65% 2060 1,950,000 -
Total tax credit $ 6,008,000 $ 5,861,624 $ 55,671
Other:
Hidden Village - State 1992 $ 292,157 5.00% 2044 $ 292,157 $ -
Windsor Heights - State 1999 1,040,000 1.00% 2039 965,986 37,563
Windsor Heights - King County 1999 950,000 1.00% 2049 950,000 -
Windsor Heights - SeaTac 1999 90,000 1.00% 2049 90,000 -
Si View - DOC 1999 93,860 1.00% 2049 66,104 1,763
Rainier View 1 - DOC 1999 227,240 1.00% 2049 158,650 4,232
Rainier View 2 - DOC 1999 172,900 1.00% 2049 118,987 3,174
FHLB 2013 18,000,000 3.97% 2033 15,062,903 900,000
2013 Pool 2013 83,281,749 3.57% 2033 74,572,081 3,238,299
2015 Pool 2015 41,700,000 2.68% 2035 40,312,371 956,459
Bellevue Manor - ARCH Loan 2015 476,357 1.00% 2054 775,998 -
Patricia Harris - ARCH Loan 2015 224,002 1.00% 2054 224,002 -
Harrison House - King County 2015 750,000 1.00% 2054 750,000 -
Arbor Heights - WA State CTED 2004 775,000 1.00% 2043 775,000 -
Arbor Heights - King County HOME 2005 775,000 1.00% 2054 775,000 -
Total other $ 148,848,265 $ 135,889,239 $ 5,141,489
Total notes payable $ 154,856,265 $ 141,750,863 $ 5,197,160
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 444,546,366 $ 396,829,337 $ 13,243,743

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 45



The schedule of principal payments follows:

Debt Service - Revenue Demand Mortgage  Financing Lines of
Principal Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Notes Total

2017 3,583,635 1,425,728 37,220 - 3,000,000 5,197,160 13,243,743
2018 3,728,637 1,508,761 40,010 - 119,966,796 5,668,201 130,912,405
2019 3,928,636 1,739,509 43,009 - - 5,517,658 11,228,812
2020 2,798,636 1,823,099 46,233 - - 5,667,524 10,335,492
2021 4,669,546 1,914,662 49,698 - - 5,835,439 12,469,345
2022-2026 11,778,381 11,125,979 310,279 - - 32,156,758 55,371,397
2027-2031 21,695,298 14,224,388 454,656 - - 36,895,536 73,269,878
2032-2036 9,032,253 13,192,582 - - - 36,732,298 58,957,133
2037-2041 6,235,843 6,335,000 - - - 708,271 13,279,114
2042-2046 2,190,000 7,770,000 - - - 352,862 10,312,862
2047-2051 - 430,000 - - - 3,140,288 3,570,288
2052-2056 - - - - - 1,678,868 1,678,868
2057-2061 - - - - - 2,200,000 2,200,000
Total $ 69,640,865 $ 61,489,708 $ 981,105 $ - $ 122,966,796 $ 141,750,863 $ 396,829,337

The schedule of interest payments follows:

Debt Service - Revenue Demand Mortgage Financing Lines of
Interest Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Notes Total

2017 3,182,883 1,638,727 69,675 - - 4,373,588 9,264,873
2018 3,073,646 1,603,683 66,869 - - 4,193,363 8,937,561
2019 2,935,388 1,566,992 63,852 - - 4,007,968 8,574,200
2020 2,788,974 1,154,480 60,609 - - 3,823,639 7,827,702
2021 2,675,067 872,191 57,123 - - 3,621,328 7,225,709
2022-2026 11,889,856 4,198,202 223,462 - - 15,011,167 31,322,687
2027-2031 7,604,901 3,877,439 54,853 - - 9,284,312 20,821,505
2032-2036 3,849,578 3,491,820 - - - 2,902,900 10,244,298
2037-2041 1,274,101 3,314,493 - - - 501,087 5,089,681
2042-2046 419,178 1,352,068 - - - 547,525 2,318,771
2047-2051 - 5,941 - - - 652,657 658,598
2052-2056 - - - - - 773,380 773,380
2057-2061 - - - - - 350,022 350,022
Total $ 39,693,572 $§ 23,076,036 $ 596,443 $ - $ - $ 50,042,936 $ 113,408,987
The schedule of debt service payments follows:

Debt Service - Revenue Demand Mortgage  Financing Lines of

Total Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Notes Total

2017 6,766,518 3,064,455 106,895 - 3,000,000 9,570,748 22,508,616
2018 6,802,283 3,112,444 106,879 - 119,966,796 9,861,564 139,849,966
2019 6,864,024 3,306,501 106,861 - - 9,525,626 19,803,012
2020 5,587,610 2,977,579 106,842 - - 9,491,163 18,163,194
2021 7,344,613 2,786,853 106,821 - - 9,456,767 19,695,054
2022-2026 23,668,237 15,324,181 533,741 - - 47,167,925 86,694,084
2027-2031 29,300,199 18,101,827 509,509 - - 46,179,848 94,091,383
2032-2036 12,881,831 16,684,402 - - - 39,635,198 69,201,431
2037-2041 7,509,944 9,649,493 - - - 1,209,358 18,368,795
2042-2046 2,609,178 9,122,068 - - - 900,387 12,631,633
2047-2051 - 435,941 - - - 3,792,945 4,228,886
2052-2056 - - - - - 2,452,248 2,452,248
2057-2061 - - - - - 2,550,022 2,550,022
Total $ 109,334,437 $ 84,565,744 $ 1,577,548 $ - $ 122,966,796 $ 191,793,799 $ 510,238,324

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 46



Demand Bonds

The Authority had $61.5 million in outstanding variable rate demand bonds on two projects and one
8-project bond pool. The Village at Overlake Station (Overlake) had $22.9 million, Salmon Creek
Apartments had $3.9 million and the 2005 bond pool (comprised of the Carriage House, Cottonwood,
Newporter, Timberwood, Cove East, Woodside East, Aspen Ridge and Bellepark East projects) had
$34.7 million outstanding, respectively, at December 31, 2016. The bonds for each have the following
common characteristics:

¢ Credit enhancements have been obtained for each of the bond issuances. For Overlake the
credit enhancement is in the form of a Letter of Credit (LOC) and is equal to the outstanding
bond balance plus one interest payment, priced at 0.20 percent of the facility. For the 2005
Pool, the credit enhancement is in the form of a direct pay credit enhancement agreement
issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation priced at 0.30 percent of the facility.

e The credit enhancements are intended to not only provide security to bondholders, but also to
make periodic interest payments for which the Authority regularly reimburses the credit
enhancement providers.

e The Banc of America Securities LLC acts as remarketing agent, reselling at market rates any
bonds sold by bondholders. It has committed to repurchasing bonds for its own portfolio if the
bonds cannot be resold on the open market.

o Interest rates are recalculated weekly, based on the rate at which bonds can be remarketed.

e The bonds are subject to an annual remarketing fee of 0.05 percent of the outstanding amount
of the bonds or $5,000 whichever is greater.

e Underlying source of repayment for the bonds is the revenues produced by the respective
properties.

e In conjunction with the sale of these bonds, the Authority entered into interest rate swap
agreements as a cash flow hedge to reduce the volatility related to variable rate interest debt.

e Bonds are convertible to fixed rate at the Authority’s option.

The Overlake bonds mature in 2040. At December 31, 2016 the variable rate on the bonds was 0.075
percent. The Overlake variable rate demand note bonds have a year-end principal balance of
$22,905,000. The Letter of Credit expires on July 1, 2018 and supports the variable rate bonds only.
The swap agreement expired on January 1, 2013 and was not renewed.

The Salmon Creek Apartments bond matures in 2047. At December 31, 2016 the variable rate on the
bond was 0.75 percent. The Salmon Creek variable rate demand bond had a year-end principal
balance of $3,940,000. This bond has a swap agreement in place, but not held by the Authority. The
interest the Authority pays through the swap agreement is 3.988 percent.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 47



The 2005 bond pool bonds mature in 2035. At December 31, 2016 the variable rate on the bonds was
0.63 percent. The credit enhancement agreement is for a fixed term of 15 years and, upon maturity
of the credit facility, the Authority will either refinance the bond issue or obtain another credit
enhancement. The Authority has entered into three swap contracts with respect to the bonds. Two of
the swaps matured during 2015. Under the remaining swap contract terms, the Authority pays a fixed
rate of 3.87 percent and receives a variable rate equal to the weekly weighted average of SIFMA
resets for the respective period on the applicable notional amounts. As of December 31, 2016, the
notional amount of the remaining swap was $19,363,000 and the fair market value was ($1,566,271).
The remaining swap will mature in 2020. KCHA will maintain all required cap agreements.

Recoverable Grants

Overlake 4 - Washington State Convention and Trade Center

In 2001, the Authority received a $1,500,000 recoverable grant from the Washington State Convention
and Trade Center which was conditional on the Overlake Transit-Oriented Development constructing
300 units of affordable housing for low income households with annual gross income at or below 80
percent of the local median income for the Seattle, Bellevue, and Everett Primary Metropolitan
Statistical Area. The length of commitment to serve the target population will be fifty years ending
February 28, 2051. All funds are recoverable if the conditions are not met.

Overlake 5 - King County Department of Community and Health Services

In 2001, the Authority received a $500,000 recoverable grant from the King County Department of
Community and Health Services which is conditional on the Overlake project renting a minimum of 40
percent of their units to households that make less than 60 percent of area median income. Rents
charged to tenants may not exceed 30 percent of the monthly income of the target population. This
commitment to serve the target population matures on January 1, 2052. All funds are recoverable if
conditions are not met.

Forgivable Loans

Birch Creek

In 2010, the Authority received a forgivable loan of $1,950,000 from the King County Department of
Community and Human Services which is conditional on the Birch Creek project renting a minimum
of 40 percent of their units to households that make less than 60% of area median income. Rents
charged to tenants may not exceed 30 percent of the monthly income of the target population. This
commitment to serve the target population matures on August 31, 2064. The full amount of the loan is
to be repaid if the conditions for forgiveness are not met.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 48



Greenbridge - Nia

In 2008, the Authority received a $328,000 forgivable loan from Bank of America which is conditional
on the Nia project renting units as follows: (a) at least 50 percent of the project’s rental units to tenants
whose income at the time of their initial occupancy of a unit in the project is no greater than 30 percent
of the Area Median Income (the “AMI”) in King County, Washington as published by HUD; (b) at least
10 percent of the project’s rental units to tenants whose income at the time of their initial occupancy
of a unit in the project is no greater than 50 percent of AMI; and (c) at least 40 percent of the project’s
rental units to tenants whose income at the time of their initial occupancy of a unit in the project is no
greater than 60 percent of AMI. This commitment to serve the target population matures on April 1,
2022. The full amount of the loan is to be repaid if the conditions for forgiveness are not met.

Seola Crossing

In 2007, the Authority received a $250,000 forgivable loan from Bank of America which is conditional
on the Seola Crossing project renting as follows: (a) at least 50 percent of the Project’s rental units to
tenants whose income at the time of their initial occupancy of a unit in the Project is no greater than
30 percent of the Area Median Income in King County, Washington as published by HUD; (b) at least
10 percent of the Project’s rental units to tenants whose income at the time of their initial occupancy
of a unit in the project is no greater than 50 percent of AMI; and (c) at least 40 percent of the project’s
rental units to tenants whose income at the time of their initial occupancy of a unit in the project is no
greater than 60 percent of AMI. This commitment to serve the target population matures on April 1,
2022. The full amount of the loan is to be repaid if the conditions for forgiveness are not met.

Windsor Heights

In 1999, the Authority received a forgivable loan of $1,040,000 from the King County Department of
Community and Human Services which is conditional on the Windsor Heights project renting a
minimum of 40 percent of their units to households that make less than 60 percent of area median
income. Rents charged to tenants may not exceed 30 percent of the monthly income of the target
population. This commitment to serve the target population matures on June 15, 2049. The full amount
of the loan is to be repaid if the conditions for forgiveness are not met.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 49



NOTE 8 - Derivative Instruments

Summary of Derivative Instruments

At December 31, 2016, the Authority had the following derivative instruments outstanding:

Changes in Fair Value Fair Value at December 31, 2016 Notional
Classification Amount Classification Amount
Business-type Activities
Investment derivatives:
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps
Wachovia, 2005 Pool A Investment Income 782,589 Investment (1,566,271) $ 19,363,000
$ 782,589 $  (1,566,271)

1. Fair Value of deriviatves is recorded in "Interest Rate Swaps - Fair Value" on Statement of Net Position
2. Changes in Fair Value of derivatives are recorded in "Investment Income"
in Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Investment Derivative Risks

e The credit ratings of the swap counterparties are as follows: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Aa2-
IAA-IAA)

o There is no potential loss if the counterparties fail to fulfill their obligations.

e The swap providers’ obligations under the swap are supported by contractual obligations of
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, as successor in interest to Wachovia Bank, N.A.

Note 9 — Component Units

Blended Component Units

Moving King County Residents Forward (MKCRF)

As the governing body of MKCREF is identical to the governing body of the Authority and the
management of the Authority has operational responsibility for MKCRF, MKCRF’s balances and
transactions are “blended” with those of the Authority pursuant to GASB Statement 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity and GASB Statement 61The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus.

When combining MKCRF and the Authority’s financial data, the capital lease was eliminated, as well
as other payables to the Authority, in order to prevent overstatement of debt and receivables.

Overlake TOD Housing Limited Partnership (Overlake)

The Authority serves as Overlake’s sole general partner. Overlake’s limited partner is KCHA Initial
Affiliate LLC which is 100% controlled by the Authority. As such, the governing body of the Authority
and the partnership are substantively the same which in turn gives the Authority operational
responsibility for the Overlake partnership. Consequently, Overlake’s balances and transactions are
“blended” with those of the Authority pursuant to GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity
and GASB Statement 61The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 50



Overlake TOD
Moving King County Housing Limited

Residents Forward Partnership
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ 3,046,730
Receivables and other - 45,024
Capital assets, net 34,808,970 26,461,057
Total Assets $ 34,808,970 $ 29,552,811
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ - $ -
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 34,808,970 $ 29,552,811
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 518,060 $ 887,385
Long-term liabilities 15,814,122 24,199,063
Total Liabilities $ 16,332,182 § 25,086,448
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ - $ -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 18,994,848 1,812,829
Restricted - 1,716,324
Unrestricted (518,060) 937,210
Total Net Position $ 18,476,788 $ 4,466,363
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION $ 34,808,970 $ 29,552,811

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION:

OPERATING REVENUES $ 3,076,563 $ 3,632,692

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative 2,483 649,682
Operating and maintenance 5,303 949,018
Depreciation and amortization 1,476,466 1,094,028
Total Operating Expense 1,484,252 2,692,728
Total Operating Income 1,592,311 939,964

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant Revenue - -
Investment income - -
Interest expense (997,967) (706,989)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - -
Other revenue (expense) - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (997,967) (706,989)

Total Net Income (Loss) 594,344 232,975

Contributions (distributions) - -

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 594,344 232,975
Beginning Net Position 17,882,444 4,233,388
Total Ending Net Position $ 18,476,788 $ 4,466,363

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 51



Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented component units are Low Income Housing Tax Credit partnerships whose
limited partners or members have limited rights regarding the operations of the partnerships and the
Authority as General Partner or Managing Member controls the day-to-day operations of the
partnerships. As such, the Authority has certain rights and responsibilities which enable it to impose
its will on the partnerships due to its significant influence as the General Partner or Managing Member
and also its financial relationships with the partnerships. It is for this reason that they are discretely
presented on the Authority’s financial statements.

Egis Housing Fairwind Green
Corinthian TOD  Eastbridge Limited Apartments River
Partnership Name LLLP Apartments LLC  Partnership LLLP Homes LLC
Fiscal Year Acquired / Sold 2016 2010 2007 2013 2004
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 722,602 $ 1,034,047 $ 2,255,080 $ 479,291 $ 526,462
Receivables and other 102,246 122,075 197,837 134,950 57,207
Capital assets, net 18,085,612 16,641,785 58,448,443 18,287,340 5,651,060
Total Assets $ 18910460 $ 17,797,907 $ 60,901,360 $ 18,901,581 $ 6,234,729
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ -8 - 3 - 3 -8 -
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 18,910,460 $ 17,797,907 $ 60,901,360 $ 18,901,581 $ 6,234,729
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 3,689,076 $ 780,083 $ 574,638 $ 767,863 $ 1,192,182
Long-term liabilities 15,841,639 9,902,803 56,811,615 6,171,543 3,926,642
Total Liabilities $ 19,530,715 § 10,682,886 $ 57,386,253 $ 6,939,406 $ 5,118,824
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ - 8 - 3 - 3 -8
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,243,973 6,663,982 8,651,824 12,187,340 1,901,060
Restricted - 299,788 1,308,936 90,095 248,184
Unrestricted (2,864,228) 151,251 (6,445,653) (315,260) (1,033,339)
Total Net Position $ (620,255) $ 7,115,021 $ 3515107 $ 11,962,175 § 1,115,905
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION $ 18910460 $ 17,797,907 $ 60,901,360 $ 18,901,581 $ 6,234,729
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 619,133 § 1,265,035 $ 3,608,668 $ 700,377 $ 706,169
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 231,914 150,123 776,242 232,125 179,898
Operating and maintenance 441,598 304,402 1,068,980 312,715 251,340
Depreciation and amortization 366,391 912,722 1,784,900 606,476 342,881
Total Operating Expense 1,039,903 1,367,247 3,630,122 1,151,316 774,119
Total Operating Income (420,770) (102,212) (21,454) (450,939) (67,950)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income - 113 - 25 31
Interest expense (214,486) (623,692) (1,087,873) (232,461) (197,677)
Other revenue (expense) - - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (214,486) (623,579) (1,087,873) (232,436) (197,646)
Total Net Income (Loss) (635,256) (725,791) (1,109,327) (683,375) (265,596)
Contributions (distributions) 15,001 - -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (620,255) (725,791) (1,109,327) (683,375) (265,596)
Beginning Net Position - 7,840,812 4,624,434 12,645,550 1,381,501
Prior period adjustment - - - - -
Total Ending Net Position $ (620,255) $ 7,115,021 $ 3,515107 $ 11,962,175 $ 1,115,905

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 52



Green KCHA- Southwood Nia Sixth Place

River Square Limited Apartments  Salmon Creek Seola Apartments
Partnership Name Homes 2LLC Partnership LLC Housing LLC  Crossing LLC LLLP
Fiscal Year Acquired / Sold 2012 2001 2008 2009 2007 2010
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 439324 $ 781,067 $ 508,959 §$ 679,240 §$ 1,633,236 $ 340,066
Receivables and other 51,752 17,397 119,667 95,113 307,253 33,224
Capital assets, net 15,895,899 6,171,101 14,920,977 17,579,961 29,165,894 7,718,344
Total Assets $ 16,386,975 $ 6,969,565 $ 15,549,603 $ 18,354,314 $ 31,106,383 $ 8,091,634
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 16,386,975 $ 6,969,565 $ 15,549,603 $ 18,354,314 $ 31,106,383 $ 8,091,634
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 350,236 $ 183,184 § 1,806,771 $ 1,599,015 § 202,778 $ 33,471
Long-term liabilities 11,868,904 4,658,476 7,493,000 8,074,326 21,636,951 6,792,654
Total Liabilities $ 12219140 $ 4,841,660 $ 9,299,771 § 9673341 $ 21,839,729 $ 6,826,125
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ - $ - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,785,104 1,756,957 7,387,977 10,064,366 22,685,894 925,690
Restricted 65,249 336,012 340,106 344,199 689,804 125,282
Unrestricted 317,482 34,936 (1,478,251) (1,727,592) (14,109,044) 214,537
Total Net Position $ 4167835 $ 2,127,905 $ 6,249,832 § 8680973 $ 9,266,654 $ 1,265,509
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION $ 16,386,975 $ 6,969,565 $ 15,549,603 $ 18,354,314 $ 31,106,383 $ 8,091,634
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 728,575 $ 1,120,347 § 698,070 $ 934110 §$ 1,978,644 $ 201,312
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 153,790 206,070 123,341 135,744 281,476 37,153
Operating and maintenance 223,408 487,775 250,939 317,528 585,511 94,487
Depreciation and amortization 466,250 232,264 582,205 572,022 1,283,789 364,903
Total Operating Expense 843,448 926,109 956,485 1,025,294 2,150,776 496,543
Total Operating Income (114,873) 194,238 (258,415) (91,184) (172,132) (295,231)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 26 17,299 10 173,939 79 -
Interest expense (71,700) (233,797) (366,834) (435,766) (1,034,412) (5,210)
Other revenue (expense) - - - - - -
Total ing ( ) (71,674) (216,498) (366,824) (261,827) (1,034,333) (5,210)
Total Net Income (Loss) (186,547) (22,260) (625,239) (353,011) (1,206,465) (300,441)
Contributions (distributions) - (14,471) - - - -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (186,547) (36,731) (625,239) (353,011) (1,206,465) (300,441)
Beginning Net Position 4,354,382 2,164,636 6,829,073 9,033,984 10,272,609 1,565,950
Prior period adjustment - - 45,998 - 200,510 -
Total Ending Net Position $ 4,167,835 $ 2,127,905 $ 6,249,832 $ 8,680,973 $ 9,266,654 $ 1,265,509

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 53



Partnership Name
Fiscal Year Acquired / Sold

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables and other
Capital assets, net
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION:

S S S A S, A S e A N S ey O T

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative
Operating and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expense

Total Operating Income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Interest expense
Other revenue (expense)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Total Net Income (Loss)
Contributions (distributions)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Beginning Net Position

Prior period adjustment
Total Ending Net Position

Washington State Auditor's Office

Zephyr

Soosette Creek  Spiritwood Vantage Point  Apartments GRAND
LLC Manor LLLP  Apartments LLC LLLP TOTAL
2008 2016 2013 2010
$ 2,601,008 $ 618,744 $ 216,851 $ 205918 $ 13,041,895
247,862 180,805 154,933 41,719 1,864,040
79,069,967 43,562,329 25,638,742 6,303,448 363,140,902
$ 81918837 $ 447361878 $ 26010526 $ 6,551,085 $ 378,046,837
$ -8 -8 -8 -8 -
$ 81,918,837 $ 44,361,878 $ 26,010,526 $ 6,551,085 $ 378,046,837
$ 3,081,982 $ 7114346 $ 55,846 $ 19,312 § 21,450,783
61,876,373 37,743,536 11,567,536 6,147,137 270,513,135
$ 64958355 $ 44857882 $ 11,623,382 $ 6166449 $ 291,963918
$ -8 -8 - 8 -3 -
17,193,594 5,818,793 14,478,742 228,448 115,973,744
264,675 - 27,643 50,105 4,190,078
(497,787) (6,314,797) (119,241) 106,083 (34,080,903)
$ 16,960,482 $ (496,004) $ 14,387,144 §$ 384,636 $ 86,082,919
$ 81,918,837 $ 44,361,878 $ 26,010,526 $ 6,551,085 $ 378,046,837
$ 3,920,149 $ 1,571,889 $ 680,247 $ 238,181 § 18,970,906
567,079 394,245 177,787 85,281 3,732,268
1,160,311 277,236 252,760 109,460 6,138,450
2,452,909 716,127 747,630 237,279 11,668,748
4,180,299 1,387,608 1,178,177 432,020 21,539,466
(260,150) 184,281 (497,930) (193,839) (2,568,560)
89 - - 8 191,619
(1,154,042) (680,286) (274,791) (11,149) (6,624,176)
(1,153,953) (680,286) (274,791) (11,141) (6,432,557)
(1,414,103) (496,005) (772,721) (204,980) (9,001,117)
- 1 15,364,094 - 15,364,625
(1,414,103) (496,004) 14,591,373 (204,980) 6,363,508
18,414,585 - (204,229) 589,616 79,512,903
(40,000) - - - 206,508
$ 16,960,482 $ (496,004) $ 14,387,144 $ 384,636 $ 86,082,919

Page 54



Note 10 — Related Party Transactions

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)

The tax credit program is the result of Federal legislation, which allows investors certain tax incentives
for investing in low-income housing. Investors also are allowed to deduct any losses passed through
to them from the partnerships. The Authority is allocated about .01 percent of all profits, losses, and
tax credits pursuant to the terms of the partnership or operating agreement. Under terms of the tax
code, the buildings must continue to serve the targeted population for 15 years. The Authority has the
option to purchase them at the expiration of this compliance period.

Typically, at the time of closing, the Authority will earn a developer’s fee for its role in bringing the
project to fruition. Developer fees are paid primarily from available cash flows and development
proceeds. Under the various partnership agreements, any outstanding developer fees are generally
required to be paid within 10 to 15 years of the project’s placed-in-service date and may accrue interest
on unpaid balances. Certain tax credit projects also incur a management fee and sometimes a
construction management fee owed to the general partner. These incurred fees and interest are
reflected in the Authority’s operating income and totaled $8.8 million in 2016.

The financing for the tax credit partnerships was structured as direct financing leases from the
Authority to the partnerships. Upon issuance of the bonds, the Authority purchases the projects. The
Authority retains ownership of the buildings, and leases them to the partnerships under terms of a long
term financing lease, which is treated as a sale for tax purposes. Payments from the Partnerships are
sufficient to pay the outstanding bonds, but the Authority remains contingently liable for their payment.
The debt interest expense and an offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the Authority’s
books and total $3,831,188 for the year.

Although the bonds are the primary source of funds for the purchase of the developments, other
funding is usually required. Lines of credit, both taxable and non-taxable, are secured by the Authority
to pay some of the acquisition costs and most of the rehabilitation costs. These lines are retired
primarily using proceeds from the sale of Low Income Housing Tax Credits to the limited partners
usually within two to three years of the partnership’s inception. The Authority also may receive grant
funds or other loans to assist in purchasing the properties and in preserving affordability within the
projects. Because of limitations posed by the Internal Revenue Service, all such funds are lent to the
partnerships. These advances are accounted for as part of the financing lease if the proceeds are
used for purchasing the property and are accounted for as notes receivable from the partnerships if
the proceeds are used for rehabilitating the property. A summary of the Authority’s long-term debt is
presented in Note 7. A summary of notes receivable and investments in direct financing leases with
the partnerships is presented in Note 5.

Corinthian TOD LLLP

Lease Agreement

On January 27, 2016, Corinthian TOD LLLP (“the Partnership”) entered into a financing lease
agreement with the Authority to lease the land, buildings, land improvements, and personal property,
comprising the Project. The Lease Agreement is for the period from January 2, 2016 through
December 31, 2115. The Lease Agreement is treated as a capital lease.

Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the base rent is ten dollars ($10) per year, payable on January 1
of each year commencing January 1, 2018.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 55



In addition to the annual base rent, the Partnership is required to make additional lease payments in
the total amount of $10,250,000. The total principal amount is payable in installments as follows: $100
upon execution of the Lease Agreement, $49,900 on or before January 31, 2016, $5,985,000 on or
before August 15, 2016 but no later than the date the rehabilitation is placed in service, and with the
remaining balance due and payable either prior to or concurrent with the Investor Limited Partner’s
Final Capital Contribution. The Financing Lease Payable bears interest at a compounding rate of
2.61%. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance and accrued interest on the Financing
Lease Payable were $3,399,752 and $22,183, respectively.

Developer Fee

On January 27, 2016, the Partnership entered into a development agreement with the Authority.
Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Authority will perform services in connection to the
development and rehabilitation of the project including additional duties and responsibilities within the
general scope of services. The developer fee is $2,470,921 and will be earned in accordance with
Section 1 of the Development Agreement.

Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan

On February 1, 2016, the Authority entered into a tax-exempt Non-Revolving Line of Credit Revenue
Note in the maximum principal amount of $5,500,000 with Bank of America. The proceeds of the Tax-
Exempt Note were loaned to the partnership by the Authority. The tax-exempt bridge loan bears
interest at a rate equal to 1.75% plus 70% of the LIBOR rate. The Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan is secured
by a Deed of Trust, as defined in the Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan Agreement. Interest-only payments are
made quarterly until its maturity on August 1, 2018. The Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan principal balance as
of December 31, 2016 was $3,334,647.

KCHA Subordinate Loan

On January 27, 2016 the partnership entered into a loan agreement with the Authority, in the maximum
principal amount of $6,500,000. The KCHA Subordinate Loan bears interest at 3.75%. The KCHA
Subordinate Loan matures on December 31, 2057. The KCHA Subordinate Loan is secured by the
Leasehold Deed of Trust, as defined in the KCHA Subordinate Loan Agreement. Payments of principal
and interest will be made from Net Cash Flow, as defined and in accordance with the Partnership
Agreement.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the KCHA Subordinate
Loan was $2,151,145 and $12,438, respectively.

Tax-Exempt Permanent Loan

On September 29, 2016, the partnership entered into a loan agreement with the Authority, in the
maximum principal amount of $7,000,000. The Tax-Exempt Permanent Loan bears interest at 4%.
The Tax-Exempt Permanent Loan is secured by Deed of Trust. Payments of principal and interest are
made on the first business day of each calendar month commencing on November 1, 2016 in level
principal and interest payments amortized over a 30-year period. The Tax-Exempt Permanent Loan
matures on September 1, 2036. The Tax-Exempt Permanent Loan principal balance as of December
31, 2016 was $6,956,095.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 56



Partnership management fee

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the Partnership will pay the Authority, an annual cumulative
partnership management fee in the amount of $6,250, increasing at 3% per annum. The Partnership
Management Fee will be paid commencing in 2016. The Partnership Management Fee is to
compensate the Authority for its services in connection with the oversight and management of the
Partnership’s business. As of December 31, 2016, Partnership Management Fee payable was $6,250.
For the period beginning December 12, 2015 (inception) and ending December 31, 2016, Partnership
Management Fee was $6,250.

Due to KCHA

The Authority advanced funds to the Partnership to pay certain development and operational costs.
Advances from the Authority do not bear interest and are to be reimbursed by operations. As of
December 31, 2016, the total amount due to the Authority for funds advanced to pay certain
development and operational costs was $158,472.

Eastbridge Apartments, LLC

Financing Lease

On March 3, 2009, Eastbridge Apartments, LLC (“the Company”) entered into a financing lease
agreement with the Authority to lease the buildings and other improvements constructed or to be
constructed thereon comprising the project. The lease agreement was amended on December 30,
2010 and February 9, 2011 (collectively, the “Lease Agreement”). The Lease Agreement is for the
period from March 3, 2009 (inception) through December 31, 2097. The Lease Agreement is treated
as a capital lease.

Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the base rent is one dollar ($1) per year. Eastbridge Apartments
agreed to make additional payments of up to $24,885,000 in installments tied to the possession of the
project. The required additional lease payments were paid in full in 2011.

Bonds Payable

In November 2008, the Authority as Managing Member entered into a tax-exempt revenue bond trust
indenture (the “Revenue Bonds”) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. The
aggregate principal amount of the Revenue Bonds is $7,120,000, with an interest rate equal to
approximately 3.50 to 5.625 percent per annum. The Revenue Bonds proceeds were loaned to
Eastbridge Apartments, LLC by the Authority through the Financing Agreement (the “Financing
Agreement”). The Financing Agreement is secured by a leasehold deed of trust encumbering
Eastbridge Apartments’ interests in the property and will be nonrecourse to the Company and its
members. Interest is payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1,
2009, to maturity or earlier redemption of the Revenue Bonds, as set forth in the trust indenture.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the Bonds Payable, net of unamortized
original issue discount was $6,696,065. Minimum future annual principal payments are as follows:

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 57



Year ending December 31,

2017 $ 75,000
2018 75,000
2019 80,000
2020 85,000
2021 90,000
Thereafter 6,385,000

Subtotal 6,790,000
Less: Bond issue discount; net (93,935)

Total $ 6,696,065

Loan

On March 9, 2009, the Company received a loan of $3,800,000 from the Authority to finance the
construction of the project. The loan accrues interest at an annual rate of 6.5 percent and is
compounded annually if interest is not paid in full. Interest is payable from Net Cash Flow, as defined
in the Operating Agreement, in the order set forth in the Operating Agreement. The principal and
accrued interests are due and payable on the maturity date of March 31, 2059. The KCHA Loan is
secured by a single leasehold deed of trust encumbering the Company's interests in the property and
will be nonrecourse to the Company and its members. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding
balance on the loan was $2,742,231.

Hope VI Loan

The Authority received a HOPE VI grant of $470,556 from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. On February 19, 2010, the Authority loaned the proceeds of the HOPE VI grant (the
“Hope VI Loan”) to the Company. The loan accrues interest at an annual rate of 6.5 percent and is
compounded if interest is not paid in full. Interest is payable from Net Cash Flow, as defined in the
Operating Agreement, in the order set forth in the Operating Agreement. The principal and accrued
interests are due and payable at maturity. The Hope VI Loan matures on March 31, 2059. The Hope
VI Loan is secured by a single leasehold deed of trust encumbering the Company's interests in the
property and is nonrecourse to the Company and its members.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance on the Hope VI Loan was $470,556.

Project-based rental assistance payment contract

In 2009, the Company entered into a project-based rental assistance payment contract (the “HAP
Contract”) with the Authority for a period of ten years. Pursuant to the HAP Contract, the Authority will
make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 31 units. The rental assistance payments
are included in rental income in the accompanying statement of operations.

Requlatory and Operating Agreement

On March 3, 2009, the Company entered into a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (the “R&0O
Agreement”) with the Authority. Pursuant to the R&0O Agreement, 13 units are obligated to be
maintained and operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with applicable public
housing requirements, as defined in the R&O Agreement. The Authority will make operating subsidy
payments to the Project up to the amount it receives from U.S. Department of Housing of Urban
Development with respect to the project, provided the units remain in compliance with applicable public
housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, operating subsidy payments of
$62,400 was received by the Company from the Authority.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 58



Egis Housing Limited Partnership

Lease Agreement

On May 25, 2007, Egis Housing Limited Partnership (“the Partnership”) entered into a financing lease
agreement with the Authority to lease the land, buildings, land improvements, and personal property,
comprising the Project. The Lease Agreement is for the period from May 25, 2007 through December
31, 2096. Pursuant to the guidance for accounting for leases, the Lease Agreement is treated as an
operating lease from May 25, 2007 to July 25, 2007, the date of HUD approval of the transfer and the
termination of a reversionary interest in favor of the Authority as Authority, and as a capital lease
thereafter.

Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the base rent is one dollar ($1) per year. The Partnership agrees
to make additional lease payments of $34,740,000 in installments (the “Lease Payable”).

The Partnership’s Lease Payable bears interest at a rate of 5.15 percent per annum, compounded
annually. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding Lease Payable balance was $15,196,619. The
principal and accrued interest is payable out of equity contribution and cash flows as defined in the
Operating Agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016, accrued interest on the Lease Payable
was $7,014,996. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest paid to the Authority on the Lease
Payable was $1,088,519.

Rehabilitation Loan A

During September 2007, the Partnership entered into a loan agreement in the maximum amount of
$3,768,000 (the “Rehabilitation Loan A”) with the Authority to finance the rehabilitation of the Project.
The Authority will make the loan in installments, with an initial installment in the amount of $2,800,000
and the subsequent installments made from the requests of the Partnership for documented project
costs approved by the Authority. The Rehabilitation Loan A bears no interest. Payments of principal
are to be made annually from cash flow as defined by the Partnership Agreement. The Rehabilitation
Loan A matures on December 31, 2057, and is secured by the project.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the Rehabilitation Loan A was
$2,800,000.

Rehabilitation Loan B

During September 2007, the Partnership entered into a loan agreement in the amount of $22,550,000
(the “Rehabilitation Loan B”) with the Authority to finance the rehabilitation of the Project. The
Rehabilitation Loan B bears no interest. Payments of principal are to be made annually from cash flow
as defined by the Partnership Agreement. The Rehabilitation Loan B matures on December 31, 2057
and is secured by the project.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the Rehabilitation Loan B was
$22,550,000.

Rehabilitation Loan C

During September 2007, the Partnership entered into a loan agreement in the amount of $9,250,000
(the “Rehabilitation Loan C”) with the Authority to finance the rehabilitation of the project. The
Rehabilitation Loan C bears no interest. Payments of principal are to be made annually from cash flow
as defined by the Partnership Agreement. The Rehabilitation Loan C matures on December 31, 2057
and is secured by the Project.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 59



As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the Rehabilitation Loan C was
$9,250,000.

Property management fee

Pursuant to the property management agreement, the Authority as General Partner will receive a
monthly fee for its management services. The monthly property management fee will be $40 for each
unit or such other amount as permitted by HUD and will be paid on the 15th of the month following the
month in which the services were rendered. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the property
management fee was $261,731.

Advances payable

The Authority paid expenses on behalf of the Partnership. The advances were unsecured and did not
bear interest. As of December 31, 2016, the balance payable to the Authority was $92,295.

In addition during 2016, the General Partner provided services related to unit upgrades and Energy
Performance Contract (“EPC”). As of December 31, 2016 the outstanding payable for unit upgrade
costs was $92,755 and the outstanding payable for EPC costs was $210,684.

Requlatory and Operating Agreement

On July 30, 2007, the Partnership entered a Regulatory and Operating Agreement with the Authority.
Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, all of the Project units shall be maintained and operated continuously
as public housing units in conformity with applicable public housing requirements, as defined in the
R&O Agreement. The Authority will make operating subsidy payments to the Project up to the amount
it receives from HUD with respect to the Project, provided the units remain in compliance with
applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Partnership
received operating subsidy of $2,443,608.

Fairwind Apartments LLLP

Hope VI Loan

The Authority received a HOPE VI grant of $3,600,000 from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. On March 30, 2012, the Authority loaned the proceeds of the HOPE VI grant (the “Hope
VI Loan”) to the Partnership. The loan accrues interest at an annual rate of 5.75 percent and is
compounded if interest is not paid in full. Payments of principal and interest shall be made annually
from cash flow available for such purpose in accordance with the Partnership agreement. The principal
and accrued interests are due and payable at maturity. The Hope VI Loan matures on March 30, 2062.
The Hope VI Loan is secured by a single leasehold deed of trust encumbering the Partnership's
interests in the property and is nonrecourse to the Partnership and its partners.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance on the Hope VI Loan was $3,600,000. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the Hope VI Loan was $207,000.

Property Management Fee

Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement, the Partnership will pay the Authority a property
management fee. The monthly Property Management Fee is equal to the greater of $43.72 per unit or
other amount as permitted by HUD. The Property Management Fee is to compensate the General
Partner for property management services provided to the project, including ensuring its compliance
with applicable affordability requirements. For the year ended, December 31, 2016 Property
Management Fee was $53,575.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 60



Advances payable

The Authority paid expenses on behalf of the Partnership. The advances were unsecured and did not
bear interest. As of December 31, 2016, the balance payable to the Authority was $18,914.

Requlatory and Operating Agreement

On March 30, 2012, the Partnership entered a Regulatory and Operating Agreement with the Authority.
Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, all of the Project units shall be maintained and operated continuously
as public housing units in conformity with applicable public housing requirements, as defined in the
R&O Agreement. The Authority will make operating subsidy payments to the Project up to the amount
it receives from HUD with respect to the Project, provided the units remain in compliance with
applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Partnership
received operating subsidy of $362,004.

Green River Homes LLC

Financing lease

During June 2004, Green River Homes LLC (“the Company”) entered into a $3,000,000 financing
lease (the “Financing Lease”) with the Authority to acquire, develop, and rehabilitate the project for its
use as a low income housing project. Interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance of $3,000,000 at an
interest rate equal to 4.65 percent per annum, compounded annually. Within 90 days following the
end of each calendar year commencing on December 31, 2004 through December 31, 2019, the
Company shall make interest only payments from Available Cash Flow, if any, as defined by the
Operating Agreement and in the order set forth in the Operating Agreement. Within 90 days following
the end of each calendar year commencing on December 31, 2020 through December 31, 2044,
payments of principal and interest in the amount sufficient to amortize the remaining principal and
interest balance are due and payable. Within 90 days following the end of each calendar year
commencing December 31, 2044, through the maturity date the Company shall make a minimum rent
payment in the amount of $100. The maturity date on the Financing Lease is June 1, 2079. As of
December 31, 2016 the outstanding principal balance on the Financing Lease was $3,000,000.

Weatherization note

During 2005 the Company entered into a $126,742 Weatherization Loan agreement with the Authority.
The note bears interest at the rate of 4.35 percent compounded annually. Payments of principal and
interest commence on July 31, 2020 and are due in full on July 31, 2045. As of December 31, 2016
the outstanding principal balance on the note was $126,742.

Master loan and regulatory agreement

During June 2004 the Company entered into a master loan and regulatory agreement regarding the
subordinate loans (the “Master Loan Agreement”) with the Authority. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust on the project. Pursuant to the terms of the Master Loan Agreement, interest accrues on the Term
Loan at a rate equal to 4.65 percent per annum, compounded annually. Within ninety days following
the end of the each calendar year commencing on December 31, 2005, the Company shall make a
payment within 90 days of year-end of principal and accrued interest from Cash Flow, if any, as defined
by the Operating Agreement and in the order set forth in the Operating Agreement. The balance of the
Term Loan is due on or before December 31, 2055. As of December 31, 2016 the Company had drawn
$32,714 on the Term Loan.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 61



Advances payable to the Authority

As of December 31, 2016, advances payable to the Authority totaled $16,878. The Authority
periodically advances to the Company to finance various operating and development costs. The
advances do not bear interest and are unsecured.

Property management fee

During June 2004 the Company and the Authority entered into a Property Management Agreement
(the “Property Management Agreement”). Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement the
Authority is entitled to an annual management fee equal to 7 percent of the gross revenues received,
as defined in the Property Management Agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Company’s property management fee expense was $45,764.

Green River Homes 2 LLC
KCHA Loan 1

On December 29, 2011, the Authority issued tax-exempt bonds in the amount of $9,500,000 (the
“KCHA Loan 1”) and loaned the proceeds to the Company. The KCHA Loan 1 bears simple interest
rate equal to 0.6 percent per annum with a maturity date of January 1, 2067. The KCHA Loan 1 is not
secured by the property. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal on the KCHA Loan 1
was $9,500,000.

KCHA Loan 2

On December 29, 2011, the Authority loaned $3,500,000 (the “KCHA Loan 2”) to the Company. The
KCHA Loan 2 bears simple interest rate equal 0.6 percent per annum with a maturity date of January
1, 2067. The KCHA Loan 2 is not secured by the property. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding
principal on the KCHA Loan 2 was $2,610,795.

Property management fee

On May 1, 2012 the Company entered into a property management agreement with the Authority (the
“Property Management Agreement”). Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement, the Company
will pay the Authority for its management services. The fee will be paid by the 15th of the month
following the month in which the services were rendered. The monthly fee will be the greater of 7
percent of collected rents. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the property management fee was
$50,867.

Property purchase option

The Authority has an option to purchase the project at the end of the low-income housing tax
compliance period at a price specified in the Operating Agreement. In order to exercise this option,
the Authority must meet certain requirements outlined in the Operating Agreement.

Housing assistance subsidy

On February 1, 2013, the Company entered into a Project-based Rental Assistance Contract (the
“Assistance Contract”) with the Authority. Under the terms of the contract, the Authority will provide
rental assistance on behalf of all 59 units at the property. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
rental assistance of $542,340 was received from the Managing Member.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 62



Due to KCHA

The Authority pays certain miscellaneous expenses on behalf of the Company. The advances bear no
interest and are repayable on demand. The advances are not secured. As of December 31, 2016,
$19,439 was due to the Authority.

KCHA — Southwood Square Limited Partnership

Financing lease

In October 2001, KCHA — Southwood Square (“the Partnership”) entered into a capital lease
agreement (the “Financing Lease”) with the Authority to lease the land, building and improvements,
and personal property. The Financing Lease period is from October 2001 through December 2099.
The Partnership has an option to purchase the property at any time.

Pursuant to the Financing Lease and the Loan and Regulatory Agreement, the Partnership is required
to pay in full all sources of funds obtained by the Authority for the purpose of financing the acquisition
and rehabilitation of the Project.

Revenue Bonds

During October 2001, the Authority issued revenue bonds on behalf of the Partnership in an original
principal amount of $5,000,000 (the “Revenue Bonds”) to finance the acquisition and rehabilitation of
the Project. $4,115,000 of the Revenue Bonds were issued at a discount, priced to yield varying rates
of interest from 6.2 percent to 6.3 percent, with a total original issuance discount of $52,416. The
Revenue Bonds accrue interest, beginning on October 1, 2001, at varying rates from 3.25 percent per
annum to 6.20 percent per annum. The terms of the Revenue Bonds call for annual principal payments
on October 1 of each year made in increasing amounts over the term of the bonds, and for semiannual
interest payments on April 1 and October 1 of each year. The Revenue Bonds mature on October 1,
2031. The Revenue Bonds are secured by a deed of trust on the Partnership’s interest in the project,
certain partnership trust accounts and a noncurrent debt security.

As of December 31, 2016, the principal balance, net of unamortized original issuance discount was
$3,459,144. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense was $221,635.

Notes Payable

The Partnership secured two notes payable (the “Notes Payable”) from the Authority to finance the
acquisition and rehabilitation of the Project. The first note (the “First Note”) is in the amount of
$380,000, and bears simple interest at a rate of 1 percent per annum. The First Note repayment terms
call for interest only payments for the first 15 years, and payment of principal and interest over the
remaining 35 years of the loan. The First Note matures in January 2052. As of December 31, 2016,
the principal balance on the First Note was $380,000 and accrued interest payable was $950. For the
year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense was $3,800.

The second loan from the Authority (the “Second Note”) is in the amount of $575,000 and bears
interest at a rate of 1 percent per annum, compounded annually. The Second Note requires principal
and interest payments to commence in the 16th year of the note term. The Second Note matures in
January 2052. As of December 31, 2016, the principal balance on the Second Note was $575,000.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense was $6,610.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 63



Minimum revenue bond and note payable payments

Minimum future lease payments on the Revenue Bonds and the Notes Payable pursuant to the
Financing Lease and the Loan and Regulatory Agreement are as follows:

Revenue Bonds Notes Payable Total
Year Ending December 31,

2017 $ 3652230 $ 3,800 $ 369,030
2018 366,080 32,621 398,701
2019 361,320 32,621 393,941
2020 361,255 32,621 393,876
2021 365,580 32,621 398,201
Thereafter 3,626,150 1,145,321 4,771,471

Total 5,445,615 1,279,605 6,725,220
Less: Interest (1,960,615) (232,048) (2,192,663)
Less: Bond Issue Discount (25,856) - (25,856)

Total minimum future lease payments $ 3,459,144 $§ 1,047,557 $4,506,701

Partnership Management Fee

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, beginning in 2002 the Authority is entitled to a cumulative
annual partnership management fee in the amount of $20,000, which increases at a rate of 3 percent
per annum thereafter. Payments are made from available cash flow, as defined in the partnership
agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016 partnership management fee expense was
$30,252.

Nia Apartments LLC

Financing Lease

In March 2007, Nia Apartments LLC (“the Company”) entered into a capital lease agreement (the
“Financing Lease”) with the Authority for the land, building and improvements, and personal property.
The Financing Lease is for the period from March 15, 2007 through December 31, 2096. The Financing
Lease is secured by the property. The Financing Lease is treated as a capital lease. Pursuant to the
Financing Lease, the Company is required to pay rent in the amount of $1 per annum commencing in
January 2008. In addition, the Company is responsible for all cost related to construction of the
property.

Revenue Bonds

During December 2006, the Authority entered into tax-exempt revenue bond trust indenture (the
“Revenue Bonds”) with U.S. Bank National Association. The aggregate principal amount of the
Revenue Bonds is $3,000,000, with a simple interest ranging from 4.45 percent to 4.75 percent per
annum. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2016 was 4.71 percent per annum. The
Revenue Bonds are secured by the general revenue of the Authority and bond proceeds were loaned
to the Company by the Authority through the Financing Agreement. Interest is payable on each
January 1 and July 1 through the later of the maturity date or redemption as set forth in the trust
indenture of the Revenue Bonds. Interest payments commenced on July 1, 2007. The maturity date
is January 1, 2037.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance on the Revenue Bonds was $2,755,000. For the
year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the Revenue Bonds was $130,038.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 64



Future minimum principal payments over each of the next five years and thereafter are due as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2017 $ 40,000
2018 45,000
2019 45,000
2020 45,000
2021 50,000
Thereafter 2,530,000

Total $ 2,755,000

Note Payable

The Company obtained a note payable (the “Note Payable”) from the Authority to finance the
construction of the project. The Note Payable is in the amount of $328,000 and bears compounded
interest at the greater of 4.75 percent or the long term applicable federal rate in effect as of the day of
this loan, which was 4.60 percent. The Note Payable requires principal and interest payments to be
deferred until the maturity date of March 15, 2058. The Note Payable is secured by the Project. As of
December 31, 2016, the principal balance on the Note Payable was $328,000. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, interest expense was $22,034.

HOPE VI Loan

The Authority received a HOPE VI grant of $3,200,000 from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development and loaned the proceeds of the HOPE VI grant (the “HOPE VI Loan”) to the Company
through a Master Loan Agreement dated March 15, 2007. The Hope VI Loan bears compounded
interest at a rate of 4.60 percent per annum. Interest is payable from Cash Flow, as defined in the
Operating Agreement, in the order set forth in the Operating Agreement. The principal and accrued
interest is to be payable at the end of the loan term at March 1, 2059. The HOPE VI Loan is secured
by the project. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance on the HOPE VI Loan was
$3,200,000. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the HOPE VI Loan was
$202,262.

Company Management Fee

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Authority is entitled to an annual company management
fee in the amount of $10,000 increasing annually by 3 percent. Payments are to be made from
available cash flow, as defined in the Operating Agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
the Company Management Fee was $12,299.

Project-based rental assistance payment contract

In 2007, the Company entered a project-based rental assistance payment contract (the “HAP
Contract”) with the Authority for an initial minimum term of 10 years. Pursuant to the HAP Contract,
the Authority will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 41 units. The rental
assistance payments are included in rental income in the accompanying statement of operations.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 65



Regulatory and Operating Agreement

In 2007 the Company entered into a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (the “R&0 Agreement”)
with the Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, 40 of the total 82 units will be maintained and
operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with Applicable Public Housing
requirements, as defined in the R&O Agreement. The Authority will make operating subsidy payments
to the project up to the amount it receives from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development with respect to the project, provided the 40 units remain in compliance with Applicable
Public Housing Requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, operating subsidy payments
of $134,400 were received each year from the Authority.

Salmon Creek Housing LLC

Bonds Payable

During March 2008, the Authority as Managing Member entered into tax-exempt revenue bond trust
indenture (the “Revenue Bond”) with U.S. Bank National Association. The aggregate principal amount
of the Revenue Bond is $4,250,000. The Revenue Bond is secured by the general revenue of the
Authority. The Revenue Bonds proceeds were loaned to Salmon Creek Housing LLC (“the Company”)
by the Authority (the “Bonds Payable”) through the Financing Agreement (the “Financing Agreement”).
The Financing Agreement is secured by the project. The Bonds Payable bears interest at a variable
rate and interest is payable on the first business day of each month. Interest was subsequently fixed
at 3.988 percent through an interest rate swap agreement. The Bonds Payable matures on December
1, 2047. The Company is required to reimburse the Authority for all out of pocket expenses in
connection with the Bonds Payable. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the were no
reimbursements made to the Authority.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance on the Bonds Payable was $3,940,000. For the
year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the Bonds Payable was $159,105.

Future minimum principal payment requirements over the next five years are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2017 $ 60,000
2018 60,000
2019 65,000
2020 65,000
2021 70,000
Thereafter 3,620,000

Total $ 3,940,000

Note payable

The Company obtained a note payable (the “Note Payable”) dated March 26, 2008, from the Authority
to finance the construction of the project. The Note Payable is in the amount up to $5,650,000 and
bears interest at the greater of the Applicable Federal Rate at the time the proceeds of the Note
Payable are disbursed to the Company or 5.75 percent compounded annually. The Note Payable
matures on December 31, 2058. The Note Payable is payable from Net Cash Flow, as defined in the
Operating Agreement, and is secured by the project. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding
principal balance on the Note Payable was $2,530,000. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
interest expense was $203,099.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 66



HOPE VI Loan

The Authority received a HOPE VI grant of $1,045,595 from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development and loaned the proceeds of the HOPE VI grant (the “HOPE VI Loan”) to the Company.
The HOPE VI Loan bears interest at the greater of the Applicable Federal Rate or 5.75 percent
compounded annually. Interest is payable from Net Cash Flow, as defined in the Operating
Agreement, and the principal and accrued interest is due and payable at the end of the loan term,
December 31, 2058. The HOPE VI Loan is secured by the Project. As of December 31, 2016, the
outstanding principal balance on the HOPE VI Loan was $1,045,595. For the year ended December
31, 2016, interest expense on the HOPE VI Loan was $73,562.

Company Management Fee

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Authority is entitled to an annual company management
fee in the amount of $20,000 increasing annually by 3 percent. Payments are to be made from
available cash flow, as defined in the Operating Agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
the Company Management Fee was $24,597.

Project-based rental assistance payment contract

On July 15, 2009, the Company entered into a project-based rental assistance payment contract (the
HAP Contract) with the Authority for a period of ten years. Pursuant to the HAP Contract, the Authority
will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for nine units, which has been included in
rental income on the accompanying statement of operations.

Requlatory and Operating Agreement

In 2008, the Company entered a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (the “R&0O Agreement”) with
the Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, 50 of the total 88 units are to be maintained and
operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with Applicable Public Housing
Requirements, as defined in the R&O Agreement. The Authority will make operating subsidy payments
to the project up to the amount it receives from HUD with respect to the project, provided the 50 units
remain in compliance with Applicable Public Housing Requirements. For the year ended December
31, 2016, operating subsidy payments of $177,600 was received from the Authority.

Seola Crossing LLC

Master Loan Agreement

On March 23, 2006, the Company entered into a master loan agreement with the Authority (the “Master
Loan Agreement”). Pursuant to the Master Loan Agreement, the Authority will issue revenue bonds
and loan the bond proceeds and a portion of its HOPE VI grant to the Company.

Revenue Bond

During April 2006, the Authority entered into taxable revenue bond trust indenture (the “Revenue
Bond”) with U.S. Bank National Association. The aggregate principal amount of the Revenue Bond is
$6,700,000, with an interest equal to 6.375 percent per annum. The Revenue Bond is secured by the
project and bond proceeds are loaned to the Company through the Master Loan Agreement. Interest
is payable semiannually on each June 30 and December 31, commencing on December 31, 2006.
Annual principal payments are required in increasing amounts beginning December 31, 2008.
Pursuant to the Master Loan Agreement, the Company is required to reimburse the Authority for all
out of pocket expenses in connection with the loan. The Revenue Bond matures on December 31,
2046.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 67



As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the Revenue Bond was $6,480,000.
As of December 31, 2016, accrued interest on the Revenue Bond was $206,550. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, interest expense on the Revenue Bond was $413,110.

Minimum future principal payments are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2017 $ 75,000
2018 40,000
2019 45,000
2020 45,000
2021 50,000
Thereafter 6,225,000

Total $ 6,480,000

Note payable

The Company secured a note payable (the “Note Payable”) from the Authority to finance the
acquisition and construction of the project. The Note Payable is in the amount of $250,000 and bears
interest at the greater of 4.75 percent compounded annually or the long term applicable federal rate
as of the day of the loan. As of the day of the loan, the long term applicable federal rate was 5.31
percent.

The Note Payable requires principal and interest payments to be deferred until the maturity date of
December 2058. The Note Payable is secured by the project. As of December 31, 2016, the principal
balance on the Note Payable was $250,000. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense
was $20,438.

HOPE VI loan

The Authority received a HOPE VI grant from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Pursuant to the Master Loan Agreement, the Authority will loan up to $7,925,000 of the proceeds of
the HOPE VI grant (the “HOPE VI Loan”) to the Company. The loan bears compound interest at the
long term applicable federal rate as of the date of each loan draw. Interest rates range from 5.02
percent to 5.36 percent. Interest is payable from cash flow, and the principal and accrued interest are
due and payable at the end of the loan term, December 31, 2058. The HOPE VI Loan is secured by
the project. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance was $7,925,000. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the HOPE VI Loan was $570,874.

Company Management Fee

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Authority is entitled to an annual company management
fee in the amount of $7,500 increasing annually by 3 percent. Payments are to be made from available
cash flow, as defined in the Operating Agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016, was
$9,500.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 68



Project-based rental assistance payment contract

In 2006, the Company entered a project-based rental assistance payment contract (the “HAP

Contract”) with the Authority. Pursuant to the HAP Contract, the Authority will make temporary rental
assistance payments on behalf of residents for 71 units and permanent payments for 39 units. As of
December 31, 2016, there were 27 units receiving temporary rental assistance.

Requlatory and operating agreement

On March 23, 2006, the Company entered a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (the “R&O
Agreement”) with the Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, 77 of the total 187 units are obligated
to be maintained and operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with applicable
public housing requirements, as defined in the R&0O Agreement. The Authority will make operating
subsidy payments to the project up to the amount it receives from HUD with respect to the project,
provided the 77 units remain in compliance with applicable public housing requirements. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, operating subsidy payments of $336,409 were received from the Authority.

Sixth Place Apartments LLLP

Lease Agreement

On June 22, 2010, Sixth Place Apartments LLLP (“the Partnership”) entered into a financing lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with the Authority to lease buildings and other improvements
comprising the project. The Lease Agreement is for the period from January 29, 2010 through
December 31, 2098. The Lease Agreement is treated as a capital lease.

Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the base rent is one dollar ($1) per year, payable on January 1 of
each year commencing January 1, 2011. In addition, the Partnership is responsible for all cost related
to constructing the project.

KCHA First Loan and KCHA Second Loan

The Authority received a grant from the Department of Housing and Urban Development. On June 22,
2010, the Authority entered into a master loan agreement (the “Master Loan Agreement”) with the
Partnership. Pursuant to the Master Loan Agreement, the Authority made two loans (the “KCHA First
Loan” and the “KCHA Second Loan”) to the Partnership in an amount not to exceed $300,000 and
$6,679,129, respectively. The KCHA First Loan and the KCHA Second Loan are evidenced by two
promissory notes and are secured by a single leasehold deed of trust. The KCHA First Loan accrues
interest at 4.0 percent compounded annually. The KCHA First Loan is payable from the available Cash
Flow, as defined in the Partnership Agreement. The KCHA First Loan matures on June 22, 2060. The
KCHA Second Loan accrues no interest and the outstanding principal is due on June 22, 2060.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the KCHA First Loan was $113,525.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the KCHA First Loan was $5,216. As of
December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance on the KCHA Second Loan was $6,679,129.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 69



Regulatory and Operating Agreement

On June 22, 2010, the Partnership entered into a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (“R&O
Agreement”) with the Authority. Pursuant to the R&0O Agreement, all of the project units are obligated
to be maintained and operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with applicable
public housing requirements, as defined in the R&0O Agreement. The Authority will make operating
subsidy payments to the project up to the amount it receives from U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development with respect to the project, provided the units remain in compliance with
applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, operating subsidy
payments of $96,000 was received from the Authority.

Spiritwood Manor LLLP

Lease agreement

On January 27, 2016, the Partnership entered into a financing lease agreement with the Authority to
lease land, buildings, and other improvements comprising the Project. The Lease Agreement is for
the period from January 27, 2016 through December 31, 2115. The Lease Agreement is treated as a
capital lease. The assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the base rent is ten dollars ($10) per year, payable on January 1 of each year commencing
January 1, 2018.

In addition to the annual base rent, the Partnership is required to make additional lease payment in
the total amount of $26,530,000. The total principal amount is payable in installments as follows: $100
upon execution of the Lease Agreement, $34,900 upon execution of the Lease Agreement on or before
February 15, 2016, $11,900,000 on or before October 15, 2016 but no later than the date the
rehabilitation is placed in service, and with the remaining balance (the “Financing Lease Payable”) due
and payable no later than December 31, 2056. The Financing Lease Payable bears interest at a
compounding rate of 3.35%. The Financing Lease Payable will be paid from Net Cash Flow, as
defined and in accordance with the terms of the Partnership Agreement. As of December 31, 2016,
the outstanding balance and accrued interest on the Financing Lease Payable were $13,495,000 and
$79,688, respectively.

Developer fee

On January 27, 2016, the Partnership entered into a development agreement with the Authority.
Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Developer will perform services in connection to the
development and rehabilitation of the Project including additional duties and responsibilities within the
general scope of services. The developer fee is $5,801,986 and will be earned in accordance with
Section 1 of the Development Agreement. As of December 31, 2016, the total developer fee has been
earned.

Payment of the developer fee will be made from the Final Capital Contribution, as defined in the
Partnership Agreement. Any unpaid developer fee will be paid from Net Cash Flow, as defined and
in accordance with the terms of the Partnership Agreement. The unpaid developer fee bears no
interest. Any unpaid developer fee will be paid in full by the end of the tax credit compliance period.
As of December 31, 2016, developer fee payable was $5,801,986.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 70



Tax-exempt bridge loan

On January 27, 2016, the Authority entered into a tax-exempt Non-Revolving Line of Credit Revenue
Note, 2016 in the amount of $24,000,000 with Bank of America, N.A. The proceeds of the Tax-Exempt
Note were loaned to the Partnership by the Authority. The Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan bears interest at
a rate equal to 1.75% plus 70% of the LIBOR Rate. The Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan is secured by a
Deed of Trust, as defined in the Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan Agreement. Interest-only payments are
made quarterly until its maturity on August 1, 2018.

As of December 31, 2016, accrued interest was $79,510. For the period beginning December 16,
2015 (inception) and ending December 31, 2016, interest on the Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan was
$148,806. As of December 31, 2016 the outstanding principal of the Tax-Exempt Bridge Loan was
$23,972,793.

KCHA subordinate loan

On January 27, 2016, the Partnership entered into a loan agreement with the Authority, in the
maximum principal amount of $13,000,000. The KCHA Subordinate Loan bears interest at 3.5%. The
KCHA Subordinate Loan matures on December 31, 2057. The KCHA Subordinate Loan is secured
by the Leasehold Deed of Trust, as defined in the KCHA Subordinate Loan Agreement. Payments of
principal and interest will be made from Net Cash Flow, as defined and in accordance with the terms
of the Partnership Agreement.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the KCHA Subordinate
Loan was $275,743 and $6,524, respectively.

Property management fee

Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement, the Partnership will pay the Authority a property
management fee. The monthly Property Management Fee is equal to 5% of Gross Collections, as
defined in the Property Management Agreement. The Property Management Fee is to compensate
the Authority for property management services provided to the Project, including ensuring its
compliance with applicable affordability requirements. As of December 31, 2016, Property
Management Fee payable was $7,876. For the period beginning December 16, 2015 (inception) and
ending December 31, 2016, Property Management Fee was $78,864.

Partnership management fee

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the Partnership will pay the Authority, an annual cumulative
partnership management fee in the amount of $5,000, increasing at 3% per annum. The Partnership
Management Fee will be paid commencing in 2016. The Partnership Management Fee is to
compensate the Authority for its services in connection with the oversight and management of the
Partnership’s business. As of December 31, 2016, Partnership Management Fee payable was $5,000.
For the period beginning December 16, 2015 (inception) and ending December 31, 2016, Partnership
Management Fee was $5,000.

Due to KCHA

The Authority advanced funds to the Partnership to pay certain development and operational costs.
Advances from the Authority do not bear interest and are to be reimbursed by operations. As of
December 31, 2016, the total amount due to the Authority for funds advanced to pay certain
development and operational costs was $453,953.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 71



Housing assistance subsidy

On January 27, 2016, the Partnership executed an Assignment, Assumption and Consent Agreement
with the Authority related to the Housing Assistance Payments Contract between King County Housing
Authority and Spiritwood Manor which was originally dated February 1, 2010 for a term of 10 years.
Under the terms of the contract, the Authority will provide rental assistance on behalf of all 128 units
at the property. For the period beginning December 16, 2015 (inception) and ending December 31,
2016, rental assistance of $1,187,931 was received from the Authority and is included in rental
revenue on the accompanying statement of operations.

Soosette Creek LLC

Lease Agreement

On April 30, 2008, Soosette Creek LLC (“the Company”) entered into a financing lease agreement
(the “Lease Agreement”) with the Authority to lease the land, building, land improvements, off-site
work, and personal property, constructed or to be constructed thereon, comprising the project. The
Lease Agreement is for the period from April 30, 2008 through December 31, 2097. Pursuant to the
Lease Agreement, the base rent is one dollar ($1) per year. The Company agrees to make additional
payments of up to $24,675,000 in installments equal to $2,500,000 on or before April 30, 2008, and
the remaining balance is payable annually from the net cash flow no later than April 1, 2039. As of
December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance was $19,019,481. As of December 31, 2016,
accrued interest on the lease payable to the Authority was $636,202. The Lease bears simple interest
at a rate of 4.46 percent per annum, compounded annually. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
interest expense on the lease liability was $867,552.

Loan A

During August 2008, the Authority entered into tax-exempt revenue bond trust indenture (Housing
Authority of the County of King, Revenue Bonds, 2008 Birch Creek Apartments Project) (the “Revenue
Bonds”) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. The proceeds of the Revenue Bonds
were loaned by the Authority to the Company (“Loan A”). Loan A is secured by the project. The
principal amount of Loan A is $37,500,000. Loan A bears simple interest on the unpaid principal
balance at a rate equal to 0.65 percent per annum. Payments are made from available cash flow, as
set forth in the Operating Agreement. Loan A was issued at a discount of $36,178. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, amortization of the issuance discount included in interest expense was $724. All
unpaid principal and accrued interest on Loan A is due and payable on September 1, 2058. As of
December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance, net of unamortized original issuance discount, was
$37,469,855. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on Loan A was $243,750.

Loan B

During 2009, the Company entered into a master loan agreement from the Authority (“Loan B”) in the
maximum amount of $6,000,000 for a term not to exceed 55 years. Loan B accrues simple interest at
0.65 percent per annum. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance was $3,387,037. For the
year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on Loan B was $22,016.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 72



DOC Loan

During 2009, the Authority entered into a master loan agreement (“DOC Loan”) with the State of
Washington in the amount of $2,000,000. The Authority then loaned the amount to the Company. The
DOC Loan accrues simple interest at 1.00 percent per annum, commencing July 1, 2010 and
continuing through June 30, 2045, at which point interest is accrued at 1.00 percent, compounded
annually through June 30, 2050. Payments of simple interest in the amount of $20,000 are due and
payable beginning June 30, 2011 and each June 30" thereafter through June 30, 2045. Annual
payments in the amount of $412,079.60 are due and payable beginning June 30, 2046, and each June
30 thereafter through June 30, 2050. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance was
$2,000,000. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest expense on the DOC Loan was $20,000.

Property management fee

Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement, the Company will pay the Authority for its
management services. The fee will be paid by the 15th of the month following the month in which the
services were rendered. Pursuant to the first amendment to the property management agreement
effective January 1, 2013, the monthly property management fee will be the greater of 4% of gross
collections, as defined in the property management agreement, or $8,000. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, the property management fee was $83,015.

HAP contract

In 2008, the Company entered a project-based rental assistance payment contract (“HAP Contract”)
with the Authority. Pursuant to the HAP Contract, the Authority will make rental assistance payments
on behalf of residents for up to 262 units. The contract was executed in stages as the units were
renovated and occupied by eligible households. The term of the HAP Contract is ten (10) years from
the date of the first stage. The HAP Contract is renewable subject to the availability of sufficient
appropriated federal funds and program requirement. As of December 31, 2016, 262 units were under
contract. For the year ended December 31, 2016, payments received under the HAP Contract were
$2,794,314.

Due to Managing Member

The Authority as Managing Member pays certain miscellaneous expenses on behalf of the Company.
The advances bear no interest and are repayable on demand. The advances are not secured. As of
December 31, 2016, due to the Authority was $83,015.

Vantage Point Apartments LLC

Lease agreement

On June 2, 2014, the Vantage Point Apartments (“the Company”) entered into a financing lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with the Managing Member to lease land, buildings, and other
improvements comprising the project. The Lease Agreement is for the period from June 2, 2014
through December 31, 2113. The Lease Agreement is treated as a capital lease. The assets and
liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease
payments or the fair market value of the asset. The assets are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the base rent is ten dollars ($10) per year, payable on January
1 of each year commencing January 1, 2018.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 73



In addition to the annual base rent, the Company is required to make an additional lease payment in
the total amount of $1,630,000. The Company made a payment of $163,000 upon the commencement
of the Lease Agreement with the remaining balance of $1,467,000 (the “Financing Lease Payable”)
due and payable no later than May 31, 2017. The Financing Lease Payable bears interest at a
compounding rate of 0.32%, which is the short-term Applicable Federal Rate as of the date of the
Lease Agreement, commencing on the lease term start date. As of December 31, 2016, the
outstanding balance and accrued interest on the Financing Lease were fully paid.

Bridge Loan
On September 19, 2014, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement with King County Housing

Authority (the Managing Member), in the maximum principal amount of $20,500,000 (the “Bridge
Loan”). The Bridge Loan bears interest at a compounding fixed rate of 0.7%. The Bridge Loan matured
on September 19, 2016. The Bridge Loan was repaid from the proceeds of the Second Capital
Contribution and Master Loan in accordance with the terms of the Operating Agreement.

Master loans

On September 19, 2014, the Company entered into a master loan agreement (the “Master Loan
Agreement”) with the Managing Member. The Master Loan Agreement consists of four loans (“Master
Loans”): Master Loan A in the amount of $5,000,000 bearing 3.75% annual interest; Master Loan B in
the amount of $3,000,000 bearing 0.1% annual interest; Master Loan C in the amount of $2,000,000
bearing 0.1% annual interest; and Master Loan D in the amount of up to $2,500,000 bearing 0.1%
annual interest. The Master Loans will be repaid from Net Cash Flow, as defined and in accordance
with the Operating Agreement.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Master Loan A was
$5,000,000 and $404,456, respectively. For the period beginning March 7, 2013 (inception) and
ending December 31, 2016, interest on the Master Loan A was $195,342.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Master Loan B was
$3,000,000 and $1,500, respectively. For the period beginning March 7, 2013 (inception) and
ending December 31, 2016, interest on the Master Loan A was $1,500.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Master Loan C was
$2,000,000 and $1,000, respectively. For the period beginning March 7, 2013 (inception) and
ending December 31, 2016, interest on the Master Loan A was $1,000.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Master Loan D was
$1,160,000 and $580, respectively. For the period beginning March 7, 2013 (inception) and
ending December 31, 2016, interest on the Master Loan A was $580.

Property management fee

Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement, the Company will pay the Authority for its
management services. The monthly property management fee is equal to the greater of $49.47 per
unit or other amount as permitted by HUD. The property management fee is to compensate the
Authority for property management services provided to the project, including ensuring compliance
with applicable affordability requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the property
management fee was $45,710.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 74



Due to KCHA

The Authority advanced funds to the Company to pay certain operational costs. Advances from the
Managing Member do not bear interest and are to be reimbursed by operations. As of December 31,
2016, the total amount due to the Managing Member was $38,867.

Regulatory and Operating Agreement

On December 1, 2016, the Company entered a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (“R&O
Agreement”) with the Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, all of the Project units

will be maintained and operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with Applicable
Public Housing Requirements, as defined in the R&O Agreement. The Managing Member will make
operating subsidy payments (the “Operating Subsidy”) to the project up to the amount it receives
from HUD with respect to the project, provided the units remain in compliance with Applicable

Public Housing Requirements. For the period ending December 31, 2016, Operating Subsidy of
$459,000 was received from the Authority.

Zephyr Apartments LLLP

Lease Agreement

On January 29, 2010, Zephyr Apartments LLLP (“the Partnership”) entered into a financing lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with the Authority to lease buildings and other improvements
comprising the project. The Lease Agreement is for the period from January 29, 2010 through
December 31, 2098. The Lease Agreement is treated as a capital lease.

Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the base rent is one dollar ($1) per year. In addition, the Partnership
is responsible for all cost related to constructing the Project.

HOPE VI Funds

The Authority received a HOPE VI grant in the amount of $20,000,000 from the Department of Housing
and Urban Development. On January 29, 2010, the Authority entered into a master loan agreement
(the “Master Loan Agreement”) with the Partnership. Pursuant to the Master Loan Agreement, the
Authority made two loans (the “KCHA Second Loan” and the “KCHA Third Loan”) to the Partnership
in an amount not to exceed $5,300,000 and $500,000, respectively. The KCHA Second Loan and the
KCHA Third Loan mature on January 31, 2050 and are secured by a single leasehold deed of trust.
The KCHA Second Loan and the KCHA Third Loan are evidenced by two promissory notes and accrue
interest at 0.2 percent annually. Interest is paid from available cash flow, as defined in the Partnership
Agreement.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance and accrued interest on the KCHA
Second Loan was $5,300,000 and $56,494, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
interest expense on the KCHA Second Loan was $10,600.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance and accrued interest on the KCHA Third
Loan was $275,000 and $2,481, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2016, interest
expense on the KCHA Third Loan was $585.

Property management fee

Pursuant to the Property Management Agreement, the Company will pay the Authority for its
management services. The monthly property management fee will be the lesser of the fees offered by
non-affiliated persons of the Partnership which are competitive in price and terms or 5% of gross
revenues, as defined in the partnership agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the
property management fee was $11,893.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 75



Regulatory and Operating Agreement

On January 29, 2010, the Partnership entered a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (“R&O
Agreement”) with the Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement, all of the project units shall be
maintained and operated continuously as public housing units in accordance with applicable public
housing requirements, as defined in the R&O Agreement. The Authority will make operating subsidy
payments to the project up to the amount it receives from HUD with respect to the project, provided
the units remain in compliance with applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, operating subsidy payments of $126,000 was received from the Authority.

Note 11 — Supplemental Financial Information

Current Receivables:

Grants: DOE $ 67,744
Grants: HUD, Section 8 program 1,929,262
Grants: HUD, Section 8 Moderate Rehab 2,017
Grants: HUD, ROSS 9,730
Grants: HUD, Capital Funds Program 929,998
Grants: HHS 187,024
Grants: USDA 11,371
Grants: State of Washington Matchmaker 180,238
Grants: State - Miscellaneous 29,959
Grants: Bellevue CDBG 140,393
Grants: BPA 63,690
Interest: Notes and financing lease 1,784,693
Manufatured Housing Community Preservation 434,076
Other Housing Authorities - Portability 1,673,007
Tenants 52,104
Tax Credit Partnerships 470,876
Other 686,481
Total $ 8,652,662
Other Current Assets:
Prepaid expense $ 1,071,816
Materials & mobile home inventory 150,135
Total $ 1,221,952
Other Noncurrent Assets:
Prepaid Expense $ 392,345
Other 7,720
$ 400,065
Other Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 7,166,061
Interest payable 853,995
Accrued compensated absences 2,324,098
Accrued wages and benefits 1,222,717
Family Self Sufficiency escrow 215,463
Contract Retentions 491,474
Unearned Revenue 8,614,964
Other 543,024
Total $ 21,431,797

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 76



Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

Noncurrent interest $ 523,122
Family Self Sufficiency escrow 578,261
Unearned revenue 505,406
Other 2,814
Total $ 1,609,603
Other Revenue:
Portability administrative fee from other authorities $ 1,867,999
Other portability income 29,931,737
Non-dwell rent 649,993
Home and lot sales revenue 778,026
Property management fees 1,138,917
Developer fees 8,433,000
Conduit loan fees 157,260
Unit upgrade 2,331,457
Central Maintenance Fees 680,316
Tax Credit Lease Revenue - Vantage Point 1,467,000
Weatherization Owner Contributions 830,774
Other 1,212,422
Total $ 49,478,901
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets:
Spiritwood Manor $ 23,570,397
Corinthian Apartments 243,070
Harrison House 41,561
Charter House (158,584)
Vehicles and equipment 21,551
Total $ 23,717,995

Note 12 — Pension Plans

The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the
requirements of the GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for
the year 2016:

Aggregate Pension Amounts — All Plans
Pension liabilities $ 24,508,533
Pension assets $ -

Deferred outflows of resources | $ 4,625,712
Deferred inflows of resources $ 435,762
Pension expense/expenditures | $ 3,064,698

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 77



State Sponsored Pension Plans

Substantially all Authority’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of
Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and
defined contribution retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws
pertaining to the creation and administration of all public retirement systems.

The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of
the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan.
The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to:

Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit

P.O. Box 48380

Olympia, WA 98540-8380

Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals
and Superior Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts;
employees of local governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher
education retirement programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for
membership purposes. PERS plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a
defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.

PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as two percent of the member's average final compensation (AFC) times the
member’s years of service. The AFC is the average of the member’'s 24 highest consecutive
service months. Members are eligible for retirement from active status at any age with at least
30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or at age 60 with at least five years
of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially
reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department
of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of
eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.

Contributions

The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The
employer contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an
administrative expense component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state
Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required
contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2016 were as follows:

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 78



PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution | Employer Employee*
Rates:
PERS Plan 1 6.23% 6.00%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.77% 6.00%
Administrative Fee 0.18%
Total | 11.18% 6.00%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 12.26%.

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as two percent of the member's average final compensation (AFC) times the
member’s years of service for Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average
of the member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service
credit. Members are eligible for retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service
credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members
who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early
retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according to age for each year
before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at
least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:

e With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or

o With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter
return-to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting
a reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only
to those who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3
retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other
PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance
(based on the CPI), capped at three percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit,
if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after
completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion
of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service if 12 months of that service
are earned after age 44.

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution
rate upon joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As
established by statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5
percent and escalate to 15 percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to
the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined
contribution portion of their plan.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 79



Contributions

The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the
State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer
rates include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that
is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan
2 employer and employee contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3
required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2016 were as
follows:

Washington State Auditor's Office

PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution | Employer 2/3 Employee 2*
Rates:
PERS Plan 2/3 6.23% 6.12%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.77% -
Administrative Fee 0.18% -
Employee PERS Plan 3 varies
Total | 11.18% 6.12%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 15.30%.

The Authority’s actual PERS plan contributions were $1,179,966 to PERS Plan 1 and $1,491,788
to PERS Plan 2/3 for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent
actuarial valuation completed in 2016 with a valuation date of June 30, 2015. The actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s
(OSA) 2007-2012 Experience Study.

Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2015
actuarial valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to
the measurement date of June 30, 2016. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2015,
to June 30, 2016, reflecting each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed
interest and actual benefit payments.

¢ Inflation: 3.0% total economic inflation; 3.75% salary inflation

e Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.75% salary inflation assumption, salaries are
also expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

¢ Investment rate of return: 7.5%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined
Disabled Table, published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table
and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100
percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is
assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout his or her
lifetime.

Page 80



There were minor changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.

e For all systems, except LEOFF Plan 2, the assumed valuation interest rate was lowered
from 7.8% to 7.7%. Assumed administrative factors were updated.

e Valuation software was corrected on how the nonduty disability benefits for LEOFF Plan
2 active members is calculated.

e New LEOFF Plan 2 benefit definitions were added within the OSA valuation software to
model legislation signed into law during the 2015 legislative session.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.5 percent.

To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.7 percent long-term
discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements.
(All plans use 7.7 percent except LEOFF 2, which has assumed 7.5 percent). Consistent with the
long-term expected rate of return, a 7.5 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets
was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to
continue being made at contractually required rates (including PERS 2/3, PSERS 2, SERS 2/3,
and TRS 2/3 employers, whose rates include a component for the PERS 1, and TRS 1 plan
liabilities). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent was used to determine the total liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.5 percent was
determined using a building-block-method. The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB)
used a best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense, including inflation) to develop each major asset class. Those expected
returns make up one component of WSIB’s capital market assumptions. The WSIB uses the
capital market assumptions and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns
at various future times. The long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent approximately equals
the median of the simulated investment returns over a 50-year time horizon.

Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the table below. The
inflation component used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent
long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 81



% Long-Term
Asset Class Target Expected Real Rate

Allocation of Return

Arithmetic
Fixed Income 20% 1.70%
Tangible Assets 5% 4.40%
Real Estate 15% 5.80%
Global Equity 37% 6.60%
Private Equity 23% 9.60%

100%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

The table below presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.5 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
(6.5%) Discount Rate (8.5%)
(7.5%)
PERS 1 $ 13,636,647 $ 11,308,279 $ 9,304,575
PERS 2/3 $ 24,304,041 $ 13,200,254 $ (6,871,494)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued DRS financial report.

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the Authority reported a total pension liability of $24,508,533 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liabilities as follows:

Liability (or Asset)
$ 11,308,279
$ 13,200,254

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

At June 30, the Authority’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as
follows:

Proportionate | Proportionate | Change in

Share 6/30/15 | Share 6/30/16 | Proportion
PERS 1 %.202009 %.210564 %.008555
PERS 2/3 | %.246303 %.262174 %.015871

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 82



Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended
June 30 are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the
collective pension amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer
Allocations for all plans except LEOFF 1.

The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the actuarial
valuation date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2015, with
update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.

Pension Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Authority recognized pension expense as follows:

Pension Expense
PERS 1 $ 1,097,397
PERS 2/3 $ 1,967,301
TOTAL $ 3,064,698

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

At December 31, 2016, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

PERS 1 Deferred Deferred Inflows

Outflows of of Resources
Resources

Differences between expected and actual $- $-

experience

Net difference between projected and $ 284,725 $-

actual investment earnings on pension plan

investments

Changes of assumptions $- $-

Changes in proportion and differences $- $-

between contributions and proportionate

share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the $ 594,405 $-

measurement date

TOTAL $ 879,130 $

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 83



PERS 2/3 Deferred Deferred Inflows

Outflows of of Resources
Resources

Differences between expected and actual $ 702,904 $ (435,762)

experience

Net difference between projected and $ 1,615,330 $

actual investment earnings on pension plan

investments

Changes of assumptions $ 136,435 $

Changes in proportion and differences $ 541,206 $

between contributions and proportionate

share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the $ 750,706 $

measurement date

TOTAL $ 3,746,581 $ (435,762)

Total of All Plans Deferred Deferred Inflows

Outflows of of Resources
Resources

Differences between expected and actual $ 702,904 $ (435,762)

experience

Net difference between projected and $ 1,900,055 $

actual investment earnings on pension plan

investments

Changes of assumptions $ 136,435 $

Changes in proportion and differences $ 541,206 $

between contributions and proportionate

share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the $ 1,345,111 $

measurement date

TOTAL $ 4,625,711 $ (435,762)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Authority’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended PERS 1 PERS 2/3
December 31:
2017 $ (70,105) $ 182,831
2018 $ (70,105) $ 182,831
2019 $ 261,489 $ 1,397,584
2020 $ 163,446 $ 796,868
2021 $ $
Thereafter $ $

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 84



Note 13 — Risk Management

King County Housing Authority (KCHA) has the responsibility to systematically and continuously
identify potential exposure to losses in terms of frequency and severity probability, and to apply
sound risk control and financing techniques to minimize the impact of those potential losses. KCHA
Risk Management has implemented programs to protect the Housing Authority against accidental
and criminal losses that would significantly affect personnel, property, or budget by using a
combination of loss control programs, purchased commercial insurance, voluntary self-insurance,
participation in a risk-sharing pool or group, and contractual risk transfer via indemnification
agreements.

For Public Housing, KCHA secures third-party liability insurance primarily through the Housing
Authority Insurance Group (HAIG), a national housing authority risk-sharing pool. The General
Liability limit, including Washington Stop-Gap or Employer’s Liability, is $5,000,000 per occurrence
on an occurrence basis with a $1,000 deductible. Contractor’s Pollution Liability and Errors &
Omissions limit is $1,000,000 on a claims-made basis with a $5,000 per claim deductible provided
through Crum & Forster Specialty Insurance Company. Automobile Liability insurance is $5,000,000
in total limits provided through a combination of Continental Western Insurance Company with
$1,000,000 liability limit and excess liability of $4,000,000 provided by Ohio Casualty Insurance
Company. Property insurance including Rental Income coverage is placed through the Housing
Authority Risk & Retention Pool (HARRP) which a standard limit of $3,000,000 replacement cost
basis, with higher limits available upon request. The property deductible is $25,000 per loss. The
Authority has secured Fidelity coverage through HARRP for $100,000 per occurrence for all
employees, and $500,000 for employees with greater exposure.

Bond Financed Projects are covered for property insurance through HARRP. The general liability is
covered through the Housing Authority Insurance Group (HAIG) with a $5,000,000 per occurrence

limit. Additionally, liability sub-limits are provided for fire damage liability and athletic sports liability,
at $50,000 and $250,000, respectively.

Tax Credit Partnership properties are covered for general liability with total limits of $5,000,000 per
occurrence basis provided by Philadelphia Insurance ($1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000
general aggregate, per designated location) on the primary level, and $4,000,000 aggregate limit
excess of the primary, with a $10,000 self-insured retention. Lexington Insurance provides property
insurance for buildings and Contents values on replacement cost basis, with Business Income
including Extra Expense covered according to reported values, all subject to a $10,000 deductible,
except as respects Flood at noted locations, for a deductible of $250,000 which are covered under
National Flood Insurance Policies, subject to $1,000 deductibles.

Excess Liability limit of $15,000,000 is provided over all of the above liability coverage except the
Contractors Pollution, which brings total liability coverage to a limit of $20,000,000. This coverage is
placed with Lexington Insurance Company.

Public Officials Errors and Omissions and Employment Practices Liability is provided on all
properties with a $5,000,000 limit with a 50,000 deductible for employment practices and other
covered claims from Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company.

No active claims are anticipated to exceed the applicable limits of insurance secured from any of the
listed providers. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage purchased during the past three years.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 85



Note 14 — Conduit Debt Obligations

The Authority has issued debt instruments for the purpose of providing capital financing for specific
nongovernmental corporations that are not part of the Authority’s financial reporting entity. In general,
the Authority issues such conduit debt, but the Authority is not responsible for the payment of the
original debt. That debt is secured solely by payments received by the Authority from the various non-
governmental corporations, and by the Deeds of Trust to the underlying properties. Owners of the debt
have no recourse to any other revenues of the Authority.

Non-governmental Corporation

Project Description

Date of Issue

Dec 31 Balance

Auburn North Associates Limited
Partnership

Purchase of land and construction of a
296-unit complex for elderly or disabled,
low-income persons in Auburn
Washington, known as Auburn Court
Apartments.

December 1, 1997

$11,445,000

Manufactured Housing Community
Preservationists

Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 93-unit

mobile home park in the city of Redmond,

Washington, known as Avon Villa Mobile
Home Park.

December 2, 1997

$1,426,506

Seaview Apartments Limited
Partnership

Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 72-unit
multifamily development in Des Moines,
Washington.

December 1, 1998

$1,610,000

St. Andrews Housing Group

Acquisition of a 59-unit apartment
complex located on Mercer Island,
Washington, known as Ellsworth House.

October 20, 1999

$2,119,716

Evergreen Court Associates Ltd

Acquisition and rehabilitation of 111-unit
Washington Court assisted living in
Bellevue to be rehabilitated into a 82-unit
complex known as Evergreen Court

September 7, 2001

$5,207,515

Angle Lake Apartments

Construction of an 80-unit independent
living, senior housing facility located in
SeaTac.

November 14, 2002

$3,214,414

Radcliffe Place, LLC

Construction of a 135 unit senior housing
facility located in Kent know as Radcliffe
Place Senior Apartments

December 22, 2004

$9,082,816

Wild Garden Housing LLC-DASH

Refinancing of three affordable housing
projects owned by DASH that comprise a
total of 136 apartment units in Bellevue
known as Glendale, Wildwood Court and
Garden Grove.

August 1, 2005

$6,662,022

Eernisse Apartments

Construction of a 26 unit affordable rental
townhouse project on Vashon Island
known as Eernisse Apartments.

December 20, 2005

$1,453,997

280 Clark Limited Partnership

To finance or refinance a portion of the
costs of acquiring, constructing and
rehabilitating the 280 Clark Apartments to
provide housing for low-income persons
in King County

November 1, 2007

$2,434,179

Young Women’s Association of
Seattle, King and Snohomish County
(YWCA)

Construction of 98 rental dwelling units as
part of the YWCA Family Village in
Issaquah

December 23, 2009

$8,275,000

Ashwood Community Redevelopment
LLLP-DASH

Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 51 unit
senior housing project in the City of
Bellevue known as Ashwood Court
Apartments

April 1, 2015

$5,270,888

Summerfield Rehab LLLP

Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 52 unit
apartment complex in the City of Bellevue
known as Summerfield Apartments

March 1, 2016

$8,839,366

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 86



Note 15 —Construction Commitments

At December 31, 2016 the Authority had the following contractual obligations on construction
projects:

Project Spent to Date Remaining Commitment

Ballinger Homes Water Line 92,790 13,665
Boulevard Manor Roof Replacement 27,859 1,403
Boulevard Manor Site Improvements 46,568 9,651
Briarwood Manor Site Improvements 66,193 202,843
Burndale Building Envelope Upgrades 322,595 1,158,154
Burndale Site Improvements 971 36,225
College Place Site ADA Upgrades 336,074 12,644
Evergreen Court Envelope Upgrade 1,064,296 163,900
Firwood Circle Envelope 90,682 7,686
Firwood Circle Site Improvements 676,550 37,928
Forest Glen Site Improvements 26,873 58,685
Forest Glen Waste Line Replacement 918,930 89,245
Greenleaf Roof Replacement 394,397 18,750
Hidden Village Envelope Upgrade 377,496 1,694,089
Hillsview Roofing 123,889 6,962
Kirkland Place Roof Replacement 113,780 9,911
Lakehouse Deck Repair 124,776 4,757
Lakehouse Site Upgrades 329,154 59,589
Northridge Bridge 82,102 8,888
Northridge | Envelope Upgrade (A&E) 131,410 8,650
Northridge Il Envelope Upgrade (A&E) 9,178 8,170
Peppertree Doors 112,904 3,462
Shelcor Envelope Upgrades 441,098 16,013
Valli Kee Site Improvements 263,011 136,991

Total| $ 6,173,576 | $ 3,768,261

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 87



Housing Authority of the County of King

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
As of June 30, 2016

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

| PERS 1 [ 2016 ] 2015 [ 2014 | 2013 |
Housing Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.210564% 0.202009% 0.209922% 0.205670%
Housing Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 11,308,279 10,566,949 10,574,919 12,017,821
Housing Authority's covered-employee payroll 23,927,969 22,486,964 21,931,906 20,819,426
Housing Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as

a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 47.3% 47.0% 48.2% 57.7%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 57.03% 59.10% 61.19%

| PERS 2/3 [ 2016 | 2015 [ 2014 | 2013 |
Housing Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.262174% 0.246303% 0.244505% 0.239726%
Housing Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 13,200,254 8,800,547 4,942,329 10,236,336
Housing Authority's covered-employee payroll 23,468,939 21,905,257 20,951,638 19,872,164
Housing Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as

a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 56.2% 40.2% 23.6% 51.5%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 85.82% 89.20% 93.29%

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information
is available

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year »

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 88



Housing Authority of the County of King
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
As of December 31, 2016

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

| PERS 1 [ 2016 | 2015 | 2014 | 2013 |
Contractually required contribution 1,179,966 1,043,238 932,952 735,026
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (1,179,966) (1,043,238) (932,952) (735,026)
Contribution deficiency (excess} - - - -
Housing Authority's covered-employee payroll 24,288,689 23,325,570 22,109,317 21,427,933
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 4.86% 4.47% 4.22% 3.43%
| PERS 2/3 [ 2016 | 2015 [ 2014 [ 2013 |
Contractually required contribution 1,491,788 1,293,314 1,063,522 990,321
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (1,491,788) (1,293,314) (1,063,522) (990,321)
Contribution deficiency (excess} - - - -
Housing Authority's covered-employee payroll 23,860,193 22,813,433 21,289,453 20,469,150
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 6.25% 5.67% 5.00% 4.84%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information for the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Changes of benefit terms: There were no changes in the benefit terms for the Pension Plans.

Changes of assumptions: There were no changes in the assumptions for the Pension Plans.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 89



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Federal Agency CFDA From Pass-Through From Direct Passed throughto  Debt Liability
(Pass-Through Agency) Federal Program Number Other Award Number Awards Awards Total Subrecipients Balance Note
Rural Housing Service, Department Of  Rural Rental Housing Loans 10415 56-017-647765210 $ - $ 60297 S 60297  § - s 981104 124
Agriculture
Rural Housing Service, Department Of  Rural Rental Assistance Payments 10427 56-017-647765210 - 532,899 532,899 - - 12
Agriculture
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - 593,196 593,196 - 981,104
Section 8 Project-Based Cluster
Office Of Housing-federal Housing Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment 14195 WA19M000203 - $ 394726 394,726 - - 12
Commissioner, Department Of Housing ~ Program
And Urban Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Lower Income Housing Assistance Program- 14856 WA002MR0002 - 101,272 101,272 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation
Development
Total Section 8 Project-Based Programs Cluster - 495,998 495,998 - -
Office O Community Planning And Community Development Block 14218 CDBG-251 291,378 - 291,378 - - 12
Development, Department Of Housing ~ GranyEntitlement Grants - 2015
And Urban Development (via City of
Bellevue, WA)
Office O Community Planning And Community Development Block 14218 CDBG-251 140,393 - 140,393 - - 12
Development, Department Of Housing ~ GranEntitiement Grants - 2016
And Urban Development (via City of
Bellevue, WA)
Total CFDA 14.218 431,770 - 431,770 - -
Housing Voucher Cluster
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14871 WA002 - 9,213,848 9,213,848 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Mainstream Vouchers 14879 WA002DV0022 - 3,009,945 3,009,945 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Total Housing Voucher Cluster - 12.223.793 12,223,793 - -
Office OF Public And Indian Housing, Moving To Work Demonstration Program 14881 WA002 - 115,693,368 115,693,368 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Moving To Work Demonstration Program 14881 WA002 - 7,668,056 7,668,056 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Moving To Work Demonstration Program 14881 WA19P002501-12 - 660,693 660,693 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Moving To Work Demonstration Program 14881 WA19P002501-13 - 1,290,938 1,290,938 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Moving To Work Demonstration Program 14881 WA19P002501-16 - 390,024 390,024 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Total CFDA 14.881 - 125,703,079 125,703,079 - -
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Resident Opportunity and Supportive 14.870  WAO02RPS112A013 - 57,751 57,751 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban Services - Service Coordinators
Development
Office Of Public And Indian Housing, Family Self-Sufficiency Program 14896  WAOD2FSH705A014 - 329,785 329,785 - - 12
Department Of Housing And Urban
Development
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 431,770 138,810,406 139,242,176 B -
Department Of Energy (via Washington  Weatherization Assistance for Low Income 81.042  F13-43103-413 DOE 459,188 - 459,188 - - 12
State Deptartment of Commerce) Persons
Department Of Energy (via Washington  Weatherization Assistance for Low Income 81.042  F13-43104-413BPA 305,853 - 305,853 - - 12
State Deptartment of Commerce) Persons
Total CFDA81.042 765,041 - 765,041 - -
Total U.S. Department of Energy 765,041 - 765,041 - -
Administration For Children And Families,  Low-Income Home Energy Assistance -2013 93568  F13-43101-413 HHS 1,160,036 - 1,160,036 - - 12
Department Of Health And Human
Services (via Washington State
Deptartment of Commerce)
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,160,036 - 1,160,036 - -
Total Federal i B 2,356,848 $ 139,403,602 § 141,760,450 _§ - s 981,104

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this schedule.

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the King County
Housing Authority's financial statements. (See Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.)

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL LOANS

loan balance.

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs. Entire program costs, including The Authority's
portion, may be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in the OMB Circular A-87, Cost

Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S> Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
In 1998, the Authority was approved by the USDA Rural Housing Service to receive a loan totaling limited as to reimbursement.
$1,350,949 for the rehabilitation of rural housing. The amount listed on this schedule is the outstanding

NOTE 7 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost

rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 90



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

14.218 Community

14.856 Lower Income

10.427 Rural 14.191 Development Housing Assistance
10.415 Rural Rental Multifamily Block Program - Section 8 -
Rental Housing Assistance Housing Service 14.195 Section 8 - [Entitl Mod
Line Item # Account Description Loans Payments Coordinator Special Allocation Grants Rehabilitation
111 Cash - unrestricted - - - 3,549 0 112,780
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted - - - 914,622 - -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits - - - 14,523 - -
100 Total cash - - - 932,694 - 112,780
121 AR - PHA projects - - - - - -
122 AR - HUD other projects - - - - - 2,017
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - 140,393 -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - - - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants - - - 11,809 - -
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants - - - (416) - -
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances - - - 11,393 140,393 2,017
131 Investments - unrestricted - - - - - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets - - - 4,242 - 5
143 Inventories - - - - - -
150 Total Current Assets - - - 948,329 140,393 114,802
161 Land - - - 521,854 - -
162 Buildings - - - 2,111,976 - -
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration - - - - - -
165 Leasehold improvements - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation - - - (1,624,816) - -
167 Work in progress - - - - - -
168 Infrastructure - - - 10,600 - -
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation - - - 1,019,614 - -
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - - - -
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets - - - 1,019,614 - -
190 Total Assets R R - 1,967,943 140,393 114,802
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources - - - 21,674 - 264
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ - $ - $ - $ 1989617 $ 140,393 $ 115,066
311 Bank overdraft $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days - - - 6,975 - 12
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable - - - 5,858 - 63
322 Accrued compensated absences - - - 6,640 - 131
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits - - - 14,523 - -
342 Unearned revenue - - - 3,419 - 8,575
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects 37,220 - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities - - - 81,742 3,430 -
346 Accrued liabilities - other - - - - - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 37,220 - - 119,157 3,430 8,781
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects 943,884 - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - 1,028,616 - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other - - - - - -
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites - 114,833 - 1,401
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 943,884 - - 1,143,449 - 1,401
300 Total Liabilities 981,104 - - 1,262,606 3,430 10,182
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - 2,042 - 25
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets (981,104) - - 1,019,614 - -
5114 Restricted Net Position - - - 914,622 - -
5124 Unrestricted Net Position - - - (1,209,267) 136,963 104,859
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position (981,104) - - 724,969 136,963 104,859
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

600 Equity - Net Assets/Position $ - $ - $ - $ 1989617 $ 140,393 $ 115,066

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 91



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

14.870 Resident 14.896 PIH
Opportunity and 14.871 Section 8 14.879 14.881 Moving-To- Family Self-

Supportive Services - Housing Choice Mainstream Work Demonstration Sufficiency State/Local
Line Item # Account Description Service Coordinators Vouchers Vouchers Program Program Programs
111 Cash - unrestricted $ - $ - $ 549,626 $ 4,809,817 $ - $ 878,176
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted - 672,634 - 812,160 - -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits - - - - - -
100 Total cash - 672,634 549,626 5,621,977 - 878,176
121 AR - PHA projects - 1,391,615 - - - -
122 AR - HUD other projects 9,730 93,421 - 1,778,801 57,041 -
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - - 331,401
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - 474,462 - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants - - - - - -
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants - - - - - -
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - 79,991 - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances 9,730 1,485,036 - 2,333,254 57,041 331,401
131 Investments - unrestricted - - - 6,136,508 - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - 11,527,932 - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets - - 192 57,128 - 34,341
143 Inventories - - - - - -
150 Total Current Assets 9,730 2,157,670 549,818 25,676,799 57,041 1,243,918
161 Land - - - - - -
162 Buildings - - - - - -
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration - - - - - -
165 Leasehold improvements - - - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation - - - - - -
167 Work in progress - - - - - -
168 Infrastructure - - - - - -
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation - - - - - -
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - 26,792,641 - 209,641
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets - - - 26,792,641 - 209,641
190 Total Assets 9,730 2,157,670 549,818 52,469,440 57,041 1,453,559
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources - - - 1,542,098 - 143,803
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 9730 § 2,157,670 $ 549,818 § 54,011,538 $ 57,041 _§$ 1,597,362
311 Bank overdraft $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 9,730 - - 889,318 - 353,976
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable - - 1,461 409,096 - 95
322 Accrued compensated absences - - 2,990 632,195 - 114,839
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - 5,631 - -
341 Tenant security deposits - - - - - -
342 Unearned revenue - - 17,770 8,226,908 - -
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities 826 - - 176,798 57,100 686,563
346 Accrued liabilities - other - - - 156,200 - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 10,556 - 22,221 10,496,146 57,100 1,155,473
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects - - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other - - - 578,261 - -
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites - - - 8,170,539 - 761,917
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities - - - 8,748,800 - 761,917
300 Total Liabilities 10,556 - 22,221 19,244,946 57,100 1,917,390
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - 145,272 - 13,547
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets - - - - - -
511.4 Restricted Net Position - 672,634 - 11,546,368 - -
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position (826) 1,485,036 527,597 23,074,952 (59) (333,575)
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position (826) 2,157,670 527,597 34,621,320 (59) (333,575)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

600 Equity - Net Assets/Position $ 9,730 $ 2,157,670  § 549,818 § 54,011,538 $ 57,041 $ 1,597,362

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 92



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

81.042
Weatherization 93.568 Low Income
Assistance for Low Home Energy COMPONENT
Line Item # Account Description Business Activities Income Persons Assistance 94.006 Americorp  UNITS - BLENDED cocc
111 Cash - unrestricted $ 76,563,406 - $ - $ - $ 1,146,674  $ 849,676
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted 20,631,493 - - - 1,578,420 -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits 2,016,857 - - - 183,732 -
100 Total cash 99,211,756 - - - 2,908,826 849,676
121 AR - PHA projects 27,146 - - - -
122 AR - HUD other projects 927,234 - - - -
124 Accounts receivable - other government 41,330 131,435 187,024 - -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous 1,992,216 - - - 103,483
126 Accounts receivable- tenants 244,952 - - - 1,126 -
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants (29,356) - - - -
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current 9,323,632 - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable 1,784,694 - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances 14,311,848 131,435 187,024 - 1,126 103,483
131 Investments - unrestricted 42,729,161 - - - - 51,857
132 Investments - restricted 868,045 - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 637,139 - - - 43,898 120,457
143 Inventories 149,998 - - - - 137
150 Total Current Assets 157,907,947 131,435 187,024 - 2,953,850 1,125,610
161 Land 69,434,812 - - - 6,991,838 4,529,093
162 Buildings 265,791,830 - - - 88,165,454 11,330,268
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings 35,400 - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration 162,335 - - - 405,719 7,178,396
165 Leasehold improvements 766,095 - - - 6,968,864 -
166 Accumulated depreciation (73,011,647) - - - (42,601,767) (7,763,936)
167 Work in progress 22,360,426 - - - 1,339,919 22,808
168 Infrastructure 8,697,500 - - - - 34,438
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation 294,236,751 - - - 61,270,027 15,331,067
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current 334,040,653 - - - - 2,000
174 Other assets 397,940 - - - - 2,128
180 Total Noncurrent Assets 628,675,344 - - - 61,270,027 15,335,195
190 Total Assets 786,583,291 131,435 187,024 - 64,223,877 16,460,805
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,847,695 - - - - 1,490,411
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 788,430,986 $ 131,435 § 187,024  $ - $ 64,223,877 $ 17,951,216
31 Bank overdraft $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 2,939,549 - - - - 264,433
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable 239,456 - - - - 421,700
322 Accrued compensated absences 696,042 - - - - 680,170
325 Accrued interest payable 853,995 - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits 2,016,857 - - - 183,732 -
342 Unearned revenue 263,924 - - - 15,578 -
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects 6,517,888 - - - 449,165 -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings 6,688,636 - - - 518,060 -
345 Other current liabilities 883,559 5,603 4,457 - 50,864 -
346 Accrued liabilities - other 1,739,661 - - - - 4,700
310 Total Current Liabilities 22,839,567 5,603 4,457 - 1,217,399 1,371,003
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects 244,991,072 - - - 40,013,185 -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings 171,627,023 - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other 2,597,613 - - - 188,047 -
357 Accrued pension and OPERB liabilitites 5,133,564 - - - - 7,896,686
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 424,349,272 - - - 40,201,232 7,896,686
300 Total Liabilities 447,188,839 5,603 4,457 - 41,418,631 9,267,689
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources 91,275 - - - - 140,403
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 42,727,791 - - - 20,807,677 15,331,067
5114 Restricted Net Position 21,499,537 - - - 1,578,420 -
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 276,923,544 125,832 182,567 - 419,149 (6,787,943)
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position 341,150,872 125,832 182,567 - 22,805,246 8,543,124
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
600 Equity - Net Assets/Position $ 788,430,986 _$ 131,435 § 187,024 § - $ 64,223,877 $ 17,951,216

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 93



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

Park Royal Paramount

Ballinger Homes Apartments House Il The Lake House Northridge Il
Line ltem # Account Description "Other Projects” WA002000101 WA002000105 WA002000150 WA002000152 WA002000153
111 Cash - unrestricted 558,365 438,165 $ 81,129 § - $ 454621 $ 369,274
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted - - - - - -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits 26,875 22,965 3,725 - 11,100 11,514
100 Total cash 585,240 461,130 84,854 - 465,721 380,788
121 AR - PHA projects - - 104 - - 1,463
122 AR - HUD other projects 132,542 - - - - -
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - - -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - - - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants 1,911 14,551 3,768 - 3,419 2,893
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants (285) (3,826) (593) - (518) (744)
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances 134,168 10,725 3,279 - 2,901 3,612
131 Investments - unrestricted 103,637 - - - - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 20,733 20,062 2,419 - 12,159 14,118
143 Inventories - - - - - -
150 Total Current Assets 843,778 491,917 90,652 - 480,781 398,518
161 Land 1,050,287 1,960,510 541,000 - 246,728 224,064
162 Buildings 10,889,514 10,640,903 1,469,915 - 9,446,459 8,656,640
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration - 13,766 - - - -
165 Leasehold improvements - - - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation (7,182,417) (6,773,296) (302,312) - (4,219,466) (3,755,049)
167 Work in progress 1,647 105,967 - - 147,680 140,954
168 Infrastructure 1,729,767 2,408,304 - - 632,289 1,749,880
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation 6,488,798 8,356,154 1,708,603 - 6,253,690 7,016,489
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - - - -
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets 6,488,798 8,356,154 1,708,603 - 6,253,690 7,016,489
190 Total Assets 7,332,576 8,848,071 1,799,155 - 6,734,471 7,415,007
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources - 49,487 5,609 - 36,948 32,832
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 7,332576  $ 8,897,558 §$ 1,804,764 § - $ 6,771,419 § 7,447,839
311 Bank overdraft $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 303,514 25,573 6,518 - 71,897 19,215
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable 13,964 11,857 1,650 - 10,541 9,364
322 Accrued compensated absences 16,696 20,962 1,029 - 9,014 7,454
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits 26,875 22,965 3,725 - 11,100 11,514
342 Unearned revenue 13,616 10,017 575 - 3,895 5,951
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities - 3,462 - - 19,141 5,560
346 Accrued liabilities - other - - - - - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 374,665 94,836 13,497 - 125,588 59,058
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects - - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other - 144 - - 58 72
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites - 262,200 29,724 - 195,763 173,957
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities - 262,344 29,724 - 195,821 174,029
300 Total Liabilities 374,665 357,180 43,221 - 321,409 233,087
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources - 4,662 528 - 3,481 3,093
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,488,798 8,356,154 1,708,603 - 6,253,690 7,016,489
511.4 Restricted Net Position - - - - - -
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 469,113 179,562 52,412 - 192,839 195,170
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position 6,957,911 8,535,716 1,761,015 - 6,446,529 7,211,659

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

600 Equity - Net Assets/Position $ 7,332,576 $ 8,897,558 $ 1,804,764 $ - $ 6,771,419 § 7,447,839

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 94



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

Westminster Forest Glen College Place Kirkland Place Island Crest Casa Juanita
Line Item # Account Description WA002000156  _WA002000201 WA002000203 WA002000210 WA002000213 WA002000251
1M1 Cash - unrestricted $ 180,636 $ 449,236 $ 451,625 §$ 80,956 $ 102,092 $ 244121
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted - - - - 33,558 -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits 13,258 2,500 16,075 2,800 10,670 6,375
100 Total cash 193,894 451,736 467,700 83,756 146,320 250,496
121 AR - PHA projects - 32 - - - 4,602
122 AR - HUD other projects - - - - - -
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - - -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - - - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants 1,377 891 14,230 1,114 175 5,000
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants (29) (395) (2,237) - (5) (1,199)
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances 1,348 528 11,993 1,114 170 8,403
131 Investments - unrestricted - - - - - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,154 3,061 12,264 1,107 2,997 6,089
143 Inventories - - - - - -
150 Total Current Assets 200,396 455,325 491,957 85,977 149,487 264,988
161 Land 624,059 32,191 901,525 1,064,290 2,566,125 62,146
162 Buildings 2,860,305 4,051,654 9,519,337 351,032 2,532,192 3,785,569
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration - 6,467 - - - -
165 Leasehold improvements - - - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation (570,122) (1,270,327) (5,183,570) (53,357) (328,286) (2,423,931)
167 Work in progress - 271,870 174 137,112 - -
168 Infrastructure - 1,315,518 2,829,237 - 593,430 758,293
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation 2,914,242 4,407,373 8,066,703 1,499,077 5,363,461 2,182,077
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - - - -
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets 2,914,242 4,407,373 8,066,703 1,499,077 5,363,461 2,182,077
190 Total Assets 3,114,638 4,862,698 8,558,660 1,585,054 5,512,948 2,447,065
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources 15,397 11,300 35,346 2,549 13,021 21,049
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 3,130,035 § 4873998 $ 8594006 _$ 1,587,603  § 5,525,969  § 2,468,114
311 Bank overdraft $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 12,993 104,725 92,405 3,326 4,548 12,034
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable 4,097 4,466 11,737 1,653 3,234 5,930
322 Accrued compensated absences 3,134 4,005 8,918 1,417 4,273 9,216
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits 13,258 2,500 16,075 2,800 10,670 6,375
342 Unearned revenue 2,526 832 20,832 2,811 4,676 2,818
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities - 45,016 15,635 - - -
346 Accrued liabilities - other - - - - - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 36,008 161,544 165,602 12,007 27,401 36,373
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects - - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other - 37 137 - - 130
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites 81,578 59,884 187,276 13,505 69,004 111,524
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 81,578 59,921 187,413 13,505 69,004 111,654
300 Total Liabilities 117,586 221,465 353,015 25,512 96,405 148,027
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,450 1,065 3,330 240 1,227 1,983
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,914,242 4,407,373 8,066,703 1,499,077 5,363,461 2,182,077
5114 Restricted Net Position - - - - 33,558 -
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 96,757 244,095 170,958 62,774 31,318 136,027
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position 3,010,999 4,651,468 8,237,661 1,561,851 5,428,337 2,318,104

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

600 Equity - Net Assets/Position $ 3130035 § 4873998 § 8,594,006 $ 1,587,603 $ 5,525,969 § 2,468,114

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 95



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

Sixth Place
Seola Crossing Eastbridge Salmon Creek Apartments Fairwind
Line ltem # Account Description WA002000340 WA002000341 WA002000343 WA002000344 WA002000345 WAO002000346
1M1 Cash - unrestricted $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ -
113 Cash - other restricted - - - - - -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits - - - - - -
100 Total cash - - - - - -
121 AR - PHA projects - - - - - -
122 AR - HUD other projects - - - - - -
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - - -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - - - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants - - - - - -
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants - - - - - -
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances - - - - - _
131 Investments - unrestricted - - - - - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets - - - - - -
143 Inventories - - - - - -
150 Total Current Assets - - - - - -
161 Land - - - - - -
162 Buildings - - - - - -
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration - - - - - -
165 Leasehold improvements - - - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation - - - - - -
167 Work in progress - - - - - -
168 Infrastructure - - - - - -
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation - - - - - -
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - - - -
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets - - - - - -
190 Total Assets - - - - - -
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources - - - - - -
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources - - - - - -
311 Bank overdraft - - - - - -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days - - - - - -
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable - - - - - -
322 Accrued compensated absences - - - - - -
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits - - - - - -
342 Unearned revenue - - - - - -
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities - - - - - -
346 Accrued liabilities - other - - - - - -
310 Total Current Liabilities - - - - - -
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects - - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other - - - - - -
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites - - - - - -
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities - - - - - -
300 Total Liabilities - - - - - -
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - - - -
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets - - - - - -
511.4 Restricted Net Position - - - - - -
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position - - - - - -
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position - - - - - -
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
600 Equity - Net Assets/Position - - - - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 96



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

Springwood

Boulevard Manor Yardley Arms Riverton Terrace Nia Valli Kee Homes Apartments
Line Item # Account Description WA002000350 WA002000352 WAO002000354 WA002000355 WA002000401 WA002000402
111 Cash - unrestricted 294,050 $ 200,112 134,947  $ - $ 528,856 $ -
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted - - 37,787 - - -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits 6,275 5,825 3,525 - 18,075 -
100 Total cash 300,325 205,937 176,259 - 546,931 -
121 AR - PHA projects - 2,001 - - - -
122 AR - HUD other projects - - - - 2,764 -
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - - -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - - - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants 183 1,008 1,804 - 14,153 -
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants - (126) (130) - (1,256) -
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances 183 2,883 1,674 - 15,661 -
131 Investments - unrestricted - - - - - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,792 5,808 3,523 - 17,976 -
143 Inventories - = - = - -
150 Total Current Assets 306,300 214,628 181,456 - 580,568 -
161 Land 72,003 227,040 463,210 - 160,827 -
162 Buildings 5,630,170 5,343,557 3,487,260 - 16,333,748 -
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration - - - - 26,394 -
165 Leasehold improvements - - - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation (2,575,737) (2,694,494) (972,907) - (5,238,973) -
167 Work in progress 47,158 5,558 - - 1,224,115 -
168 Infrastructure 877,549 160,031 - - 2,397,137 -
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation 4,051,143 3,141,692 2,977,563 - 14,903,248 -
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - - - -
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets 4,051,143 3,141,692 2,977,563 - 14,903,248 -
190 Total Assets 4,357,443 3,356,320 3,159,019 - 15,483,816 -
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources 22,001 19,113 9,591 - 44,988 -
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,379,444  $ 3,375,433 3,168,610 § - $ 15,528,804 $ -
311 Bank overdraft - $ - - $ - $ - $ -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 60,931 20,053 11,016 - 136,651 -
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable 6,339 5,409 3,365 - 12,934 -
322 Accrued compensated absences 8,701 8,482 3,322 - 14,746 -
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits 6,275 5,825 3,525 - 18,075 -
342 Unearned revenue 4,311 4,510 3,851 - 4,056 -
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities 2,416 - - - 7,195 -
346 Accrued liabilities - other - = - = - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 88,973 44,279 25,079 - 193,657 -
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects - - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other 29 27 - - 273 -
357 Accrued pension and OPERB liabilitites 116,568 101,264 50,815 - 238,362 -
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 116,597 101,291 50,815 - 238,635 -
300 Total Liabilities 205,570 145,570 75,894 - 432,292 -
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,073 1,800 903 - 4,238 -
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,051,143 3,141,692 2,977,563 - 14,903,248 -
511.4 Restricted Net Position - - 37,787 - = =
5124 Unrestricted Net Position 120,658 86,371 76,463 - 189,026 -
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position 4,171,801 3,228,063 3,091,813 - 15,092,274 -

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

600 Equity - Net Assets/Position 4,379,444  § 3,375,433 3,168,610 _§$ - $ 15,528,804 $ -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 97



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

Cascade

Apartments Shelcor Mardis Gras Il Vantage Point Firwood Circle Burndale Homes
Line Item # Account Description WA002000403 WA002000409 WA002000450 WA002000452 WA002000503 WA
1M1 Cash - unrestricted $ 364,046 $ 88,560 § - $ - $ 334,621 485,118
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development - - - - - -
113 Cash - other restricted - - - - - -
114 Cash - tenant security deposits 17,125 1,350 - - 8,079 8,075
100 Total cash 381,171 89,910 - - 342,700 493,193
121 AR - PHA projects - - - - - -
122 AR - HUD other projects - - - - - -
124 Accounts receivable - other government - - - - - -
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous - - - - - -
126 Accounts receivable- tenants 7,001 168 - - 5,816 2,450
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants (559) (71) - - (501) (870)
127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable - - - - - -
120 Total receivables, net of allowances 6,442 97 - - 5,315 1,580
131 Investments - unrestricted - - - - - -
132 Investments - restricted - - - - - -
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 13,718 937 - - 6,450 6,582
143 Inventories - - - - - -
150 Total Current Assets 401,331 90,944 - - 354,465 501,355
161 Land 1,909,523 50,000 - - 113,808 154,682
162 Buildings 12,689,963 1,032,793 - - 6,435,363 5,518,662
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings - - - - - -
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration 7,303 7,143 - - 14,189 13,320
165 Leasehold improvements - - - - - -
166 Accumulated depreciation (4,029,664) (310,679) - - (2,529,428) (2,324,898)
167 Work in progress 2,764 - - - 214,497 685,476
168 Infrastructure 352,940 - - - 1,699,059 1,510,483
160 Total capital assets, net of depreciation 10,932,829 779,257 - - 5,947,488 5,657,725
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current - - - - - -
174 Other assets - - - - - -
180 Total Noncurrent Assets 10,932,829 779,257 - - 5,947,488 5,557,725
190 Total Assets 11,334,160 870,201 - - 6,301,953 6,059,080
200 Deferred Outflows of Resources 52,350 2,548 - - 21,685 22,472
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 11,386,510 $ 872,749 $ - $ - $ 6,323,638 6,081,552
311 Bank overdraft $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - -
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 26,953 375 - - 19,851 171,601
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable 15,029 346 - - 6,631 5,698
322 Accrued compensated absences 25,987 617 - - 5,977 6,996
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - -
332 Accounts Payable - PHA projects - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits 17,125 1,350 - - 8,079 8,075
342 Unearned revenue 4,149 6 - - 7,437 3,104
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - - -
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities - 16,013 - - 37,928 53,491
346 Accrued liabilities - other - - - - - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 89,243 18,707 - - 85,903 248,965
351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects - - - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other 133 - - - 63 65
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites 277,368 13,505 - - 114,915 119,064
350 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 277,501 13,505 - - 114,978 119,129
300 Total Liabilities 366,744 32,212 - - 200,881 368,094
400 Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,932 240 - - 2,043 2,117
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 10,932,829 779,257 - - 5,947,488 5,557,725
511.4 Restricted Net Position - - - - - -
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 82,005 61,040 - - 173,226 153,616
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position 11,014,834 840,297 - - 6,120,714 5,711,341

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

600 Equity - Net Assets/Position $ 11,386,510 _§ 872,749 § - $ - $ 6,323,638 6,081,552

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 98



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2016

Line Item #

11
12
113
114
100

121
122
124
125
126
126.1
127
129
120

131
132
142
143
150

161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
160

171
174
180
190
200
290
311
312
321
322
325

341

Account Description

Cash - unrestricted

Cash - restricted - modernization and development
Cash - other restricted

Cash - tenant security deposits

Total cash

AR - PHA projects
AR - HUD other projects

Accounts receivable - other government
Accounts receivable - miscellaneous
Accounts receivable- tenants

Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants
Notes and mortgages receivable- current
Accrued interest receivable

Total receivables, net of allowances

Investments - unrestricted
Investments - restricted

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Land

Buildings

Fumiture, equipment & machinery - dwellings
Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration
Leasehold improvements

Accumulated depreciation

Work in progress

Infrastructure

Total capital assets, net of depreciation

Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current
Other assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Bank overdraft

Accounts payable < 90 days

Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable
Accrued compensated absences

Accrued interest payable

Accounts Payable - PHA projects

Tenant security deposits

Unearned revenue

Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects
Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings
Other current liabilities

Accrued liabilities - other

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects
Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings
Non-current liabilities- other

Accrued pension and OPEB liabilitites

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted Net Position
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Equity - Net Assets/Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Equity - Net Assets/Position

COMPONENT
Wayland Plaza Southridge UNITS -
Arms Seventeen Il House Casa Madrona Il DISCRETELY
WA002000550 _ WA002000551  WAO002000552 _ WA002000553 Subtotal Elimination Total Authority PRESENTED
$ 156,725 § - $ 264,477 - $ 91,175,436 - $ 91,175,436 $ 8,112,935
- - - - 24,680,674 - 24,680,674 4,190,078
5,210 - 5,875 - 2,422,383 - 2,422,383 374,392
161,935 - 270,352 - 118,278,493 - 118,278,493 12,677,405

301 - - - 1,427,264 - 1,427,264 -

- - - - 3,003,550 - 3,003,550 -

- - - - 831,583 - 831,583 -

- - - - 2,570,161 (1,262,433) 1,307,728 71,918

1,654 - - - 341,453 - 341,453 108,354
(340) - - - (43,456) - (43,456) (56)

- - - - 9,403,623 (967,225) 8,436,398 -

- - - - 1,784,694 - 1,784,694 -
1,615 - - - 19,318,872 (2,229,658, 17,089,214 180,216
- - - - 49,021,163 - 49,021,163 364,490

- - - - 12,395,977 - 12,395,977

6,195 - 7,115 - 1,071,661 - 1,071,661 230,799

- - - - 150,135 - 150,135 -
169,745 - 277,467 - 200,236,301 (2,229,658) 198,006,643 13,452,910
70,350 - 66,167 - 94,038,132 - 94,038,132 26,299,930
4,761,722 - 7,933,702 - 500,769,988 - 500,769,988 388,784,200

- - - - 35,400 - 35,400 12,213,286

- - - - 7,835,032 - 7,835,032 116,112

- - - - 7,734,959 - 7,734,959 -

(1,958,063) - (3,451,838) - (183,050,980) - (183,050,980) (81,461,746)

880 - - - 26,709,005 - 26,709,005 750,762

127,940 - 146,656 - 28,031,051 - 28,031,051 16,438,358
3,002,829 - 4,694,687 - 482,102,587 - 482,102,587 363,140,902

- - - - 361,044,935 (75,207,474) 285,837,461 -

- - - - 400,068 - 400,068 1,453,025
3,002,829 4,694,687 - 843,547,590 (75,207,474) 768,340,116 364,593,927
3,172,574 - 4,972,154 - 1,043,783,891 (77,437,132) 966,346,759 378,046,837

16,242 - 24,019 - 5,504,492 - 5,504,492 -

$ 3188816 § - $ 4,996,173 - $1,049.288383 $§ (77.437.132) § 971,851,251 $ 378,046,837
$ - $ - $ - - $ -

11,682 - 10,615 - 5,590,469 5,590,469 1,315,183
4,375 - 6,367 - 1,222,715 - 1,222,715 7,746
5,262 - 24,874 - 2,324,089 - 2,324,089 -

- - - - 853,995 - 853,995 8,954,256

- - - - 5,631 - 5,631 -

5,210 - 5,875 - 2,422,383 - 2,422,383 374,392
2,569 - 1,249 - 8,639,965 - 8,639,965 65,844

- - - - 7,004,273 (967,225) 6,037,048 491,891

- - - - 7,206,696 - 7,206,696

- - - - 2,156,799 (1,262,433) 894,366 9,711,878

- - - 1,900,561 - 1,900,561 529,593

29,098 - 48,980 - 39,327,576 (2,229,658, 37,097,918 21,450,783

- - - - 285,948,141 (40,013,183) 245,934,958 246,675,267

- - - - 172,655,639 (35,005,003) 137,650,636 11,175,000

39 - 34 - 3,365,162 (189,288) 3,175,874 12,662,868
86,053 - 127,262 - 24,508,531 - 24,508,531 -
86,092 - 127,296 - 486,477,473 (75,207,474) 411,269,999 270,513,135

115,190 - 176,276 - 525,805,049 (77,437,132) 448,367,917 291,963,918
1,530 - 2,263 - 435,762 - 435,762 -
3,002,829 - 4,694,687 - 189,150,173 - 189,150,173 115,973,744

- - - - 36,282,926 - 36,282,926 4,190,078

69,267 - 122,947 - 297,614,473 - 297,614,473 (34,080,903)

3,072,096 - 4,817,634 - 523,047,572 - 523,047,572 86,082,919
$ 3188816 § - $ 4,996,173 - $ 1,049,288,383 $ (77,437,132) _$ 971,851,251 $ 378,046,837

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 99



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

14.191
14.HCV Section 8 14.0PS Low 10.415 Rural Multifamily
Line 14.CFP Capital Housing Choice Rent Public Rental Housing 10.427 Rural Rental Housing Service
ltem #  Accout Description Fund Program Voucher Housing Loans Assistance Payments Coordinator
70300  Net tenant rental revenue $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

70400 Tenant revenue - other - - - - - -

70500 Total tenant revenue - - - - - -

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants 2,031,154 115,693,368 7,668,056 - - -
70610 Capital Grants 310,501 - - - - -
70710 Management Fee -

70720 Asset Management Fee - - - - - -
70730 Book-keeping Fee - - - - - -
70750 Other Fees - - - - - -

70700 Total Fee Revenue - - - - - -

70800 Other Government Grants - - - 60,297 532,899 -
71100 Investment Income - unrestricted - - - - -

71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale - - - - - -
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets - - - - - -
71400 Fraud Recovery - - - - - -
71500 Other Revenue - - - - - -
71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets - - - - - -
72000 Investment income - restricted - - - - - -

70000 Total Revenue 2,341,655 115,693,368 7,668,056 60,297 532,899 -

91100 Administrative salaries - - - - - -
91200 Auditing fees - - - . - -
91300 Management fees - - - - - -
91310 Book-keeping Fee - - - - - -
91400 Advertising and Marketing - - - - - -
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative - - - - - -
91600 Office Expenses - - - - - -
91700 Legal expense - - - - - -
91800 Travel - - - - - -
91900 Other - - - - - -

91000 Total Operating - Administrative - - - - - -

92000 Asset Management Fee - - - - - -

92100 Tenant services - salaries - - - - - -
92200 Relocation costs - - - - N -
92300 Employee benefits - - - - - -
92400 Tenant services - other - - - - - -

92500 Total Tenant Services - - - - - -

93100 Water - - - - - -
93200 Electricity - - - - - -
93300 Gas - - - - - -
93400 Fuel - - - - N -
93600 Sewer - - - - - -
93800 Other utilities expense - - - - - -

93000 Total Utilities - - - - - -

94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor - - - - - -
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other - - - - - -
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts - - - - - -
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance - - - - - -

94000 Total Maintenance - - - - - -

95100 Protective services - labor - - - - - -
95200 Other contract costs - - - - - -

95000 Total Protective Services - - - - - -

96110 Property Insurance - - . . - -
96120 Liability Insurance - - - - - -
96130 Workmen's compensation - - - - - -

96100 Total Insurance Premiums - - - - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 100



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

14.191
14.HCV Section 8 14.0PS Low 10.415 Rural Multifamily

Line 14.CFP Capital Housing Choice Rent Public Rental Housing 10.427 Rural Rental Housing Service
ltem # _ Accout Description Fund Program Voucher Housing Loans Assistance Payments Coordinator
96200 Other General Expenses - - - - - -
96210 Compensated absences - - - - - -
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - - - - - -
96800 Severance expense - - - - - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses - - - - - -
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - - - - - -
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - - - - - -
96900 Total Operating Expenses - - - - - N
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses 2,341,655 115,693,368 7,668,056 60,297 532,899 -
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense - - - - - -
90000 Total Expenses - - - - - -
10010 Operating transfers in - - - 35,789 - -
10020 Operating transfers out (2,341,655) (115,693,368) (7,668,056) (60,297) (532,899) -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources (2,341,655) (115,693,368) (7.668,056) (24,508) (532,899) -
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses $ - $ - $ - $ 35,789 $ - $ -
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - - - 32,210 - -
11030 Beginning of year equity - - - (1,016,893) - 2,558
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - - - (2,558)

11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - - -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - - -
11190 Unit Months Available - - - - - -
11210 Number of unit months leased - - - - - -
11270 Excess cash - - - - - -
11620 Building Purchases - - - - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 101



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Line
Iltem # _ Accout Description

14.195 Section 8 -

70300 Net tenant rental revenue
70400 Tenant revenue - other
70500 Total tenant revenue

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants
70610 Capital Grants

70710 Management Fee

70720 Asset Management Fee
70730 Book-keeping Fee

70750 Other Fees

70700 Total Fee Revenue

70800 Other Government Grants

71100 Investment Income - unrestricted

71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets

71400 Fraud Recovery

71500 Other Revenue

71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets

72000 Investment income - restricted

70000 Total Revenue

91100 Administrative salaries

91200 Auditing fees

91300 Management fees

91310 Book-keeping Fee

91400 Advertising and Marketing
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative
91600 Office Expenses

91700 Legal expense

91800 Travel

91900 Other

91000 Total Operating - Administrative

92000 Asset Management Fee

92100 Tenant services - salaries
92200 Relocation costs

92300 Employee benefits

92400 Tenant services - other
92500 Total Tenant Services

93100 Water

93200 Electricity

93300 Gas

93400 Fuel

93600 Sewer

93800 Other utilities expense
93000 Total Utilities

94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor

94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts

94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance
94000 Total Maintenance

95100 Protective services - labor
95200 Other contract costs
95000 Total Protective Services

96110 Property Insurance
96120 Liability Insurance

96130 Workmen's compensation
96100 Total Insurance Premiums

14.218 Community

Development
Block

Grants/Entitlement

14.856 Section
8 - Moderate

14.870 Resident
Opportunity and
Supportive
Services - Service

14.871 Section 8
Housing Choice

14.879 Mainstream

Special Allocation Grants Rehabilitation Coordinators Vouchers Vouchers
$ 201,180 B N N 5 = -
8,614 - - - - -
209,794 - - - - -
394,726 - 101,272 57,751 9,213,848 3,009,945
- 431,770 - - - -
- - - - 5,692 817
1,385 18,023 - - 29,773,947 1
37 - - - - -
605,942 449,793 101,272 57,751 38,993,387 3,010,763
60,543 36,134 1,257 - 314,179 133,796
- - 34 - - 777
41,300 - 2,160 - 116,352 49,020
- - 1,350 - 72,720 30,638
36,375 10,606 162 - 120,508 49,595
1,506 - 263 - 23,304 6,696
1,929 - - - 2,044 849
715 - 3 - 1,746 731
9,988 - 186 - 109,761 34,096
152,356 46,740 5415 - 760,614 306,198
- - - 7,670 - -
2,288 - - 4,452 - -
2 - - 57,751 52 22
2,290 - - 69,873 52 22
7,044 - - - 223 135
4,016 - - - 1,202 716
15,368 - - - 98 61
22,969 - - - 276 151
49,397 - - - 1,799 1,063
47,881 - - - 39 17
7,116 365,907 1 - 351 156
45,147 - - - 4,549 2,277
24,054 - - - - 699
124,197 365,907 1 - 4,939 3,149
2,968 - 3 - 277 147
2,999 - 10 - 4,666 1,974
1,896 107 4 31 1,042 444
7,863 107 17 31 5,985 2,565

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 102



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31 , 2016

14.218 Community
Development

14.870 Resident
Opportunity and

Block 14.856 Section Supportive 14.871 Section 8
Line 14.195 Section 8 -  Grants/Entitlement 8 - Moderate Services - Service Housing Choice 14.879 Mainstream
ltem # _ Accout Description Special Allocation Grants Rehabilitation Coordinators Vouchers Vouchers
96200 Other General Expenses - - 1 - - -
96210 Compensated absences 9,319 - - 824 - -
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - - - - - -
96800 Severance expense 1,382 - - - - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses 10,701 - 1 824 - -
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) 72,162 - - - - -
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost 72,162 - - - - -
96900 Total Operating Expenses 418,967 412,754 5,434 70,728 773,389 312,997
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses 186,975 37,039 95,838 (12,977) 38,219,998 2,697,766
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - 84,618 - 7,958,838 2,658,584
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - 29,773,947 -
97400 Depreciation expense 21,967 - - - - -
90000 Total Expenses 440,934 412,754 90,052 70,728 38,506,174 2,971,581
10010 Operating transfers in - - - 14,004 1,391,615 174,991
10020 Operating transfers out - (14.919) - - -0 -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources - (14.919) - 14,004 1,391,615 174,991
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ 165,008 $ 22,120 $ 11,220 $ 1,027 $ 1,878,828 214,173
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - - - - - -
11030 Beginning of year equity 559,961 114,843 93,639 (11,342) 319,894 584,768
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - 9,489 (41,052) (271,344)
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - 1,485,036 -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - 672,634 -
11190 Unit Months Available 492 - - - 11,284 -
11210 Number of unit months leased 479 - - - 9,862 -

11270 Excess cash
11620 Building Purchases

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 103



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Accout Description

Net tenant rental revenue
Tenant revenue - other
Total tenant revenue

HUD PHA Operating Grants
Capital Grants
Management Fee

Asset Management Fee
Book-keeping Fee

Other Fees

Total Fee Revenue

Other Government Grants

Investment Income - unrestricted

Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale
Cost of Sale of Assets

Fraud Recovery

Other Revenue

Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets
Investment income - restricted

Total Revenue

Administrative salaries

Auditing fees

Management fees
Book-keeping Fee

Advertising and Marketing
Employee benefit contributions - administrative
Office Expenses

Legal expense

Travel

Other

Total Operating - Administrative

Asset Management Fee

Tenant services - salaries
Relocation costs
Employee benefits
Tenant services - other
Total Tenant Services

Water

Electricity

Gas

Fuel

Sewer

Other utilities expense
Total Utilities

Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor

Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other

Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts

Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance

Total Maintenance

Protective services - labor
Other contract costs
Total Protective Services

Property Insurance
Liability Insurance
Workmen's compensation
Total Insurance Premiums

81.042
Weatherization 93.568 Low
14.881 Moving-To- 14.896 Family Assistance for Income Home
Work D Self State/Local Business Low Income Energy

Program Program Programs Activities Persons Assistance
$ - $ - $ - $ 58959051 § - E
- - - 1,946,333 - -
- - - 60,905,384 - -
- 329,785 - - - -

54,759 - 3,059,202 1,084,961 765,041 1,160,036
- - - 3,221,784 - -
- - - (2,443,758) - -
71,202 - - - - -
2,063,803 - 187,081 13,582,108 - -

- - - 23,696,444 - -
365,728 - - 10,715,363 - -
2,555,492 329,785 3,246,283 110,762,286 765,041 1,160,036
4,530,635 - 637,373 5,827,477 7,660 3,398
25,443 - 2,100 21,665 - -

1,604,172 - - 2,631,593 - -
1,002,390 - - 617,626 - -
607 - 1,251 206,812 - -
1,974,873 49,016 227,591 3,132,431 2,875 967
373,449 - 17,118 404,520 4,894 11,200
36,291 - 2,093 184,892 - -
79,220 - 1,351 16,614 1,855 126
1,073,442 - 81,524 5,879,404 5,963 363
10,700,522 49,016 970,401 18,923,034 23,247 16,054
- - - 1,047,220 - -
1,938,504 171,941 - 42,602 - -
126,125 - - 13,275 - -
787,972 25,370 1,397 51,363 - -
3,763,081 86,485 481,236 184,167 - -
6,615,682 283,796 482,633 291,407 - -
3,244 - 681 1,704,778 - -
16,638 - 3,120 736,437 - -
- - - 39,067 - -
- - - 5,312 - -
1,461 - 306 2,813,886 - -
3,812 - 669 1,731,197 - -
25,155 - 4,776 7,030,677 - -
484 - 15 3,655,262 - -
4,758 - 2,048,617 7,865,041 594,863 857,166
62,553 - 7,450 2,740,522 - -
82,016 - 2,032 44,646 - -
149,811 - 2,058,114 14,305,471 594,863 857,166
- - - 218,715 - -
- - - 218,715 - -
3,882 - 466 527,886 - -
67,081 - 5,217 363,769 - -
22,632 602 1,753 225,908 24 8
93,595 602 7,436 1,117,563 24 8

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 104



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

81.042
Weatherization 93.568 Low
14.881 Moving-To- 14.896 Family Assistance for Income Home

Line Work D i Self Sufficiency State/Local Business Low Income Energy
Item #  Accout Description Program Program Programs Activities Persons Assistance
96200 Other General Expenses 42,357 - 254 3,580,393 - -
96210 Compensated absences 567,673 4,669 63,261 423,145 - -
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - - - 224,291 - -
96800 Severance expense 32,138 - 1,565 9,010 - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses 642,168 4,669 65,080 4,236,839 - -
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - 4,372,852 - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - - - 5,873,576 - -
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - - - 10,246,428 - -
96900 Total Operating Expenses 18,226,933 338,083 3,588,440 57,417,354 618,134 873,228
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses (15,671,441) (8,298) (342,157) 53,344,932 146,907 286,808
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - 146,766 - -
97300 Housing assistance payments 84,149,647 - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense - - - 8,646,572 - -
90000 Total Expenses 102,376,580 338,083 3,588,440 66,210,692 618,134 873,228
10010 Operating transfers in 125,886,752 - 1,459,291 36,256,701 100,047 -
10020  Operating transfers out (28,950,045) - (637,150) (26,636,016) (149,936) (295,485)
10100 Total Other Financing Sources 96,936,707 - 822,141 9,620,685 (49,889) (295,485)
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ (2,884,381) $ (8,298) $ 479,984 $ 54,172,279 $ 97,018 $ (8,677)
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - - - 16,737,823 - -
11030 Beginning of year equity 37,180,558 17,728 (813,559) 296,227,628 28,814 191,244

11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers 325,143 (9,489) - (9,249,035) - -
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - -

11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - - -
11190 Unit Months Available 97,308 - - 80,400 - -
11210 Number of unit months leased 99,151 - - 79,274 - -
11270 Excess cash - - - - - -
11620 Building Purchases - - - - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 105



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Ballinger Park Royal

Line 94.006 COMPONENT Other Homes Apartments
Item # Accout Description Americorp UNITS - BLENDED cocc Projects WA002000101 WA002000105
70300 Net tenant rental revenue - $ 3,499,857 $ - $ 104,033 $ 560,155 58,221
70400 Tenant revenue - other - - - 2,239 15,198 3,387
70500 Total tenant revenue - 3,499,857 - 106,272 575,353 61,608
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants - - - - - -
70610 Capital Grants - - - - - -
70710 Management Fee - - 4,654,052 - - -
70720 Asset Management Fee - - 342,480 - - -
70730 Book-keeping Fee - - 1,409,818 - - -
70750 Other Fees - - 728,966 - - -
70700 Total Fee Revenue - - 7,135,316 - - -
70800 Other Government Grants - - - - - -
71100 Investment Income - unrestricted - - - - - -
71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale - - - - - -
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets - - - - - -
71400 Fraud Recovery - - - - - -
71500 Other Revenue - 3,209,398 3,978,884 141,660 4,973 1,694
71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets - - 21,551 - - -
72000 Investment income - restricted - - 10,136 2,006 3,280 65
70000 Total Revenue - 6,709,255 11,145,887 249,938 583,606 63,367
91100 Administrative salaries - 206,731 4,969,220 38,327 96,279 14,982
91200 Auditing fees - 1,293 24,154 - 3,833 630
91300 Management fees - 144,532 - 25,533 166,655 21,058
91310 Book-keeping Fee - - - 4,155 11,813 2,040
91400 Advertising and Marketing - 16,639 17,811 - - -
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative - 67,527 1,257,701 26,197 49,310 6,174
91600 Office Expenses - 51,764 531,897 1,624 5,523 2,012
91700 Legal expense - 14,798 30,122 1,014 1,820 120
91800 Travel - 70 319,919 11 3,287 185
91900 Other - 1,190 1,273,885 14,959 22,439 3,642
91000 Total Operating - Administrative - 504,544 8,424,709 111,820 360,959 50,843
92000 Asset Management Fee - - - 5,460 16,800 2,760
92100 Tenant services - salaries - - - - - -
92200 Relocation costs - - - - - -
92300 Employee benefits - - - - - -
92400 Tenant services - other - - 147 - 510 60
92500 Total Tenant Services - - 147 - 510 60
93100 Water - 59,915 7,856 16,690 65,754 5,587
93200 Electricity - 72,081 60,578 13,534 15,207 2,022
93300 Gas - 31,727 358 1,268 - -
93400 Fuel - - - - - -
93600 Sewer - 125,788 4,644 16,683 77,112 9,297
93800 Other utilities expense - 46,267 13,429 11,707 73,099 6,002
93000 Total Utilities - 335,778 86,865 59,882 231,172 22,908
94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor - 148,639 1,507,831 60,752 152,927 19,897
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other - 469,903 41,476 - 30,212 28,219
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts - - 84,539 34,203 35,135 24,334
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance - - 1,306,308 - 49,733 6,135
94000 Total Maintenance - 618,542 2,940,154 94,955 268,007 78,585
95100 Protective services - labor - - - - -
95200 Other contract costs - - - - - -
95000 Total Protective Services - - - - - -
96110 Property Insurance - 55,860 8,994 3,799 16,892 1,838
96120 Liability Insurance - - 158,778 3,488 9,761 1,386
96130 Workmen's compensation - - 72,338 1,694 6,484 666
96100 Total Insurance Premiums - 55,860 240,110 8,981 33,137 3,890

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 106



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Line
Item #  Accout Description

96200 Other General Expenses

96210 Compensated absences

96300 Payments in lieu of taxes

96800 Severance expense

96000 Total Other General Expenses

96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term)
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost
96900 Total Operating Expenses

97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized

97300 Housing assistance payments

97350 HAP Portability-In

97400 Depreciation expense

90000 Total Expenses

10010 Operating transfers in

10020 Operating transfers out

10100 Total Other Financing Sources

10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses
11020 Required annual debt principal payments
11030 Beginning of year equity

11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers
11170 Administrative Fee Equity

11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity

11190  Unit Months Available

11210 Number of unit months leased

11270 Excess cash

11620 Building Purchases

Ballinger Park Royal
94.006 COMPONENT Other Homes Apartments
Americorp UNITS - BLENDED cocc Projects WA002000101 WA002000105
- 222,370 11,942 - 228 463
- - 806,093 - 20,087 1,934
- - - 561 17,797 -
- - 155,757 - 1,602 -
- 222,370 973,792 561 39,714 2,397
- 706,989 - - - -
- 997,968 - - 2,148 -
- 1,704,957 - - 2,148 -
- 3,442,051 12,665,777 281,659 952,447 161,443
- 3,267,204 (1,519,890) (31,721) (368,841) (98,076)
- - 684 - -
- 2,577,790 945,413 95,091 393,243 56,992
- 6,019,841 13,611,874 376,750 1,345,690 218,435
- - 3,460,134 185,721 971,361 132,980
- - (64,732) (836,803) (104,057) (2,950)
- - 3,395,402 (651,082) 867,304 130,030
$ - $ 689,414 $ 929,415 $  (777,894) § 105,220 $ (25,038)
- 518,060 - - 26,829 -
12,747 17,882,444 7,611,151 - 8,430,496 1,786,053
(12,747) 4,233,388 2,558 7,735,805 - -
- - - 570 1,625 264
- - - 570 1,697 263
- - - 424,909 300,899 61,724

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 107



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Paramount The Lake
Line House Il House Northridge Il Westminster Forest Glen College Place
Item # Accout Description WA 150 WA 152 WA 153 WA 156 WA002000201 WA002000203
70300 Net tenant rental revenue $ - $ 339818 $ 354,142 $ 250,044 $ 66,109 $ 427,835
70400 Tenant revenue - other - 9,156 4,574 15,596 2,359 13,825
70500 Total tenant revenue - 348,974 358,716 265,640 68,468 441,660
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants - - - - - -
70610 Capital Grants - - - - - -
70710 Management Fee - - - - - -
70720 Asset Management Fee - - - - - -
70730 Book-keeping Fee - - - - - -
70750 Other Fees - - - - - -
70700 Total Fee Revenue - - - - - -
70800 Other Government Grants - - - - - -
71100 Investment Income - unrestricted - - - - - -
71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale - - - - - -
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets - - - - - -
71400 Fraud Recovery - - - - - -
71500 Other Revenue - 4,061 2,860 935 1,004 5,188
71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets - - - - - -
72000 Investment income - restricted - 2,131 2,262 726 753 2,586
70000 Total Revenue - 355,166 363,838 267,301 70,225 449,434
91100 Administrative salaries - 84,905 76,896 34,771 18,866 74174
91200 Auditing fees - 3,833 3,838 1,644 1,097 2,767
91300 Management fees - 194,514 167,724 86,789 271,573 134,131
91310 Book-keeping Fee - 12,510 12,360 4,950 3,458 9,060
91400 Advertising and Marketing - - - - - -
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative - 34,911 6,324 31,738 16,902 33,795
91600 Office Expenses - 5,745 4,485 1,223 1,783 3,531
91700 Legal expense - 1,346 3,265 6,869 5,244 4,071
91800 Travel - 647 105 155 353 837
91900 Other - 16,374 17,684 11,217 5,519 19,919
91000 Total Operating - Administrative - 354,785 292,681 179,356 324,795 282,285
92000 Asset Management Fee - 16,800 16,800 10,800 4,800 12,120
92100 Tenant services - salaries - - - - - -
92200 Relocation costs - - - - - -
92300 Employee benefits - - - - - -
92400 Tenant services - other - 533 375 155 103 284
92500 Total Tenant Services - 533 375 155 103 284
93100 Water - 30,891 24,714 10,871 4,390 50,540
93200 Electricity - 24,775 27,500 44,459 7,711 9,360
93300 Gas - - 5,188 4,149 - -
93400 Fuel - - - - - -
93600 Sewer - 51,088 43,445 15,358 6,399 58,720
93800 Other utilities expense - 27,931 32,683 33,135 13,783 50,460
93000 Total Utilities - 134,685 133,530 107,972 32,283 169,080
94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor - 105,475 77,005 37,559 33,066 112,462
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other - 44,504 48,805 18,399 7,808 116,594
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts - 109,835 64,094 37,062 18,727 30,319
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance - 38,255 24,618 0 (0) 45,828
94000 Total Maintenance - 298,069 214,522 93,020 59,601 305,203
95100 Protective services - labor - - - - - -
95200 Other contract costs - 10,640 - - - -
95000 Total Protective Services - 10,640 - - - -
96110 Property Insurance - 7,745 10,948 3,108 1,879 9,114
96120 Liability Insurance - 7,881 7,926 3,703 2,249 7,055
96130 Workmen's compensation - 3,566 3,099 1,615 1,585 5,461
96100 Total Insurance Premiums - 19,192 21,973 8,426 5,713 21,630

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 108



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Paramount The Lake

Line House Il House Northridge Il Westminster Forest Glen College Place
Item # Accout Description WA 150 WA 152 WA 153 WA 156 WA 01 WA 3
96200 Other General Expenses - 2,898 2,874 1,170 824 2,150
96210 Compensated absences - 14,864 20,864 6,061 11,165 13,818
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - 14,402 14,320 5,885 - -
96800 Severance expense - - 4,586 - - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses - 32,164 42,644 13,116 11,989 15,968
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - 819 843 - 102 1,634
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - 819 843 - 102 1,634
96900 Total Operating Expenses - 867,687 723,368 412,845 439,386 808,204
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses - (512,521) (359,530) (145,544) (369,161) (358,770)
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - 2,080 - - 7,722 -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense - 296,995 376,181 99,056 98,814 324,553
90000 Total Expenses - 1,166,762 1,099,549 511,901 545,922 1,132,757
10010 Operating transfers in - 1,250,530 914,498 472,215 3,001,705 845,631
10020  Operating transfers out - (4,788) (75,320) (3,131) (1,719) (58,444)
10100 Total Other Financing Sources - 1,245,742 839,178 469,084 2,999,986 787,187
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ - $ 434,146 $ 103,467 224,484 $ 2,524,289 $ 103,864
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - 10,806 13,414 - 6,894 25,525
11030 Beginning of year equity - 6,012,383 7,108,192 1,273,285 2,127,179 8,133,797
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - 1,513,230 - -
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - - -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - - -
11190 Unit Months Available - 1,673 1,672 534 421 1,208
11210 Number of unit months leased - 1,668 1,651 521 344 1,207
11270 Excess cash - 273,977 268,315 126,225 255,035 249,085

11620 Building Purchases

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 109



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Accout Description

Net tenant rental revenue
Tenant revenue - other
Total tenant revenue

HUD PHA Operating Grants
Capital Grants
Management Fee

Asset Management Fee
Book-keeping Fee

Other Fees

Total Fee Revenue

Other Government Grants

Investment Income - unrestricted

Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale
Cost of Sale of Assets

Fraud Recovery

Other Revenue

Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets
Investment income - restricted

Total Revenue

Administrative salaries

Auditing fees

Management fees
Book-keeping Fee

Advertising and Marketing
Employee benefit contributions - administrative
Office Expenses

Legal expense

Travel

Other

Total Operating - Administrative

Asset Management Fee

Tenant services - salaries
Relocation costs
Employee benefits
Tenant services - other
Total Tenant Services

Water

Electricity

Gas

Fuel

Sewer

Other utilities expense
Total Utilities

Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor

Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other
Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts
Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance
Total Maintenance

Protective services - labor
Other contract costs
Total Protective Services

Property Insurance
Liability Insurance
Workmen's compensation
Total Insurance Premiums

Kirkland Seola

Place Island Crest Casa Juanita Crossing Eastbridge Salmon Creek
WA002000210 WAO002000213 _WA002000251 WAO002000340 WA002000341 WA002000343

$ 55,865 $ 178,790 $ 223,276 $ - $ - $ -

1,860 4,322 11,289 - - -

57,725 183,112 234,565 - - -

238 743 1,655 - - -

355 635 1,582 - - -

58,318 184,490 237,802 - - -

5,450 37,743 47,242 - - -

247 819 2,190 - - -

17,816 38,924 74,871 - - -

698 1,530 7,155 - - -

411 15,493 11,705 - - -

296 1,131 3,218 - - -

367 129 2,094 - - -

203 534 1,019 - - -

1,336 6,864 16,186 - - -

26,824 103,167 165,680 - - -

1,080 3,600 9,600 - - -

- 397 - - - -

44 77 207 - - -

44 474 207 - - -

2,197 8,902 24,419 - - -

708 2,066 44,024 - - -

- - 14,525 - - -

3,543 9,001 40,065 - - -

3,683 11,263 15,047 - - -

10,131 31,232 138,080 - - -

7,142 27,585 64,334 - - -

6,738 11,351 27,553 - - -

1,008 34,468 21,089 - - -

2,644 13,400 19,619 - - -

17,532 86,804 132,595 - - -

925 2,162 3,796 - - -

569 1,878 4,526 - - -

377 989 2,495 - - -

1,871 5,029 10,817 - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 110



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Kirkland Seola
Place Island Crest Casa Juanita Crossing Eastbridge Salmon Creek
Item # Accout Description WA002000210 _WA002000213 _WA002000251 WA002000340 WAO002000341 WA002000343
96200 Other General Expenses 185 60 1,659 - - -
96210 Compensated absences 1,480 6,276 7,610 - - -
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - - - - - -
96800 Severance expense - 1,244 - - - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses 1,665 7,580 9,269 - - -
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - - 1,750 - - -
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - - 1,750 - - -
96900 Total Operating Expenses 59,147 237,886 467,998 - - -
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses (829) (53,396) (230,196) - - -
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense 14,495 137,771 126,743 - - -
90000 Total Expenses 73,642 375,657 594,741 - - -
10010 Operating transfers in 160,418 107,491 340,994 - - -
10020 Operating transfers out (10,481) (4,856) (42,807) - - -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources 149,937 102,635 298,187 - - -
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses  $ 134,613 $ (88,532) $ (58,752) $ - $ - $ -
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - - 29,345 - - -
11030 Beginning of year equity 1,427,238 5,516,869 2,376,856 - - -
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - - - -
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - N - N -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - N - N -
11190  Unit Months Available 72 360 960 - - -
11210 Number of unit months leased 72 202 944 - - -
11270 Excess cash 67,935 66,403 185,382 - - -
11620 Building Purchases 4,596 - - - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 111



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Line
ltem#  Accout Description

70300 Net tenant rental revenue
70400 Tenant revenue - other
70500 Total tenant revenue

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants
70610 Capital Grants

70710 Management Fee

70720 Asset Management Fee
70730 Book-keeping Fee

70750 Other Fees

70700 Total Fee Revenue

70800 Other Government Grants

71100 Investment Income - unrestricted

71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets

71400 Fraud Recovery

71500 Other Revenue

71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets

72000 Investment income - restricted

70000 Total Revenue

91100 Administrative salaries

91200 Auditing fees

91300 Management fees

91310 Book-keeping Fee

91400 Advertising and Marketing
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative
91600 Office Expenses

91700 Legal expense

91800 Travel

91900 Other

91000 Total Operating - Administrative

92000 Asset Management Fee

92100 Tenant services - salaries
92200 Relocation costs

92300 Employee benefits

92400 Tenant services - other
92500 Total Tenant Services

93100 Water

93200 Electricity

93300 Gas

93400 Fuel

93600 Sewer

93800 Other utilities expense
93000 Total Utilities

94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor

94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts

94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance
94000 Total Maintenance

95100 Protective services - labor
95200 Other contract costs
95000 Total Protective Services

96110 Property Insurance

96120 Liability Insurance

96130 Workmen's compensation
96100 Total Insurance Premiums

Sixth Place Boulevard Riverton

Zephyr Apartments Fairwind Manor Yardley Arms Terrace
WA002000344  WAO002000345 _WA002000346 WA002000350 WA002000352  WA002000354
$ - $ - $ - $ 193,963 $ 174,635 $ 79,267
- - - 7,001 6,977 2,282
- - - 200,964 181,612 81,549
- - - 2,497 2,422 623
- - - 1,291 1,022 686
- - - 204,752 185,056 82,858
- - - 56,627 45,807 16,515
- - - 1,917 1,833 877
- - - 77,433 70,070 30,621
- - - 6,263 5,910 3,045
- - - 25,034 18,877 11,859
- - - 3,751 2,980 71
- - - 721 1,255 2,645
- - - 441 160 48
- - - 18,035 17,035 7,489
- - - 190,222 163,927 73,810
- - - 8,400 8,040 3,840
- - - 242 - 10
- - - 332 173 673
- - - 574 173 683
- - - 16,525 17,559 7,770
- - - 11,428 20,973 4,760

- - - - 4,510 -
- - - 40,768 8,518 23,043
- - - 9,578 12,195 9,378
- - - 78,299 63,755 44,951
- - - 67,515 86,120 42,900
- - - 8,265 14,906 13,381
- - - 54,098 44,597 23,471
- - - 23,050 18,974 11,710
- - - 152,928 164,597 91,462
- - - 6,500 3,611 62,670
- - - 6,500 3,611 62,670
- - - 3,925 4,216 2,421
- - - 4,011 3,593 2,162
- - - 2,339 2,240 1,155
- - - 10,275 10,049 5,738

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 112



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31 , 2016

Sixth Place Boulevard Riverton
Line Zephyr Apartments Fairwind Manor Yardley Arms Terrace
Item#  Accout Description WAO002000344  WAO002000345 _WA002000346 WA002000350 WA002000352  WA002000354
96200 Other General Expenses - - - 1,469 1,387 660
96210 Compensated absences - - - 11,927 8,515 4,672
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - - - - - -
96800 Severance expense - - - - - 625
96000 Total Other General Expenses - - - 13,396 9,902 5,957
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - - - 409 - -
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - - - 409 - -
96900 Total Operating Expenses - - - 461,003 424,054 289,111
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses - - - (256,251) (238,998) (206,253)
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense - - - 216,475 159,848 126,818
90000 Total Expenses - - - 677,479 583,902 415,929
10010 Operating transfers in - - - 417,014 381,407 201,432
10020 Operating transfers out - - - (5,482) (1,650) -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources - - - 411,532 379,757 201,432
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ - $ - $ - $ (61,194) § (19,089) $ (131,639)
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - - - 5,403 5,030 -
11030 Beginning of year equity - - - 4,232,995 3,247,152 3,223,452
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - - - -
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - - -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - - -
11190 Unit Months Available - - - 839 804 384
11210 Number of unit months leased - - - 837 780 384
11270 Excess cash - - - 174,744 130,760 91,719

11620 Building Purchases -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 113



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Valli Kee Springwood Cascade Mardis Gras

Line Nia Homes Apartments Apartments Shelcor I
ltem#  Accout Description WA002000355 _WA002000401 WA002000402 WA002000403 WA002000409 _WA002000450
70300 Net tenant rental revenue $ - $ 503,628 $ - $ 424,689 $ 17,762 $ -
70400 Tenant revenue - other - 9,358 - 42,892 627 -
70500 Total tenant revenue - 512,986 - 467,581 18,389 -
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants - - - - - -
70610 Capital Grants - - - - - -
70710 Management Fee - - - - - -
70720 Asset Management Fee - - - - - -
70730 Book-keeping Fee - - - - - -
70750 Other Fees - - - - - -
70700 Total Fee Revenue - - - - - -
70800 Other Government Grants - - - - - -
71100 Investment Income - unrestricted - - - - - -
71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale - - - - - -
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets - - - - - -
71400 Fraud Recovery - - - - - -
71500 Other Revenue - 4,643 - 9,645 253 -
71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets - - - - - -
72000 Investment income - restricted - 3,156 - 2,253 10 -
70000 Total Revenue - 520,785 - 479,479 18,652 -
91100 Administrative salaries - 82,593 - 104,890 3,801 -
91200 Auditing fees - 3,119 - 2,956 221 -
91300 Management fees - 138,802 - 96,226 53,851 -
91310 Book-keeping Fee - 10,313 - 9,630 720 -
91400 Advertising and Marketing - - - - - -
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative - 55,093 - 42,578 4,650 -
91600 Office Expenses - 4,218 - 4,322 138 -
91700 Legal expense - 303 - 3,363 - -
91800 Travel - 1,090 - 644 3 -
91900 Other - 25,614 - 21,546 286 -
91000 Total Operating - Administrative - 321,145 - 286,155 63,670 -
92000 Asset Management Fee - 13,680 - 12,960 320 -
92100 Tenant services - salaries - - - - - -
92200 Relocation costs - - - - - -
92300 Employee benefits - 394 - - 311 -
92400 Tenant services - other - 326 - 279 21 -
92500 Total Tenant Services - 720 - 279 332 -
93100 Water - 55,606 - 28,071 1,491 -
93200 Electricity - 17,421 - 13,757 519 -
93300 Gas - 23,299 - - - -
93400 Fuel - - - - - -
93600 Sewer - 96,961 - 79,942 2,548 -
93800 Other utilities expense - 70,572 - 47,346 4,391 -
93000 Total Utilities - 263,859 - 169,116 8,949 -
94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor - 111,082 - 128,906 6,496 -
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other - 44,620 - 29,686 5,067 -
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts - 47,090 - 26,108 5,788 -
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance - 52,814 - 50,583 2,250 -
94000 Total Maintenance - 255,606 - 235,283 19,601 -
95100 Protective services - labor - - - - - -
95200 Other contract costs - - - - - -
95000 Total Protective Services - - - - - -
96110 Property Insurance - 16,197 - 10,758 684 -
96120 Liability Insurance - 8,097 - 7,535 699 -
96130 Workmen's compensation - 5,765 - 6,107 260 -
96100 Total Insurance Premiums - 30,059 - 24,400 1,643 -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 114



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Valli Kee Springwood Cascade Mardis Gras

Line Nia Homes Apartments Apartments Shelcor [}
Item # Accout Description WA002000355 WA002000401 WA002000402 WA002000403 WAO00; WA002000450
96200 Other General Expenses - 2,452 - 2,347 156 -
96210 Compensated absences - 24,750 - 23,395 1,785 -
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - 18,668 - 19,371 1,480 -
96800 Severance expense - - - - - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses - 45,870 - 45,113 3,421 -
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - 1,463 - 1,708 - -
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - 1,463 - 1,708 - -
96900 Total Operating Expenses - 932,402 - 775,014 97,936 -
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses - (411,617) - (295,535) (79,284) -
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense - 679,889 - 426,734 17,808 -
90000 Total Expenses - 1,612,291 - 1,201,748 115,744 -
10010 Operating transfers in - 1,438,111 - 390,470 617,532 -
10020 Operating transfers out - (250,000) - (65,000) (13,223) -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources - 1,188,111 - 325,470 604,309 -
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ - $ 96,605  § - $ (396799) $ 507,217 $ -
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - - - 24,779 - -
11030 Beginning of year equity - 14,995,669 - 11,411,633 333,080 -
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - - - -
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - - -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - - -
11190 Unit Months Available - 1,380 - 1,296 96 -
11210 Number of unit months leased - 1,367 - 1,253 89 -
11270 Excess cash - 293,881 - 236,292 63,324 -
11620 Building Purchases - 298,856 - - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 115



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Vantage Firwood Burndale Wayland Southridge

Line Point Circle Homes Arms Seventeen |l House
Item#  Accout Description WA002000452 _WA002000503 _WAOQO: 4 _WAO00 WA002000551 _WAO002000552
70300 Net tenant rental revenue $ - $ 191,500 $ 278,634 $ 173,901 $ - $ 188,712
70400 Tenant revenue - other - 3,564 4,443 6,518 - 4,173
70500 Total tenant revenue - 195,064 283,077 180,419 - 192,885
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants - - - - - -
70610 Capital Grants - - - - - -
70710 Management Fee - - - - - -
70720 Asset Management Fee - - - - - -
70730 Book-keeping Fee - - - - - -
70750 Other Fees - - - - - -
70700 Total Fee Revenue - - - - - -
70800 Other Government Grants - - - - - -
71100 Investment Income - unrestricted - - - - - -
71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale - - - - - -
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets - - - - - -
71400 Fraud Recovery - - - - - -
71500 Other Revenue - 1,919 2,024 1,841 - 29,443
71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets - - - - - -
72000 Investment income - restricted - 2,097 977 739 - 1,368
70000 Total Revenue - 199,080 286,078 182,999 - 223,696
91100 Administrative salaries - 42,000 45,051 29,864 - 37,919
91200 Auditing fees - 1,370 1,370 1,833 - 2,190
91300 Management fees - 210,551 159,546 59,606 - 73,459
91310 Book-keeping Fee - 4,418 4,463 5,993 - 7,035
91400 Advertising and Marketing - - - - - -
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative - 12,966 13,628 11,408 - 25,375
91600 Office Expenses - 2,890 1,672 1,201 - 1,567
91700 Legal expense - 1,410 431 302 - -
91800 Travel - 246 325 51 - 1,042
91900 Other - 17,401 9,058 11,833 - 21,871
91000 Total Operating - Administrative - 293,252 235,444 122,091 - 170,458
92000 Asset Management Fee - 6,000 6,000 8,040 - 9,600
92100 Tenant services - salaries - - - - - -
92200 Relocation costs - - - - - -
92300 Employee benefits - - - - - -
92400 Tenant services - other - 129 197 173 - 206
92500 Total Tenant Services - 129 197 173 - 206
93100 Water - 20,817 24,742 9,047 - 11,035
93200 Electricity - 9,714 11,675 11,420 - 21,961
93300 Gas - 27,021 36,136 14,103 - 6,242
93400 Fuel - - - - - -
93600 Sewer - 42,621 46,079 21,175 - 16,490
93800 Other utilities expense - 29,628 29,892 14,403 - 10,278
93000 Total Utilities - 129,801 148,524 70,148 - 66,006
94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor - 62,053 53,257 49,454 - 83,698
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other - 19,236 13,835 18,149 - 18,727
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts - 28,486 23,480 43,278 - 45,833
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance - 22,430 19,950 13,759 - 27,838
94000 Total Maintenance - 132,205 110,522 124,640 - 176,096
95100 Protective services - labor - - - - -
95200 Other contract costs - - - - - -
95000 Total Protective Services - - - - - -
96110 Property Insurance - 4,664 5,470 4,473 - 5,408
96120 Liability Insurance - 3,622 3,570 3,771 - 4,388
96130 Workmen's compensation - 2,568 2,635 1,822 - 2,536
96100 Total Insurance Premiums - 10,854 11,675 10,066 - 12,332

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 116



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31 , 2016

Vantage Firwood Burndale Wayland Plaza Southridge
Line Point Circle Homes Arms Seventeen Il House
Item#  Accout Description WA002000452 _WAO002000503 _WAO002000504 WAO002000550 _WA002000551 _WAO002000552
96200 Other General Expenses - 1,070 1,080 1,377 - 1,675
96210 Compensated absences - 17,325 13,110 5,263 - 17,449
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - 6,424 6,152 6,436 - -
96800 Severance expense - - - - - -
96000 Total Other General Expenses - 24,819 20,342 13,076 - 19,124
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - - - - - -
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - 1,016 710 88 - 668
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - 1,016 710 88 - 668
96900 Total Operating Expenses - 598,076 533,414 348,322 - 454,490
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses - (398,996) (247,336) (165,323) - (230,794)
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - - - - -
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - - -
97400 Depreciation expense - 280,267 231,122 146,450 - 248,663
90000 Total Expenses - 878,343 764,536 494,772 - 703,153
10010 Operating transfers in - 2,060,387 1,577,850 241,057 - 312,569
10020 Operating transfers out - (79,680) (188,453) (3,410) - (3,885)
10100 Total Other Financing Sources - 1,980,707 1,389,397 237,647 - 308,684
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ - $ 1,301,444 $ 910,939 $ (74,126)  $ - $  (170,773)
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - 11,738 12,110 7,266 - 6,335
11030 Beginning of year equity - 4,819,270 4,800,402 3,146,222 - 4,988,407
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - - - - - -
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - - -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - - - - - -
11190 Unit Months Available - 600 600 1,219 - 959
11210 Number of unit months leased - 595 599 1,198 - 955
11270 Excess cash - 213,441 202,518 106,982 - 185,354
11620 Building Purchases - 4,098 2,951 - - -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 117



Housing Authority of the County of King
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2016

Casa COMPONENT UNITS -

Line Madrona Il DISCRETELY

Item # Accout Description WA002000553 SUBTOTAL Elimination TOTAL AUTHORITY PRESENTED
70300 Net tenant rental revenue $ - $ 67,505,067 - $ 67,505,067 18,598,835
70400 Tenant revenue - other - 2,126,587 - 2,126,587 169,451
70500 Total tenant revenue - 69,631,654 - 69,631,654 18,768,286
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants - 138,499,905 - 138,499,905 -
70610 Capital Grants - 310,501 - 310,501 -
70710 Management Fee - 4,654,052 (4,654,052) 0 -
70720 Asset Management Fee - 342,480 (342,480) - -
70730  Book-keeping Fee - 1,409,818 (1,409,818) - -
70750 Other Fees - 728,966 - 728,966 -
70700 Total Fee Revenue - 7,135,316 (6,406,350) 728,966 -
70800 Other Government Grants - 7,148,965 - 7,148,965 -
71100 Investment Income - unrestricted - - - - 191,486
71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale - 3,221,784 - 3,221,784 -
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets - (2,443,758) - (2,443,758) -
71400 Fraud Recovery - 77,611 - 77,611 -
71500 Other Revenue - 53,034,951 (5,063,047) 47,971,904 15,616,717
71600 Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets - 23,717,995 - 23,717,995 -
72000 Investment income - restricted - 11,121,244 (1,704,957) 9,416,287 132
70000 Total Revenue - 311,456,168 (13,174,354) 298,281,814 34,576,621
91100 Administrative salaries - 17,723,105 - 17,723,105 1,229,037
91200 Auditing fees - 114,050 - 114,050 73,982
91300 Management fees - 6,758,883 (4,714,142) 2,044,741 1,085,985
91310 Book-keeping Fee - 1,852,243 (1,852,243) - -
91400 Advertising and Marketing - 243,120 - 243,120 14,522
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative - 7,384,655 - 7,384,655 877,104
91600 Office Expenses - 1,480,532 - 1,480,532 211,094
91700 Legal expense - 309,787 - 309,787 44,917
91800 Travel - 433,736 - 433,736 9,215
91900 Other - 8,756,109 (601,728) 8,154,381 186,412
91000 Total Operating - Administrative - 45,056,220 (7,168,113) 37,888,107 3,732,268
92000 Asset Management Fee - 1,224,720 (1,224,720) - 90,464
92100 Tenant services - salaries - 2,160,717 - 2,160,717 -
92200 Relocation costs - 139,400 - 139,400 -
92300 Employee benefits - 874,196 - 874,196 -
92400 Tenant services - other - 4,577,800 - 4,577,800 614
92500 Total Tenant Services - 7,752,113 - 7,752,113 614
93100 Water - 2,221,494 - 2,221,494 766,950
93200 Electricity - 1,209,782 - 1,209,782 258,133
93300 Gas - 207,593 - 207,593 94,871
93400 Fuel - 5,312 - 5,312 -
93600 Sewer - 3,670,468 - 3,670,468 869,123
93800 Other utilities expense - 2,335,224 - 2,335,224 641,444
93000 Total Utilities - 9,649,873 - 9,649,873 2,630,521
94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor - 6,749,853 - 6,749,853 1,088,570
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - material and other - 12,781,410 - 12,781,410 390,359
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contracts - 3,699,540 - 3,699,540 910,958
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary maintenance - 1,903,344 - 1,903,344 -
94000 Total Maintenance - 25,134,147 - 25,134,147 2,389,887
95100 Protective services - labor - - - - 8,380
95200 Other contract costs - 302,136 - 302,136 3,250
95000 Total Protective Services - 302,136 - 302,136 11,630
96110 Property Insurance - 720,905 - 720,905 240,093
96120 Liability Insurance - 696,364 - 696,364 40,775
96130 Workmen's compensation - 382,247 - 382,247 27,330
96100 Total Insurance Premiums - 1,799,516 - 1,799,516 308,198

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 118



Housing Authority of the County of King

Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31 , 2016

Casa COMPONENT UNITS -

Line Madrona Il DISCRETELY

Item # Accout Description WA002000553 SUBTOTAL Elimination TOTAL AUTHORITY PRESENTED
96200 Other General Expenses - 3,883,501 (3,076,564) 806,937 689,335
96210 Compensated absences - 2,107,333 - 2,107,333 -
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes - 335,787 - 335,787 67,272
96800 Severance expense - 207,909 - 207,909 -
96000 Total Other General Expenses - 6,534,530 (3,076,564) 3,457,966 756,607
96710 Interest on mortgage (or bonds) payable - 5,079,841 (706,989) 4,372,852 287,353
96720 Interest on notes payable (short and long term) - 6,957,064 (997,968) 5,959,096 6,336,823
96700 Total interest expense and amortization cost - 12,036,905 (1,704,957) 10,331,948 6,624,176
96900 Total Operating Expenses - 109,490,160 (13,174,354) 96,315,807 16,544,365
97000 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses - 201,966,007 - 201,966,007 18,032,256
97200 Casualty losses - non-capitalized - 157,252 - 157,252 -
97300 Housing assistance payments - 94,851,687 - 94,851,687 -
97350 HAP Portability-In - 29,773,947 - 29,773,947 -
97400 Depreciation expense - 16,745,750 - 16,745,750 11,668,748
90000 Total Expenses - 251,018,797 (13,174,354) 237,844,443 28,213,113
10010 Operating transfers in - 184,800,697 (184,800,697) - -
10020 Operating transfers out - (184,800,697) 184,800,697 - -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources - - (0.00) (0) -
10000 Excess (Deficiency) Of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses _$ - $ 60,437,373 - $ 60,437,373 6,363,508
11020 Required annual debt principal payments - 17,473,567 - 17,473,567 -
11030 Beginning of year equity - 458,376,813 - 458,376,813 86,896,294
11040 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers - 4,233,387 - 4,233,387 (7,176,882)
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - 1,485,036 - 1,485,036 -
11180 Housing Assistance Fee Equity - 672,634 - 672,634 -
11190  Unit Months Available - 207,020 - 207,020 10,788
11210 Number of unit months leased - 205,862 - 205,862 10,593
11270 Excess cash - 3,978,904 - 3,978,904 -
11620 Building Purchases - 310,501 - 310,501 -

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 119



Actuai Moderiization U.5. Department of Housing OMB Approval No, 2577-0157 (cup. 173102017
. and Lirban Development
Coet Certificale Difce of Public and Indian Housing

Comprehensive Improvement Assistance Program (ClAP)
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

Public reporting burden for tnis callection of information is estrnated to average 2 heurs per response. includirg the tme for myiewing instructions, searching
existing cala sources, gathering and maintaining the data nesded, and ccmnpisting and resiswmng the collection of information. Send communts regarding this
burdan astimate or any olher aspedt of this collection of information, Including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Repors AManagement Dficsr,
Papersork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Office of Information TM‘IW LLE. Department of Fowsiag and Urban Developmert, Washington, D.C.
20410-3600. This egency may not cond ol of Sponser, and a parson iz not raquitad o respond to, & collsction of informaton unkees thal collection displays

a8 wald OMB condrol frmber,

Do not send this farm to the above address.

This collection of INormation requires that each Hous™g Authosly (HA) subenil informatian to enablz HUD Lo in@iate the fiscal closeos prooess, The information
will b2 ugad by HUD ta geterming whether the madermeation grant s ready 1o be audtad and siesed oub. The infornation is essental for sudit varlicabion and
fiscal close out. Responses o the collection ars required by regulalion. The infermetion requested does not lend ilsef to canfidentiality.

Hb e Maderm: zation Project Nufnber

HaAa COUNTY OF KING- WA19PDO2504 12
The HA hereby carifies to the Deparment of Housing and Urban Development as follows:
1. That the total amourt of Medemization Ces! (heréin cullad th-a “Bctual Hndammaﬂm Cost' }L‘I' Hu Mndamnum Grmt :sas shawn ‘nacw

A. Griginal Funds Approved s 4080,127.00

B Fonds Dsbursed . "; 7 4,080,127.00

c__ Funds E:..:.-Er'_de-:l mcru_a_l Mademization Codt) B - | _-5 4,050,127.00 o
D. Amu;ntlu be Recaptured c.';:}_ - _'|_ - o | s 0.00

E. Excess of Funds Disbursed {B_-E}_ A | 5 S 000

2. That all modemizatiaon wark it connection with the Modemization Grant haa bean compeated;
3. That the entire Actual ¥lodemization Cost or liabilities therafor incurrod by the HA have bean fully paid;

4, That there are no undischarged mechanics’, lsboress’, contractors', or malerial-men’s kzns against such modemization wark
on file in any pubfic office whare the sama shouid ba flad in order t be valid agalnst such modemization work; and

5. That the time In which such ilens could baﬁadhhmred.

i haraby carbiy (nal il the mformalian staled nerein, as wedl a5 any inlcrmation grov: ed in he accompanimant herewin, i3 (e and Rcourata,
Warning: HUDwi" prmmlﬂ rali.a {:.'nlmg and stoements. Convicton may rasull in criminal andfor civil peraifics. {168 US.C 1001, 1020, 101E; 31 US.C. 3728, 3802

Sagrature l:lf Etn:cuhw Eln'!llﬂnf & Ua'l"

X f,'
Stephen J. Normzn i g/.d_h o

For HUD Usa Only

The Cost Certificate is approved ﬂ:r audit:
ﬁ.pprl}'q.le rAJdnt (Director, H’w af F'uhlu: Housing / ONAP Administrator) |:H£

X ;mzw | &t jri o

The audited costs agree with Ihe costs shown above:

Werified: |Creskgnated HUD Offical) Dt
X o o
Approved [Director, OFiea of Public Housing | ONAR -:Irnl.'lsh:b:-r. ! D
X |

foim HUD-53004 (172014

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 120



2. H =5 FIPE 1.5, Department of Housing ObB A, | M. 2577-0157 . 1r31Em
Actuai Modgernization = Urban Developmant pRre e ?1
Cesi Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing

Comprehensive improvement Assistance Program [CIAP)
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

Public reporting burden for this cal'ection of information '8 estmatad to everage 2 hours per respense, ncluding the tme for raviewing nstructions, searching
exigling data souces, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and cormpleting and reviewing the eoliection of information. Send comments reaarding this
burden estimate or ary other aspect of this colectlon of yiommation, incuding scagestions for reducing this burden, to the Repons Mansgement Officer,
Papenwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157, Office of Information Techaolegy, U.5. Depadmart of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C,
znd.mﬂ. This agency rmay not cordudd er sponsor, and 3 person is nol fequined to respond Lo, a callsction of Pfermation unless that cabedion displays

a viid candrol numbar,

Do not send this form to the above addresa,

This collection of irformation requires that each Housing Authority (HA) submit infarmation to enal!s HUD to inliasle the fiscal cossout process. The infommation
wiil b used by HUD to determine whether th2 modemization grant i ready to be audited and closed out. The infomation |$ essentis for audit verfication and
fincal close oul. Fesponses o the gollact'an are required by requlation. Tha infarmation requested doss not lerd iself to confentiakty.

Hif Mame: ademization Project Mumber:

HA COURTY OF EING F’JA‘;BF!M!SH-‘I.‘I

The HA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:
1, That the total amount of Modemization Cost (herein called the “Adual Modemization Cost™) of the Modemization Grant, is as shown belaw:

A OignaiFundsspproved s wasaso0

o FundsDsoused s 34641900

C. FundsExpended (ActusiModemizatonCos | s 346419.00

0. Amounttobe Recspured (AC) s 00 o

E. Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) ) . I 5 0.00 -

. That all medernization werk in connection with the Medernization Grant has been completed;
That the entire Actual Modemnization Cost or lisbilities therefor incurmed by the HA have been fully paid;

3.
4. Thak there are no undischargaed mechanics', laborers', conlraciors’, or materlal-men's Eens against such modernization work
on file in amy pusliz offics whaie the same should be Red in order fo be valid against such modernization work; and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired.

k3

| herahy .5'_-“1'1'3" that al’ the indeimaiian ;Iza_l,au:i harain, as l..-_?lln-a-:g'_an', Imformation provided in 158 sscamp animent hapawith, I; ﬁ and ac::]rata.
Warning: HLD will prosecuts falge clzims and statemancs. Convilion may result in crinc'nal endéor ol peradies. (18 ULS.C. 1001, 1010, 1042 31 LLE.C. 3728, 3802)
Signaiure of Exaculive !_:ﬁrr.-dnr & Dale:
_/" i
"L
x /T

Stephen J. Norman

i
For HUD tise Oniy ) o

The Cos ﬂTfEte is :pprmred for audit:
Azproved for Audit (Director, Office of Pubic Housing ' OMNAP Administrator) D

x V7 sy ™ ARt s

The auditad costs agres with the costs shown above:

Verified: [Designated HUD Official) im,
S —

Approved: {Director, Ofice of Public Housing  ONAP sAdministratar) Dz
.S i

Ferm HUD-B3004 {1/2014)

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 121



ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office

Public Records requests | PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov

Main telephone | (360) 902-0370

Toll-free Citizen Hotline | (866) 902-3900

Website | www.sa0.wa.gov

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 122


http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
mailto:PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
file:///C:/Users/cameronl/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/P7TI2Y9E/www.sao.wa.gov

Office of the Washington State Auditor

Pat McCarthy

Accountability Audit Report

Housing Authority of the County of
King
(King County Housing Authority)

For the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Published January 4, 2018
Report No. 1020479




Pat McCarthy

January 4, 2018

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

Report on Accountability

Thank you for the opportunity to work with you to promote accountability, integrity and
openness in government. The State Auditor’s Office takes seriously our role of providing state
and local governments with assurance and accountability as the independent auditor of public
accounts. In this way, we strive to help government work better, cost less, deliver higher value
and earn greater public trust.

Independent audits provide essential accountability and transparency for Housing Authority
operations.  This information is valuable to management, the governing body and public
stakeholders when assessing the government’s stewardship of public resources.

The attached comprises our report on the Housing Authority’s compliance and safeguarding of
public resources. Our independent audit report describes the overall results and conclusions for
areas we examined. We appreciate the opportunity to work with your staff and we value your
cooperation during the audit.

Sincerely,
— —— P
%t 7/&’@:??
Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 * Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 ¢ (360) 902-0370 « Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov



TABLE OF CONTENTS

AUGTE SUMIMEIY ..t b bbbttt e bbbt b bt et et et et be bbb 4
L E] oL C=To (=T 00 OSSR 5
Information About The HouSING AUTNOTITY ........c.ooiiiiiiiiieee e 6
ADbout The State AUdIitor’s OFFICE.......cuiiiiiiiieie i 7

Washington State Auditor’s Office Page 3



AUDIT SUMMARY

Results in brief

In the areas we audited, Housing Authority operations complied with applicable requirements
and provided adequate safeguarding of public resources. The Housing Authority also complied
with state laws and regulations and its own policies and procedures in the areas we examined.

About the audit

This report contains the results of our independent accountability audit of the King County
Housing Authority from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016.

Management is responsible for ensuring compliance and adequate safeguarding of public
resources from fraud, loss or abuse. This includes the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal controls relevant to these objectives.

Our audit involved performing procedures to obtain evidence about the Housing Authority’s uses
of public resources, compliance with state laws and regulations and its own policies and
procedures, and internal controls over such matters.

In keeping with general auditing practices, we do not examine every transaction, activity or area.
Instead, the areas examined were those representing the highest risk of fraud, loss, abuse, or
noncompliance. The following areas were examined during this audit period:

e Authority for operations e Insurance/risk management

e Cash receipting e Payroll/personnel

e Disbursements e Credit card/fuel card purchases
e Investments e Financial condition

e User access policies and controls over
tenant systems

Washington State Auditor’s Office Page 4



RELATED REPORTS

Financial

Our opinion on the Housing Authority’s financial statements and compliance with federal grant
program requirements is provided in a separate report, which includes the Housing Authority’s
financial statements. That report is available on our website,
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.

Federal grant programs

We evaluated internal controls and tested compliance with the federal program requirements, as
applicable, for the Housing Authority’s major federal programs, which are listed in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs section of the separate financial statement and single audit
report. That report is available on our website, http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.

Washington State Auditor’s Office Page 5


http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch/?qItemType=1&qItemDesc=Housing%20Authority%20of%20the%20County%20of%20King&qItemValue=2635
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch/?qItemType=1&qItemDesc=Housing%20Authority%20of%20the%20County%20of%20King&qItemValue=2635

INFORMATION ABOUT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY

The Housing Authority of the County of King, doing business as King County Housing
Authority, was created in 1939 in response to the Federal Housing Act of 1937. The Housing
Authority’s jurisdiction encompasses an area exceeding 2,134 square miles throughout King
County, except within the cities of Seattle and Renton, which have their own housing authorities.
The Housing Authority operates out of a central office in Tukwila and several other offices
throughout the county. The Housing Authority's purpose is to provide housing assistance to low-
income households.

A five-member Board of Commissioners governs the Housing Authority. Commissioners are
appointed by the King County Executive and confirmed by the King County Council to serve
five-year terms. The Board appoints management to oversee the Housing Authority’s daily
operations as well as its approximately 390 employees. For fiscal year 2016, the Housing
Authority operated on an annual budget of approximately $235.4 million.

Contact information related to this report

Address: King County Housing Authority
600 Andover Park West
Tukwila, WA 98188-3326

Contact: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
Telephone: (206) 574-1274
Website: www.kcha.org

Information current as of report publish date.

Audit history

You can find current and past audit reports for the Housing Authority of the County of King at
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.

Washington State Auditor’s Office Page 6



http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch/?qItemType=1&qItemDesc=Housing%20Authority%20of%20the%20County%20of%20King&qItemValue=2635

ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and
serves four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available
on our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office

Public Records requests | PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov

Main telephone | (360) 902-0370

Toll-free Citizen Hotline | (866) 902-3900

Website | www.sa0.wa.gov

Washington State Auditor’s Office Page 7


http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
mailto:PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
file:///C:/Users/cameronl/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/P7TI2Y9E/www.sao.wa.gov

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5587

ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF THE POST AUDIT REPORTS FOR
THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016

WHEREAS, the State of Washington, Office of the State Auditor, Division of Audit Services,
has conducted a Fiscal Audit of the Housing Authority of the County of King for the period January 1,
2016 through December 31, 2016 and has transmitted same to the Housing Authority; and

WHEREAS, the State of Washington, Office of the State Auditor, Division of Audit Services,
has conducted an Accountability Audit of the Housing Authority of the County of King for the period
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 and has transmitted same to the Housing Authority; and

WHEREAS, a formal acceptance of the Audit is required by the Board of Commissioners; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING; THAT:

Receipt of the official examination, Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit Report No.
1020005 for the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, and Accountability Audit Report
No. 1020479 of the Housing Authority of the County of King for the period January 1, 2016 through
December 31, 2016 prepared and transmitted for filing by the State Auditor’s Division of Municipal
Corporations pursuant to RCW 43.09.260, is hereby acknowledged and formally accepted by the Board
of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of King.

ADOPTED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING THIS 26™ DAY OF FEBRUARY,
2018.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

DOUG BARNES, Chair
Board of Commissioners

STEPHEN J. NORMAN
Secretary-Treasurer



= << 0

Z D > MW

00



/\ King County

Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners
From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
Date: February 15, 2018

Re: 2017 Investment Recap

Executive Summary

As of December 31, 2017, KCHA had $222.5 million in cash and investments, split
between (1) the KCHA Internal Pool (the Internal Pool), (2) the Washington State
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), (3) cash held by trustees and cash in
traditional checking and savings accounts and (4) loans to housing partners and to the
Energy Performance Contract (EPC) project.

Portfolio at 12/31/2017:

Yield @
Amounts Results 12/31/2017
Cash Invested in Internal KCHA Pool $54,614,486 1.17% 1.35%
Cash Held in the LGIP 107,590,878 0.96% 1.30%
Cash Held by KCHA & Outside Trustees 43,792,151 0.20% 0.20%
Cash loaned for low income housing purposes and to EPC project 16,512,694 4.98% 4.98%

$222,510,209 1.160% 1.370%

1) Estimate

For all of 2017, the Internal Pool average yield was 1.17% while the LGIP’s was
0.96%. The higher return from the Internal Pool versus the LGIP increased KCHA’s
total investment return by $114,000, down from $333,000 in 2016 as the continued
increase in short-term rates has narrowed the gap between the Internal Pool and the
LGIP.

The following chart shows a comparison of monthly yields between the Internal Pool
and the LGIP. The gap between the two lines reflects the additional investment income
the internal pool earned each month. Note that the gap narrowed to a mere five basis
points at the end of 2017.



2017 Investment Recap
February 26, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting
Page 2 of 6

2017 Monthly Rates of Return
Internal Pool vs. LGIP
1.6%

1.4%

o \V/’\
(1) / a
0.8%
_/ @ Internal Pool

0.6% s | G|P

0.4%

0.2%

0.0%

(1) Drops in February and June due to selling underperforming assets at a slight loss to partially
reposition portfolio

Since inception of the Internal Pool in 2009, over $2.7 million of additional investment
income has been earned compared to what would have been earned had the funds been
in the LGIP.

Out of the total portfolio of $222.5 million, $115.9 million is considered “investable”.
The remainder is in the form of loans; is held by trustees or management agents; or will
be spent within the next 12 months. Although the Board has authorized an allocation of
up to 60% of investable cash in the Internal Pool, short-term liquidity and forecasted
cash needs, and an assessment of future interest rates, influence how much is actually
invested in the Pool. As a result, 47.1% of investable cash was in the Internal Pool at
the end of 2017.

Historical Context

The Board of Commissioners adopted an Investment Policy in 2005 and several
updates have since been adopted. According to the policy the primary objectives, in
priority order, of the Authority’s investment activities are:

e Legality: Conforms to all applicable Federal, state and local government
requirements.

e Safety: Safety of the principal is the foremost objective of the investment
program. Investments of KCHA shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to
ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To obtain this
objective, diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual
securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the
portfolio.




2017 Investment Recap
February 26, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting
Page 3 0f 6

e Liquidity: the Authority’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid
to enable KCHA to meet all operating requirements that might be reasonably
anticipated.

e Return on Investment: the Authority’s investment portfolio shall be
designated with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout
budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the Authority’s investment
risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

At the beginning of 2009, KCHA invested most excess funds in the LGIP. The LGIP is
an investment vehicle operated by the Washington State Treasurer, and is open to all
local governments. Its strength lies in its combination of liquidity and security. It has a
policy of purchasing AAA-rated securities and maintaining a weighted average
maturity of 60 days or less.

With the goal of increasing investment yields, in March 2009 KCHA embarked on a
strategy of investing in securities outside of the LGIP. These securities could have a
maturity of up to three years and were comprised primarily of securities from
Government Sponsored Entities (GSESs) such as the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB),
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC—also known as Freddie Mac),
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA—also known as Ginnie Mae) and
the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA—also known as Fannie Mae).

From 2009 through 2011, the KCHA Internal Pool performed exceptionally well,
beating the LGIP by an average of 114 basis points (1.14%). Starting in 2012, the
Federal Reserve’s monetary policy of Quantitative Easing, intended to keep medium
and long-term rates low and stimulate the economy, had a deleterious effect on
KCHA'’s Internal Investment Pool and the gap between the Internal Pool and the LGIP
narrowed. Beginning in 2014, the gap began to widen again, with the Internal Pool
beating the LGIP by 77 basis points in 2014 and 90 basis points in 2015. Starting in
2016, spurred by a sharp outflow of capital from debt investments (bonds) and into
equity investments (the stock market), short term rates began to rise. Although the yield
gap throughout the fourth quarter of 2017 (as evidenced in the chart below) was 40
basis points, it narrowed to only five basis points at 12/31/2017.

Quarterly Yields
LGIP vs. Internal KCHA Pool

2.00%
1.50% |[——

1.00% \\ - —
/

N\ N = |nternal Pool
0.50% — -
0.00%

833 IFI3IFS I I FITG

c C (o7 I - > O = O o = > [ C oo

S ©8 5 8 @ ©® 9 3 0 9o &£ 0 5 ® 3




2017 Investment Recap
February 26, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting
Page 4 of 6

Total Rate of Return Investing

In late 2013, KCHA began managing the Internal Pool using Total Rate of Return
principles. Prior to this change in philosophy, all investments were held to maturity or
until they were called, regardless of their interest rates. Under Total Rate of Return
investing, certain portfolio investments are sold and replaced with new securities. This
is usually done to lock-in profits, increase investment yields, extend the life of
investments with favorable rates, or rid the portfolio of under-performing investments,
selling at a loss but re-investing at higher rates.

Below is a history of 2017 Total Rate of Return trades. Two bonds were sold at a
combined loss of $17,252, but the higher yields of the replacement bonds will increase
cash flow by $26,042. The net result of the trades is an overall increase in investment
income of $8,790.

Trade Coupon Old New Days Gain/ |Increased Net
Date Amount | Yield | Yield | Extended* | (Loss) |Cashflow | Benefit
2/28/2017 | $1,000,000 |0.980% | 1.520% 329 ($6,875)| $11,558 $4,683
6/23/2017 | $1,000,000 |0.930% | 1.540% 290 ($10,377)| $14,484 $4,108
($17,252)| $26,042 $8,790

* The number of additional days the newly purchased investment will be
outstanding vs. the sold investment

Aggregate profits since the inception of Total Rate of Return investing are $28,977.

Portfolio Management
KCHA currently purchases three main types of investment structures:

e Investments that can be redeemed at pre-determined times at the option of the
issuer. These investments are called “callables”. The bond issuer typically must
offer slightly higher rates of return for the option of calling the bonds.

e Investments that increase interest payments at pre-set amounts and at pre-set
times. These bonds, called “steps”, almost always carry call features in addition
to the step features.

e Investments that cannot be called, either because they were issued that way, or
because the call options were not exercised by the issuer. These investments are
known as “bullets”.

While bullets are the preferred bonds for Total Rate of Return investing, they are not
the only type of investment that should be included in a well-balanced portfolio.
Although bullets offer purchasers more certainty, they carry slightly lower rates than
comparable callable bonds (generally 5-10 basis points), and when rates rise, they will
lose value more quickly than steps. KCHA's internal investment portfolio at the end of



2017 Investment Recap

February 26, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting

Page 5 of 6

December 2017 contained a mix of all three investment types:

Amt Invested % of Portfolio Average Yield

Callable $26,000,000 47.6% 1.42%
Step* $5,999,275 11.0% 1.48%
Bullet $22,014,382 40.3% 1.22%
Redi Fund $376,190 0.7% 3.00%
Cash $224,638 0.4% 0.20%

$54,614,486 100.0% 1.33%

* Step bonds are also callable; the Board has authorized up to
50% of the portfolio to be step investments

Starting in December 2015, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC, the “Fed”),
began raising the target federal funds rate. Through December 2017, there have been
five increases and the rate currently stands at 1.25%. There is consensus that additional
rate hikes will occur in 2018, but there is little consensus as to the number of increases.
Of the 16 members on the FOMC board, six predict two increases or fewer, six predict
three hikes, and four predict four or more. Bloomberg estimates three, while Goldman
Sachs says four. Each hike would likely be 25 basis points. Below is a comparison of
the “yield curve” at the end of 2015 vs. the end of 2017. Short-term rates rose by
around 125 basis points, while long term rates actually fell.

a0 12/29/2015
12/29/2017

20

Yield (%)

1.0

o
MO Mo &MO 1¥R 2¥R IR 5YR TR 10¥R 20%R A0YR

Maturit:‘r Natz: K-Axis (Maturity) is nof to scale

As of December 31, 2017, 59% of KCHA's internal portfolio had provisions allowing
the issuer to call the bonds. This subset of the portfolio has an average yield of 1.43%
with a range from 1.0% to 2.05% and an average term to maturity of 2.1 years. Since a
2-year investment currently returns around 2.2%, and since rates will likely continue to



2017 Investment Recap
February 26, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting
Page 6 of 6

rise throughtout 2018, it is likely that only a handful of these investments, in any, will
be called. In 2017, only four out of 39 bonds had call provisions exercised.

Strateqy for 2018
For 2018, KCHA will continue its bifurcated strategy.

e To increase the size of the Internal Pool, KCHA will be looking for two types of
investments: steps and callables.

o In general, step investments with a higher starting coupon rate have
smaller incremental rate increases, while those with smaller starting
rates have more aggressive increases. The key will be matching the rate
structure with the forecasted rise in interest rates.

o Callable investments carry higher interest rates than non-callables as the
issuer has to pay a premium for the increased uncertainty to the buyer.
In a period of rising rates, the chances of an investment being called are
reduced, so it can be a good time to take advantage of the higher yields.

e KCHA'’s portfolio of non-callable investments is $24 million or 41% of the
portfolio. This tranche of investments has a weighted average rate 1.22%, with
individual investments therein yielding from 0.875% to 1.875%. The plan is to
judiciously continue to divest the portfolio of the lowest performers and reinvest
the proceeds at higher rates.

Investing diligence will be a key in 2018 and staff will rely heavily on the advice of
professional investment brokers to guide KCHA through the next 12-24 months.



= << 0

Z D > MW

o)



King County
Housing
Authority

TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM: Tim Baker, Senior Management Analyst
DATE: January 16, 2018

RE: Fourth Quarter CY 2017 Procurement Report

In order to update the Board concerning KCHA’s procurement activities, staff is
presenting the attached Quarterly Procurement Report. This report covers all
procurement activities from October through December 2017 that involved the
award of contracts valued over the amount of $100,000 and change orders that have
cumulatively exceeded 10% of the original or not to exceed contract amount.

Awarded Contracts Over $100,000:

The awarded contracts section of the report lists the issuing department, contract
type, the company awarded the contract, the award and estimate/budgeted amounts,
procurement process involved, the number of bids received and notes about the
procurement.

In the third quarter, there were 11 contracts awarded and valued at more than
$100,000, representing 84% of the contracts executed in the quarter. The largest
contract executed for construction work was for $761,819 awarded to Holmberg
Plumbing for the Somerset Gardens renovation project. There were six contracts
awarded in this quarter for the Somerset project, for a total of $2,223,413.

KCHA continues to struggle to obtain 3 or more bids as per our procurement policy
due to the still red hot construction market in the area, as many contractors are
already committed to other projects and do not need to focus on bidding for our work.

Only one non-construction contract was awarded in this quarter, which was to KPFF
for $565,274 for design services for the 4th Ave SW street improvements, which is a
part of the overall Greenbridge development project.

Contract Change Orders Exceeding 10%:

KCHA'’s internal procedures require heightened oversight and review once a contract
has incurred change orders valued at more than 10% of the original contract amount.
The change order (CO) section of the report includes the issuing department,
contract type, company awarded the contract, the original amount awarded, as well



Fourth Quarter CY 2017 Procurement Report
February 26, 2018 KCHA Board
Page 2 of 2

as the number of change orders, the amounts of the total change orders to date
expressed both in dollars and percentages above the original contract value, and
notes about the procurement. Per the Board’s request, this section was divided
between change orders issued in response to unforeseen field conditions or
expanded project scopes, and change orders which were foreseen at the time the
initial contract was let (primarily through contract extensions on multi-year
contracts). The not-to-exceed total for the “foreseen” change order section is the
projected total amount of the contract once all the foreseen change orders are
completed.

There were four “field condition” change or “scope change” orders on a contracts
whose total value had exceeded 10% of the initial contract amount. Two were issued
to Innova architects for design work at the Highland Village and Somerset Gardens
redevelopment projects. The design work for the renovations is being undertaken in
several phases with the scope of the construction work adjusted or expanded at the
end of the preliminary design phase as more is learned about the needs and potential
of each property. The first change order issued to Innova was for completion of the
final stages of design work needed at the two sites that included development of final
plans and contract documents based on the preliminary design and scope of work.
The second change order was issued for the design of a new 36 unit building due to a
density bonus allowed on the Highland Village site by the City of Bellevue. This
additional work was not contemplated in the original plan for Highland Village.

There were three anticipated change orders involving the extension of the contract as
allowed in the original contract. All three were issued by the Resident Services
Department for KCHA’s educational initiatives projects.

Summary of 2017 contracting activities:

KCHA awarded over $26.5 million in contracts valued over $25,000 in 2017. Of that
amount, women and/or minority owned contracts received over $2.2 million,
representing 8.3% of the total. Section 3 businesses received over $1.4 million,
representing over 5.3% of the total. Section 3 businesses are those that are owned by
and/or hire economically disadvantaged persons, including public housing or Section
8 residents.



Awarded Contracts Over $100,000

KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT

October-December 2017 (Fourth Quarter)

Issuing Department Contract type Contract Awarded to R/ B g gl (Cmw WYL ‘Ylth Procurement Process | # of bids Notes
Amount Amount extensions
Asset Management Vantage Glen storm system & asphalt replacement Puget Paving $96,491 $112,885 $112,885 sealed bid 6 contractor has performed several successful projects for KCHA
Asset Management Somerset flooring replacement American West $147,838 $146,026 $146,026 sealed bid 2 contractor has performed several successful projects for KCHA
Asset Management Somerset countertop replacement Topline Counters $147,440 $156,670 $156,670 sealed bid 3 new contractor for KCHA
Asset Management Somerset door & trim replacement Cadence $302,758 $305,195 $305,195 sealed bid 3 contractor has performed several successful projects for KCHA
Asset Management Carriage House fire damage Belfor $400,000 $405,673 $405,673 sealed bid 2 insurance adjuster procured and selected the contractor
Asset Management Somerset cabinet replacement iBuild $381,0 $413,359 $413,359 sealed bid 3 contractor has performed several successful projects for KCHA
Asset Management Somerset HVAC & electrical upgrades Resicon $464,771 $440,344 $440,344 sealed bid 2 contractor has performed several successful projects for KCHA
Asset Management Somerset plumbing upgrades Holmberg $786,832 $761,819 $761,819 sealed bid 2 contractor has also been KCHA's plumbing task order contractor
Capital Const/WX Victorian Place mechanical upgrades UCONS $167,798 $168,719 $168,719 sealed bid 2 contractor has performed several successful projects for KCHA
HOPE VI 4th Ave SW improvements KPFF $590,000 $565,274 $565,274 RFQ 4 firm has done many Greenbridge area projects
Housing Management-maint Seola Gardens landscaping--Fairwind Brightview $116,712 $100,000 $200,000 RFP 3 contractor is performing similar work at numerous KCHA properties
Totals $3,601,717 $3,575,964 $3,675,964

Contracts exceeding 10% cumulative change order-Condition Changes

Issuing Department Contract type Contract awarded to
Asset Management architect design services Innova
Asset Management architect design services Innova
Housing Management software development Tenmast
Housing Management-maint landscaping services Brightview

Contracts with contract extensions or other foreseen change orders

Totals

Change Order

Initial Contract | «° - "° "% 0. | Total ContractValue | o oo ros Notes (Current Quarter Change Orders)
Amount/NTE* g to Date
This Quarter
$404,000 $42,245 (1) $446,245 10% KCHA requested additional design work for Highland Village and Somerset Gardens redevelopment projects
$404,000 $592,778 (2) $1,039,023 157% KCHA requested design work for a new building at Highland Village due to a density bonus allowed by Bellevue
$910,829 $74,880 (3) $1,119,253 23% part time developer to assist in completion of phase 3 of project
$146,492 $55,413 (2) $242,000 65% adding Vantage Point to the landscaping portfolio
$1,865,321 $2,846,521

Issuing Department Contract type Contract awarded to
Resident Services after school & summer learning programs YMCA

Resident Services

education & emplyment services

Resident Services

Bellevue Community College

education initiatives

Communities in Schools of Kent

*NTE = Not To Exceed

Totals

Change Order C t Contract
NTE* Amount & No. urrent Lontra % of NTE* Notes (Current Quarter Change Orders)
a Value
This Quarter
$392,175 $26,000 (1) $156,725 20% extended contract for 3 months line it up its terms with the fiscal year
$540,000 $22,500 (2) $200.,500 37% temporary extension of the contract to prevent BCC staff layoffs who administer the program
$156,000 $66,000 (2) $156,000 100% last extenstion to the contract
$1,088,175 $513,225




= << 0

Z D > MW

10



/\ King County

Housing
Authorlty

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Linda Riley, Control]e%

DATE; February 9, 2018

RE: 4th Quarter 2017 Summary Write-Offs

For the 4th quarter of 2017, 18 accounts totaling $10,607 were written off. This amount is
significantly less than the $31,300 average over the previous seven quarters. Although the write-
offs were down this quarter, the overall trend of aggressively collecting past due amounts and
writing off uncollectible balances is expected to continue in 2018.

This quarter, out of the 18 accounts, four large accounts totaling $7,261 accounted for 68% of
the total write-offs. 65% of the amounts written off are for damage and cleaning charges. A
breakdown for accounts written off is listed below.

The net collections remitted from our collection agency are $4,470 or approximately $2,473
more than this period last year.

Total YTD
~ WRITE-OFFS WRITE-OFFS

Rent Balance Forward to Vacate Month $ 4,008.45 $ 31,143.31
Retro Rent Write-offs $ - $ 1230297
VACATE CHARGES:
Rent Delinquent in Vacate Month 2,173.85 9,191.61
Cleaning & Damages 6,854.38 61,742.25
Paper Service & Court Costs 924.00 2,903.47
Miscellaneous Charges 500.95 2,690.10

Total Charges 10,453.18 76,527.43

Total All Charges 14,461.63 119,973.71
CREDITS:
Security Deposits (2,225.00) (10,086.00)
Miscellaneous Payments & Credits (1,630.00) (5,666.45)

Total Credits (3,855.00) {15,752.45)

Total Net Write-offs $ 10,606.63 $  104,221.26
Net Write-offs by Portfolio
KCHA 4,656.42 50,874.92
Green River 897.53 6,362.63
Green River [1 - 5,026.73
Egis 542.83 12,083.41
Soosette Creek 1,575.20 15,848.16
Zephyr - E
Fairwind - 4,944.00
Vantage Point 2,934.65 8,439.34
Spiritwood Manor - 642.07

$ 10,606.63

$ 104,221.26




Write-off and Collection Summary

2015 - 2017

NET WRITE-OFFS

2017 2016 - 2015
January to March 29,410.02 23,434.99 15,702.57
April to June 28,988.40 23,594.38 £,936.09
July to September 35,218.21 39,776.14 13,136.18
October to December 10,606.63 38,819.29 5,492.73
TOTAL . 104,221.26 125,624.80 41,267.57

NET COLLECTIONS

2017 2016 2015
January to March 3,757.85 6,130.40 2,141.47
April to June 4,104.25 4,798.56 1,709.91
July to September 588.53 2,098.53 490.48
October to December 4 .470.21 1,996.72 1128.87
TOTAL 12,920.84 15,024.21 5470.73 -



JessicaO
Rectangle


= << 0

Z D > 0 W

11



KCHA IN THE NEWS



Veterans Deserve

a Home

HUD-VA Partnership

Among Property Managers across the country,
there are often concerns about housing homeless
Veterans, Perhaps they don’t have a steady income,
or they have a criminal background. Or maybe they
are just not accustomed to living around neighbors.

In early 2016, when The Villages at South Station
near Seattle, Washington, started accepting Housing
and Urban Development-Veterans Affairs Supportive
Housing (HUD-VASH) vouchers, we found many of
our concerns were addressed. This is because HUD-
VASH, which is a permanent supportive housing
program for homeless Veterans offered through the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment and the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
(VA), provides case man-

which in turn makes the whole process of housing a
homeless Veteran go more smoothly.

Yes, there are times when some of our HUD-
VASH residents have trouble adjusting to life after
homelessness. They may find it hard learning to
keep their noise levels down inside and accepting
responsibility for how their actions may affect others
as pait of a community. But the great thing about
the HUD-VASH program is that our residents are
assigned a case manager who checks in with them
every month — or more often if needed - and helps
them tackle issues. For example, VA case managers
may connect these Veterans with support services
such as health care, mental health treatment, social
skill development, com-

agement support to help
Veteran residents adjust.
Working in partner-
ship with VA Puget
Sound Health Care
System and the King
County Housing
Authority (KCHA) in
Washington State, The
Villages has already
housed nearly thirty
formerly homeless Vet-
erans. Since we took
the opportunity to help
homeless Veterans, we
have seen how HUD-
VASH vouchers can
change lives, One of
our residents housed
through HUD-VASH is
now a student and is

The HUD-VASH program Is a
Joint effort between the U.S.
Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and
U.S. Department of Veterans
Affairs (VA) that also involves
local public housing authorities.
Under HUD-VASH, eligible home-
less Veterans receive a Housing
Choice rental voucher, Issued
by the public housing authority,
plus case management and
supportive services from VA.

munity integration, and
employment.

Property Managers
who accept HUD-VASH
vouchers have the assur-
ance that there’s a safety
net for them and the Vet-
erans living in their com-
munity. Also, by accepting
HUD-VASH vouchers,
Praoperty Managers can
expect reliable monthly
rental payments through
the local public housing
authority. They also have
a say in setting their own
security deposits based on
local standards.

Housing homeless Vet-
erans isn't always perfect,
but neither is housing

working to regain cus-

tody of his daughter. We have another resident who,
with his own money from his own job, bought a car
and pays his rent on time every month.

To help ease the transition for our Veteran resi-
dents, The Villages conducts a furniture donation
program, where we collect items from residents who
are moving oul. It's a simple way to get Veterans
what they need and help them feel more at home,

anyone else, Through
HUD-VASH, we at The Villages have had the
opportunity to help homeless Veterans get back on
their feet, and for that, we are grateful — because
everyone deserves a home.

To join the effort to house homeless Veterans,

please visit www.va.gov/homeless/docs/HCHV_Sites_
bystate.pdf to locate and contact the VA Health Care

for Homeless Veterans Coordinator in your area. fi&

Terrli Brown boasts 36

years of experience in

the multi-family housing
industry. Prior to joining
Madrona Ridge Residen-

tial, she spent five years

as a Property Manager for
ConAm Management in the
Seattle market, and gained
extensive experience in man-
aging garden style and mid-
rise communities for Pro-
metheus Real Estate Group
and Waterton Property Man-
agement. Terri completed
the Certified Apartment
Manager (CAM) Certfication
through the Orange County
Apartment Association, in
California.

October/November 2017 tssue | Volume 28 | Number10 | 7



The transit-oriented development project. Photo courtesy of city of Issaquah

Issaquah Council OKs tax exemption
for affordable housing project

By Nicole Jennings

Thursday, December 21, 2017 11:25am 1

It was after 11 p.m. when the Issaquah City Council made the decision to
reward an affordable housing development with a 12-year property tax
exemption at the Dec. 18 meeting.

The development agreement would allow the 355 residential units of the
transit-oriented development project to be exempt from property taxes for
12 years through the state’s Multi-Family Tax Exemption program, which
gives developers short-term property tax immunity in exchange for building
affordable housing.



The transit-oriented development project, located just east of the Issaquah
Transit Center at 1505 Newport Way NW, is a project between the city,
Spectrum Development Solutions/the King County Housing Authority and
CenturyLink to put a mixed-use development on the current CenturyLink
truck parking and material storage site.

The project is set to be completed by 2021, and includes two buildings with a
commercial ground floor and 355 residential units, 176 of which would be
affordable.

City of Issaquah Economic Development Manager Jen Davis Hayes explained
that the affordable units would “look the same as the other units” so that
there would be no socio-economic class distinction in the buildings.

The 12-year property tax exemption would apply not just to the affordable
units, but to all residential portions of the TOD in exchange for 15 percent of
the project’s housing at 60 percent of the Annual Median Income in King
County (meaning to qualify for the housing, a person would need to make 80
percent of the average annual income for one person in King County) and 5
percent of the units at 80 percent AMI.

For a one-person household, 60 percent AMI equals an income of $38,000
per year and 80 percent AMI amounts to a yearly salary of $50,600,
according to information provided in the council’s agenda packet.

For a family of four, 60 percent AMI means an annual income of $54,200
and 80 percent AMI equals an annual income of $72,200.

The agenda bill was first presented to council at the Dec. 4 meeting, when a
public hearing on the topic also occurred. It was sent back to the
administration so that the language could be revised to specifically link the
MFTE to the TOD project, and so that the ordinance could be rewritten to
require an approved development agreement for a project to qualify for the
MFTE program in the Tibbetts Valley TOD Residential Targeted Area.

Council members were concerned at the previous meeting in December that
without these distinctions, the project could receive the exemption without
meeting the city’s vision for affordable housing.



Facilitating transit-oriented development is part of the affordable housing

segment of the city’s Issaquah Housing Strategy Work Plan, which was
adopted in September.

Reporter

© 2017, Issaquah-Sammamish Reporter and Sound Publishing, Inc.

Subscribe | Print Editions | Newsletters | AboutUs | TermsofUse | Privacy Policy

Contact Us



=)t @ SEATTLEL 5o

GENERAL
TUESDAY 16, JANUARY 2018

As Seattle housing prices soar, Section 8
vouchers don’t help as much as they used
to

by David Kroman

For Brian Graap and Kari Forbes, there wasn’t much time. The Section 8 housing voucher they’d
improbably secured was set to expire and after three months of looking for an apartment, the only
thing they’d heard from potential landlords was “No.”

The couple — in their mid-30s, engaged but with no date for a wedding — had been living together on
the streets, homeless, while Forbes was pregnant. Graap, a marine electrician by trade, was addicted
to heroin and meth. Both had criminal records — Graap for theft and drug charges; Forbes for a DUI.

When their daughter, Kandace, was born, Child Protective Services turned her over to Forbes’ mother,
which made getting clean and finding a stable place to live even more important. They wanted to
regain custody of their child. Graap succeeded in kicking his addiction in August 2016 and the couple
got in touch with several local organizations for help with obtaining a Section 8 voucher to subsidize
their rent.

Section 8 is a federal program administered by local housing authorities. Recipients of the vouchers
generally pay no more than 30 percent of their income, the vouchers covering the rest, capping out at
what is considered a “fair market rent” for that area.

That the couple had succeeded in securing a housing voucher was cause for celebration: The average
wait time in the country is two and a half years, and that’s just for people who have managed to get
on the list. Other qualified applicants must wait until their local housing authority opens up the
application period just to enter the queue. In Seattle, that’s unlikely to happen for at least another
three years, when the current waitlist is cleared, according to Seattle Housing Authority spokesperson
Kerry Coughlin.



But as competition in Seattle and King County increases and housing prices soar, the power of housing
vouchers is diminishing. Year after year, fewer Section 8 holders in the area are successfully leasing
housing before their vouchers expire, with Seattle, in particular, seeing a dip in success rates among
voucher holders.

For Seattle Housing Authority, only 44 percent of voucher holders succeeded in finding housing at the
end of 2017. That’s down from 57 percent in 2013.

The King County Housing Authority had a 70 percent success rate in 2017, which is actually an
improvement from 2016, thanks to a concerted focus on improving the success rate. But before then,
spokesperson Rhonda Rosenberg said, that number “used to be a lot higher.”

After moving in with Forbes’ mother, the couple won back custody of Kandace, a pigtailed two-year-
old who's shy of strangers. But their housing search was dragging on, month after month. Graap
estimates they were rejected 5-6 times by potential landlords, but Forbes quickly interrupts to say it
was much more than that. At one point, they thought they’d been accepted to an apartment in
Factoria, getting so close to leasing it that the King County Housing Authority came out to inspect the
apartment to make sure it checked out.

But then they were abruptly turned down by the landlord, which Graap believes was the result of their
background checks.

As the voucher expiration date approached, Forbes says it was “absolutely” getting stressful. Those
who fail to find housing before the voucher expires must re-apply, which inevitably puts them at the
back of a long line.

Both the Seattle Housing and King County Housing Authorities are tasked with doing the best they can
with what the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) gives them. And that means
experimenting with ways to keep the waitlist in check while also maintaining a reasonable success rate
for those who do receive a voucher.

“You’ve only got so many dollars, so we’re trying to figure out the most efficient ways to target those
dollars,” says King County Housing Authority spokesperson Rosenberg. “People think housing
authorities are a Subway franchise or something, with the same business models, but it’s not like
that.”

Until March 2016, the vouchers administered through the Seattle Housing Authority expired after only
60 days. But the agency changed that to 120 days, with two 30- day extensions, giving tenants 180 days

to use a voucher.

Meanwhile, the KCHA gives clients 240 days to find a place to live.



But with a finite number of vouchers, extending the expiration date risks extending the waitlist. “Do
you [spread] this around so you serve the same number of people but everyone pays a little more?”
wonders Rosenberg. “Or do you serve fewer people but give more money? We’re always constantly
reviewing that. There’s no easy answer. There’s no magic bullet. You only get what you get from
HUD.”

In both Seattle and King County’s tight housing markets, success rates are among the top concerns for
both housing authorities. It is such a concern, in fact, that in its brief to incoming Seattle Mayor Jenny
Durkan (obtained through a public records request), the Seattle Housing Authority listed the “reduced
purchasing power of Housing Choice Vouchers in the Seattle market” as the most pressing issue facing
the housing authority.

In addition to the dropping success rates, SHA is also noticing more requests from tenants to move to
new apartments — a 27 percent increase from 2016 to 2017. In its brief to Durkan, the housing
authority says this is likely due to a landlord increasing rent and pushing the residence beyond what
the person or family can afford, even with a voucher.

SHA spokesperson Coughlin says there are a number of reasons why success rates might be dropping,
including more denials by landlords due to criminal or credit records.

Theresa Curry Almuti, the Homeless Prevention Supervisor with Solid Ground, says factors such as
criminal records, credit histories and past evictions often raise the barrier for voucher holders. “Even
in places like Seattle or Bellevue where it is illegal for landlords to not rent to a prospective tenant
based on the fact that they have a Section 8 voucher, in my experience some landlords will still find
other ways not to accept those tenants,” she says.

But overall, the working assumption is that the region’s housing prices are simply eclipsing the
subsidies provided through Section 8 vouchers — and the affordable housing stock is decreasing.
Housing prices in King County are up 15 percent from a year ago, according to Zillow, and the median
monthly rent for a 2-bedroom apartment is more than $2,000.

In addition to making it harder for voucher holders to use their vouchers, those who find a place have a
harder time staying. SHA estimates voucher holders are rent burdened 30 percent of the time for one-
bedrooms, 43 percent of the time for two-bedrooms and 30 percent of the time for three-bedrooms.

The King County Housing Authority’s success rate is higher due, in part, to the longer shelf life of its
vouchers. The agency also serves a broader geographical area, including in a cheaper housing market.
KCHA also has a tiered system, whereby families who want to live in more expensive cities like
Bellevue get a larger subsidy than families eyeing less expensive areas.

The ending of their search for housing is a happy one for Graap and Forbes: They found a place near
downtown Bellevue, an apartment with a balcony and a view of trees. They pay $1,900. Being from
Wisconsin, Graap has decorated the place with Green Bay Packers gear.



The couple’s landlord liked them in their first face-to-face meeting and didn’t bother with a credit or
background check, said Forbes. Now that they’re settled, Graap hopes to find work as an electrician,
while Forbes hopes to return as an insurance agent.

They know they’re lucky. Forbes says she has a friend with three children who still hasn’t found a
place to use her voucher and is worried it will expire. And with a proposed $6 billion cut to HUD,
funding for housing vouchers could get tighter.



Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce

Wednesday, January 24, 2018

King County Housing Authority
buys 485 Shoreline units for $131M

By BRIAN MILLER
Journal Staff Reporter

The Ballinger Commons apart-
ments, at 2405 N. 202nd PI. in
Shoreline, sold last month for
just under $131 million. Berkadia
announced the deal and repre-
sented the seller, Essex Property

Trust of San Mateo, California.
An Essex LLC acquired the prop-
erty in 1996 for $29 million

The buyer was the Housing
Authorlty of the County of King,
which is generally the King Coun-
ty Housing Authority, or KCHA.

King County recorded the sale
a little before Christmas.

Berkadia’s team consisted of

See SHORELINE — page 10

—— e

Shoreline

Continued from page 1

Kenny Dudunakis, Ben Johnson
and David Sorensen. The trans-
action was worth about $270,000
per unit.

Developed in 1989 on 78 acres,
the complex has 485 units in 29
mostly two-story buildings. It is
just west of Holyrood Catholic
Cemetery and south of Lake Ball-
inger, between state Route 99 and
Interstate 5. The apartments, just
south of the Snohomish County
line, are about a five-minute drive
to the Mountlake Terrace Transit
Center.

In a statement, Dudunakis
said, “Ballinger Commons is an
incredible piece of real estate. It’s
the largest apartment site in the
Northwest.”

Units range from one- to
three-bedrooms. County records
list the average unit size at 826

square feet. Amenities include 4'
fitness center, pool, tennis court{
and clubhouse. There is a mix of
covered and surface parking fq
over 950 vehicles.

According to its website, KCI-L
owns and manages almost 3,5(
units of subsidized housing fd
families, the elderly and disable
people. It also supports afforc
able housing through tax credits
tax-exempt bonds and Section §
KCHA estimates that it serves

more than 49,000 people who earﬂn‘-
less than the county’s median.

income,
The KCHA board voted last fa]l
to acquire Ballinger Commons.

Ballinger Commons is close to the freeway and transit center.

Photo by Berkadia



| The SeattleTimes | monpay, FEBRUARY 19, 2018

SEATTLE IS BELOW AVERAGE FOR AFFORDABLE
HOUSING — BUT NO MAJOR CITY HAS ENOUGH -

Gene Balk / FYI Guy

Seattle Times staff columnist

Seattle is hard-
ly alone in fac-
ing a shortage
of affordable
housing. It’s a
national prob-
lem, and not a single major

metropolitan area in the U.S.

has enough low-income
housing to meet the de-
mand.

But given our region’s exception-
ally fast-rising rents, and a home-

2

lessness crisis that counts among
the worst in the nation, one Seattle
Times reader wondered how we
stack up against other areas in
providing housing for low-income
folks.

“How about comparing major
cities in the homelessness headlines
based on the number of subsidized
housing units per capita in each?”
the reader asked, in an email. “As a
community compared to others,
have we done a good or bad job
providing low-income housing?
And even if a good job, we can see it
hasn’t solved the problem. So how
do we do more?”

Ho m s b .d. s m fr m MIKE SIEGEL,/ THE SEATTLE TIMES
using subsidies come from a . 2 . .
dizzying array of programs from In December, the King County Housing Authority bought apartments

See > FYI GUY, a8 [t Shoreline in an effort to maintain affordable workforce housing.




< FYl Guy

FROM A1

both public and private enti-
ties at the federal, state and
local level, making compari-
sons difficult. To answer the
question, I turned to a large
national survey, called the
American Housing Survey,
which is sponsored by the
U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
(HUD) and conducted by the
Census Bureau. More than
120,000 households in 25
metropolitan areas, includ-
ing about 3,000 in Seattle,
completed the survey.

Among the many ques-
tions on the survey, renters
are asked if they receive any
kind of reduction in rent,

The data show about
75,800 households in the
Seattle metropolitan area
have their rent reduced
through some type of subsi-
dy. Nearly half of these
households receive a subsidy
from the government, such
as a housing voucher. About
athird live in a property that
is owned by one of the public
housing authorities in our
region. The rest have re-
duced rent through some
other program or agency that
requires income verification.

Keep in mind, it’s not just
Seattle and the Eastside
where rents are soaring.
Census data show that Taco-
ma and Everett both have
now passed the $1,000 mark
for median rents.

Taken all together, these
rent-subsidized units make
up 12.6 percent of the total
rental-housing stock in the
Seattle area. Among the 25
metro areas included in the
survey, Seattle ranks in the
bottom half, at 19th.

How Seattle stacks up for subsidized housing

In the Seattle metropolitan area, an estimated 12.6 percent of rental units are subsidized, according to data from the U.S. Census
Bureau’s American Housing Survey. That ranks Seattie 19th among the 25 metro areas included in the survey,

1] Boston  26.6%
(2] : NewYark_- 3.0
(3] New Orleans  20.2
©  Detroit 201
[ ] Pittsburgh  18.0
] Cleveland 17.8
[ ] Philadelphia 17.0
©_ Washington, D.C. 163
(] Cincinnati  16.1
®  KansasCity 157
L11] San Francisco  15.4
®  Wiwavkes 152
® Memphis , 15.2

{{ |

%
‘f?’?

T
]

HIGHESY PERCENT OF SUBSIDIZED RENY

Q’-’DC{??Q‘{?Y .
e %

T e >

i

)

g

1143 Chicago 15.1%
® _Portland 144
Riverside-
o San Bernardino a2
@ Miami 130
(321 Atlanta  12.7
(15 Seattle 12.6
[20) Raleigh 12.4
€D Los Angeles 123
[27] Houston 12.3
&M ~ Dallas 123
[24) Denver 121
5] Phoenix 8.7

Note: Subsidized units are owned by a public housing authority or receive a government subsidy (voucher, etc.) or same other rent reduction that requires income verification

Source: American Housing Survey, 2015

There’s a wide range be-
tween the metro areas in the
survey. Boston is at the top,
with more than one-quarter
of units receiving some form
of subsidy. In Phoenix, it's
fewer than one in 10, placing
it at the other end of the
spectrum.

Six of the metros in the
survey include areas with
some form of rent control —
New York, Los Angeles, San
Francisco, Philadelphia,
Riverside-San Bernardino
and Washington, D.C. —but
such units are not included in
the numbers for subsidized
apartments.

This analysis looks at only
the percentage of rental
stock that is subsidized,
without taking into account
that the need for affordable
housing is greater in some
areas than others.

Buta 2017 study of the
affordable stock in the 50
largest U.S. metro areas did
factor in the varying levels of
need.

The study, which was

conducted by the'National
‘Low Income Housing Coali-
tion, a Washington, D.C.-
based housing-advocacy .
group, found that there are
29 affordable units available
for every 100 extremely
low-income households
here. That’s well below the
national average of 35 per
100.

While the study showed
that every metro area deals
with a severe shortage of
affordable housing, Boston
had the highest availability,
at 46 units per 100 house-
holds. Las Vegas was at the
bottom, with just 12 units per
100 households.

This wide variance among
metro areas may seem sur-
prising — but when it comes
to public housing, it’s noth-
ing new, says Stephen Nor-
man, the executive director
of the King County Housing
Authority (KCHA).

“The public housing pro-
gram started out as a New
Deal program, and grew over
the years in bits and pieces,”

Norman said. “There is very
little rhyme or reason about
how (funding) was allocated
around the country. It wasn’t
as if there was a formulaic
calculation that said, ‘Well
this area has X number of
poor people, or this level of
poverty.””

In general, older cities like
New York arid Boston have a
higher share of public hous-
ing than younger cities in the
West, including Seattle.,
There are a number of rea-
sons for this, including the
greater amount of ag-
ing rental housing stock in
the older cities.

Another reason Seattle
may rank lower than many
other areas for the availabili-
ty of affordable housing is
that the allocation of federal
resources here hasn’t grown
in step with our area’s boom-
ing population. '

And for KCHA and other
agencies in the Seattle area,
there’s the added difficulty of
operating in a region with
very high-priced real estate.

EMILY M. ENG / THE SEATTLE TIMES

The agency owns more than

100 properties and competes
on the open market for new
acquisitions. One primary
goal is to preserve existing
affordable housing, particu-
larly in areas that are losing
economic diversity as prop-
erty values rise.

In December, KCHA made
its largest purchase to date,
the 485-unit Ballinger Com-
mons in Shoreline, an older,
market-rate complex.

“The prospectus from the
seller said that you can im-
mediately raise the rents
$150 to $300. That’s where
the housing market is at this
point,” Norman said. “We
only raise rents as our operat-
ing expenses go up, so over
time they become increasing-
ly affordable. We started
doing this in 1990, sowe
have some complexes that
are 20 to 30 percent below
the surrounding market.”

Norman calls this “work-
force housing,” meaning it’s
for Jower-income households
that still earn more than

30 percent of the area medi-
an income, making them not
eligible for federal funds. The
agency owns about 6,000
such units.

Among other recent acqui-
sitions, the agency purchased
two privately held housing
complexes for low-income
seniors when those proper-
ties came onto the market.
Both are in high-priced
neighborhoods —one in
downtown Bellevue, the
other in the heart of Red-
mond.

“There was no question,
since whoever bought them
could opt out of the HUD
contracts, that these would
become high-end condo
construction sites within a
year,” Norman said. “So we
stepped in, we bought those,
we kept the federal subsidy
contracts, and we're continu-
ing to run them for the very
low-income seniors who live
there.”

Norman says the Section 8
voucher program is strug-
gling to find landlords who
will take vouchers, and this is
particularly acute in very
high-end areas such as the
Eastside, For every 10 King
County households with
vouchers, three are unable to
find housing.

Today, all of the nation’s
public-housing authorities
struggle with reduced federal
funding — and things could
get worse. Housing advo-
cates say the tax law signed
by President Donald Trump
last month reduces the incen- .
tive for corporations to buy
low-income-housing tax ~
credits, the funding mecha-
nism for most affordable-
housing development.

Gene Balk:
gbalk@seattletimes.com. On
- Twitter @genebalk




	201802 KCHA Board Agenda..
	Tab Number 1
	201712 KCHA Board Minutes
	Tab Number 2
	201801 Voucher Report (LR)
	201801 Voucher Report (WX)
	201802 Voucher Report (LR)
	201802 Voucher Report (WX)
	Tab Number 3
	201802 Resolution No. 5584 HOPA Friendly Village (Memo)
	201802 Resolution No. 5584 HOPA Friendly Village Confirmation and Certificate (Attachment)
	201802 Resolution No. 5584 HOPA Friendly Village (Resolution)
	Tab Number 4
	201802 Resolution No. 5585 Higland Village Somerset Transfer (Memo)
	201802 Resolution No. 5585 Amending Resolution Highland Somerset KCHA (Resolution)
	Tab Number 5
	201802 Resolution No. 5586 HomeSight Phase III (Memo)
	201802 Resolution No. 5586 HomeSight Board (Resolution)
	Tab Number 6
	201802 Resolution No. 5587 KCHA Accountability Audit 2016 (Memo)
	201802 Resolution No. 5587 KCHA Accountability Audit 2016 Financial and Single Audit 2016 (Attachment)
	201802 Resolution No. 5587 KCHA Accountability Audit 2016 (Attachment)
	201802 Resolution No. 5587 KCHA Accountability Audit 2016 financial single and accountability (Resolution)
	Tab Number 7
	201801 New Bank Accounts 2017-12
	Tab Number 8
	201802 Investment Recap 2017 v2
	Tab Number 9
	201802 Fourth Qtr Write-Off Report
	Tab Number 10
	201802 Fourth Qtr CY 2017 Procurement Report
	201802 Fourth Qtr CY 2017 procurement report (Attachment)
	Tab Number 11
	ADP2A5.tmp
	January 25 and 26, 2018
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	IV. ADJOURNMENT
	THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
	COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON





